







TYRANIDS

THE GREAT DEVOURER, THE DESTROYER OF WORLDS, THE SWARM OF THE HIVE MIND

A LAN

1

CONTENTS

INTRODUCTION
THE GREAT DEVOURER
First Contact
Death of a World
The Behemoth
Tyranid Bio-ships
Battle for Macragge
The First Tyrannic War 14
The Kraken 17
Doom of the Eldar
The Gorgon 20
The Second Tyrannic War
The Leviathan
War in Octarius
The Fall of Shadowbrink 28
The Third Tyrannic War 32
Galactic Feeding Grounds

FORCES OF THE HIVE MIND
Warlord Traits
Instinctive Behaviour Tables
Hive Tyrants
Tyranid Warriors
Gaunts
Genestealers
Lictors
Zoanthropes
Tyranid Guards
Venomthropes
Tervigons
Raveners
The Red Terror
Tyranid Artillery Organisms
(Biovores, Spore Mine Clusters & Exocrines)

Ivranid Feeder Organisms (Haruspexes & Pyro	vores)
Camifexes	
Ripper Organisms	
(Ripper Swarms & Sky-slasher Swarms)	
Mawlocs	
Trygons	
Hive Crones.	
Harpies	
Tyrannofexes	
The Swarmlord	
Old One Eve	
Deathleaper	
WEAPONS AND BIOMORPHS	
Melee Weapons	
Ranged Weapons	
Spore Mine Weapons	
Biomorph Upgrades	
Bio-artefacts of the Tyranids	
Powers of the Hive Mind	
COLOURS OF THE HIVE FLEETS	
The Tyranid Swarm	
Tyranids Wargear List	
HQ.	
Froops	
Elites	
Fast Attack	
Heavy Support.	
REFERENCE	104





PRODUCED BY THE GAMES WORKSHOP DESIGN STUDIO

Thanks to our playtesters: Nick Bayton, John Bracken, Stefano Carlini, Paul Hickey, Matt Hilton, Trever Larkin, Jim Lister,

6 Oppright Games Workshop Lammer 2012: Games Workshop, the Games Workshop logs, GN, Warbannerer Warbannere 40,000, the Warbannere 40,000 logs, the Applia Boye, 50K, 80/000, Gandel Weiter Order Territor Marchannere 40,000 logs, the Applia Boye, 50K, 80/00, Gandel Weiter are reflerer 5, 71M and/or 9 Games Workshop (Lambored Lambored Weiter 2000) unpresent more Charter Territor and the Campital Application and Application (Lambored Weiter 2000) unpresent more Charter and the Campital Application (Lambored Weiter 2000) unpresent more Charter and the Campital Application (Lambored Weiter 2000) unpresent more Charter and the Campital Application (Lambored Weiter 2000) unpresent more Charter and the Campital Application (Lambored Weiter 2000) unpresent more Charter and the Campital Application (Lambored Weiter 2000) unpresent more Charter and the Campital Application (Lambored Weiter 2000) unpresent more Charter and the Campital Application (Lambored Weiter 2000) unpresent more Charter and the Campital Application (Lambored Weiter 2000) unpresent more Charter and the Campital Application (Lambored Weiter 2000) unpresent more Charter and the Campital Application (Lambored Weiter 2000) unpresent more Charter and the Campital Application (Lambored Weiter 2000) unpresent more Charter and the Campital Application (Lambored Weiter 2000) unpresent more Charter and the Campital Application (Lambored Weiter 2000) unpresent more Charter and the Campital Application (Lambored Weiter 2000) unpresent more Charter and the Campital Application (Lambored Weiter 2000) unpresent more Charter and the Campital Application (Lambored Weiter 2000) unpresent more Charter and the Campital Application (Lambored Weiter 2000) unpresent more Charter and the Campital Application (Lambored Weiter 2000) unpresent more Charter and the Campital Application (Lambored Weiter 2000) unpresent more Charter and the Campital Application (Lambored Weiter 2000) unpresent more Charter and the Campital Application (Lambored Weiter 2000) unpresent more Charter

No part of this publication may be reproduced, stored in a retrieval system, or transmitted in any form of by any means, electronic, mechanical, photocopying, recording or otherwise, without the prior permission of the publishers.

This is a work of fiction. All the characters and events portrayed in this book are fictional, and any resemblance to real people or incidents is purely coincidental British Cataloguingtio Publication Data. A catalogue record for this book is available from the British Library. Petures used for illustrative purpose only.

Certain Giadel products now be dangeroon if used incorrectly and Games Workshop does not recommend them for use by children under the age of 16 subsort solut supervisors. Whatever your age, be careful when using gives, bladed equipment and sprays and make sure that you read and follow the instructions on the packaging.

UK Games Workshop Ltd, Willow Rd, Lenton, Notingham, NG7 2WS

and and

NORTHERN EUROPE Games Workshop Ltd, Willow Rd, Lenton, Nottingham, NG7 2WS NORTH AMERICA Games Workshop Inc, 6211 East Holmes Road, Memphis, Tennessee 38141 AUSTRALIA Games Workshop, 23 Liverpool Street, Ingleburn, NSW 2565

INTRODUCTION

The Tyranids are an ancient race of hyper-aggressive aliens; a vast swarm of predators biologically adapted to kill and consume. Against such a consummate foe, even the mightiest of armies are naught but prey for the slaughter.

The Tyranids are a race of ravenously hungy aliens. They have traveled brough the cold darkness of the interpalactic void, hibernating for a cons in order to feed upon the planets of our galaxy. Now they have awakened, sinking their tendrik ever deeper into populated space like a galactic plague of locusts. Impossibly large swarms of scuttling creatures, winged horrors and towering monstroaids of file as they seek to slake an instathale appetite. The Tyranid face stommously learns and adapts, spawning new warriors and heasts of year to better defeat its foes. Unreleming and unstoppable, the Tyranid represent an unimaginable threat, not only to Mankind, but to the volke galaxy.

TYRANIDS

Of all the races in the 41st Millennium, the Tyranids are the most alten. Each Tyranid is a living weapon, a creature perfectly designed to fulfil its role. Driven by the gestalt consciousness of the Hwe Mind, the Tyranids overwhelm their prey with weight of numbers. Those that are not swept aside under a tide of razor-sharp claws and lethal biowcaponry fire are smashed asunder by gigantic alten monsters the size of battle tanks.

HOW THIS CODEX WORKS

Code: Tymniks contains everything you need to collect a force of Tymnik and devour your enemies in your games of Warhammer 40,000. Wichin these pages, you sill find the history of the Tymank sance they first invaded the galaxy and the desperate battles that have ensued as their investrable encreachment has pushed into the realms of other races. This book also contains rules for all the creatures and monsters at your disposal, as well as an army list that enables you to organise your collection of Cradel miniatures into a horder of the Hive Mind's surrior organisms. Finally, you will find a shoxcase displaying beauffully painted miniatures from the Tyrandis range, presenting the colour schemes of some of the most famous Tyrand have fleets to have invaded the galaxy.



WARHAMMER 40,000

I fyou are reading this codes, then you have already taken your first steps into the Warhammer 40,000 hobby. The Warhammer 40,000 rulebook contains all the rules you need to light battles with your Chiedde miniatures, and every army has its own codes with that eats as a definitive guide to collecting and using it upon the tabledop battlefields of the Warhammer 40,000 universe. This codes allows you to turn your collection of Tyranids into an unstoppable sowerm, ready to comsume the galaxy.





THE GREAT DEVOURER

The Tyranids are unlike any other race to be encountered by humanity. They are the ultimate predators, and all inrightings, from the lowliest insect to the most advanced exilisation, are nothing but their prey. Only now are the inhabitants of the galaxy realising the scale of the threaty unless the Tyranids can be stopped, it will mean nothing less than the extinction of all, the scale of the threaty unless the Tyranids can be stopped, it will mean nothing less than the extinction of all the scale of the threaty unless the Tyranids can be stopped, it will mean nothing less that the text scale of the threaty unless the Tyranids can be stopped, it will be a scale of the threaty unless the Tyranids can be stopped, it will be a scale of the threaty unless the Tyranids can be stopped.

The Tyranids are likened to a galactic swarm consuming everything in its path, feeding on entire worlds and leaving only dead husls in their wate. Their threat is such that an unprotected planet can be infested and stripped clean of all its organic material in a matter of weeks without even slowing down the greater advance of the hive fleet.

THE INTERGALACTIC PREDATOR

The Tyranids are not native to our galaxy; they have journeyed here by traversing the unspeakable cold of intergalactic space, where time and space conspire to hold galaxies apart with inconceivable distances. Yet the Tyranids have crossed this space nonetheless, moving through the empty darkness for countless millennia to reach the rim of our galaxy. Who can say for sure what could compel an entire race to make such an epic venture? Perhaps the Tyranids have already consumed everything of worth in their home galaxy and must find new feeding grounds or starve. It is possible that the Tyranids have been preying on galaxies since time immemorial and ours is but the latest to feel their predations. Some have even speculated that the Tyranids are in flight from an even greater threat, be it a galactic disaster or another fearsome race, and have risked the nothingness between galaxies rather than face extinction. Whatever the truth, for the Tyranids to have endured such a voyage must have required utter single-mindedness and unimaginable energy. During their journey, the Tyranids slumbered in a state of frozen hibernation, but now they have arrived, they have awoken and they are hungry.

THE HIVE FLEETS

The Tyrands are a space-borner race that have invegled their way into the realms of Man, as well as shoes of other xenos, like a disease spreading through a healthy body. The Tyrandis travel in great fleets of giganic living creatures that serve as spacecraft, each of which is home to comules lesser Tyrandi organisms grown in the bubbling organ-saces of the vessel's reproductive chambers A10 of these creatives are born to serve the single entity that is the ship, and the ship tell casts only as part of the centity that is the hefter.

When a hive fleet encounters a prey world, it does not invade for territorial gain or out of a sense of pride or vengeance. Indeed, it is doublful the Tyranids even comprehend such concerpts. Rather, they invade to harvest valuable biomass and feed their instatable hunger. The Tyranids require an endless supply of food, not only to noursh the hive fleets, but to grow new organisms. Therefore, when a hive fleet mweds a planet rich in life; every action of every Tyranid creature is honed to a single goal – the total and rapid absorption of that world's population, ecosystems and bio-resources. To this end, the hive fleet creates an army with the express purpose of overcoming the prey world's defenders before the planet is stripped of every scaped to biomater and decoured.

CREATURES OF THE SWARM

Tyranid warrior-organisms are creatures of visceral horror, implacable monsters with razorsharp claws, which can tear a man apart in the blink of an eye, and grotesque bio-cannons that fire hungry, parasitic projectiles into their prey's flesh.

Every weapon and projectile used by the hive fleets is a higing organism, grown from the reconstituted biomatter of previous invasions. The Tyranids have no form of mechanical technology and, instead, harness an advanced form of biotechnology to create organic equivalents of the tools, weaponry and ammunition used by other races. These creatures live in a highly symbiotic fashion, fusing into cachother's flesh so that it is often impossible to say where one Tyranid creature ends, and another begins. In this way, Tyranid warro-bases wield living weapons that are literally extensions of their own bodies, each one a killing machine, perfectiv adapted to slaughter its vicinis.



The bio-construct nature of the Tyranids makes them a terrible for to face, for their armise contain a creature specialised for every conceivable facet of warfare, which can be altered and regrown to suit a battle's needs in a short span of time. Thus can a hwe fleet adapt to generate a force capable of overvhelming any opposition, unleading a vast throng of ferocious alien monsters that can fly, run, burrow and stalk through the defences of any foc-

THE HIVE MIND

The Magos Biologis of the Imperium categorises each Tyranid hive fleet as a separate force, an individual entity that comprets with other hive fleets for resources. Indeed, each is self-sufficient, appearing to exhibit different strategies and developing unique creatures to overcome its prey. However, the truth is more complex, for each hive fleet is but a splinter of one greater assemblage. The Tyranids' numbers are vast beyond counting, swarms so large that they block out the very stars, yet each and every creature is but a single cell in the living hody of a single super-organism.

Every thought and action, every spark of life in the Tyrand race, is bound and interluked into a single unfathomable consciousness, a great entity that stretches across hundreds of light years of space. This gestalt sentitence is known as the Hive Mind. It holds all Tyraniski in a psychic bond that enables them to act together in perfect unison. Under the influence of this ancient consciousnes, the Tyranisch have fed on countles planets and devoured civilisations since time immerional. The majority of Tyrand organisms have no distinct minds as human would understand it, having beer created to perform a single task to the exclusion of all else. Unless the implacable wild of the five Mund instructs them to do otherwise, these organisms simply fulfill the functions for which they were created, acting on nothing more than instinct. Larger, more complicated, Tyrand beasts have been grown to make limited decisions appropriate to current stimuli and situations, but even these actions are subordinate to the goals of the live Mind.

The Have Mind's influence is strongest in the vicinity of creatures such as Tyranit Warrison and the forzer of Hore Tyrans. These beings are able to communicate with their km, not through halach they relay and channel the will of the Hire Mind. Under the command of such creatures, the Tyrands operate in perfect union, slaved to the perchic imperatures of a single communal intelligence. However, should the synapse creatures be slain, the link between individual creatures and the Hive Mind will be severed – many of the lesser organisms will rever to the baser, animalistic behaviours. For this reason, the Tyranid swarms do not have own a single commander, but many, to ensure the Hive Mind's synaptic control is maintained across the entire Tyranit race.

THE SHADOW IN THE WARP

The coming of a Tvranid hive fleet is preceded by a smohering psychic signal that envelops entire star systems and disrupts all forms of Warp travel and communication. Nealbowed up by psychic-static, whole world's audically go deathly silent, giving no clues as to what is unfolding on the surface below, or of what terrors are about to befall. This is the Shadow in the Warp, and it heralds imminent invasion and horror.

It is unknown if the Shadow in the Warp is created deliberately by the hive flexes, or if it is simply a bay-product of the Hive Mind's innate synaptic control. In any case, the Shadow in the Warp creates fear and paire wherever it falls, instilling a pervasive dread into the minds of a prey world's defenders, plunging entire planets into misery and despair. For highly psychic races, such as the Eldar, or for luckless psykers caught within this cnervating effect, the malaise is magnified tenfold. Should a psyker attempt to use his otherworldly abilities, the crebral cacophony worsens even further; the psychic sound of a billion alten thoughts scratch at his mind, and unless he is particularly strongwhiled he will be pitched into an insanity where he will repeatedly utter phrases in a tongue too alten to properly pronounce.

For races such as the Imperium of Man, whose means of interstellar communication and travel rely upon highly specialised psylers such as Astropaths and Navagators, the Shadow in the Warp is one of the deadliest faces of the Tryanid menace. Bereft of their means to call for reinforcements or safely navagate surrounding space, the worlds of the Imperium are casily isolated from the wider galaxy. This means that, by the time the Shadow in the Warp falls, it is already too late, these beleaguered planets are effectively on their own. They must fend for themselves and face the Tyranid swarm with the weapons they have to hand, or die in the atempt.

DESTROYER OF WORLDS

The Tyrands do not communicate with other races, and why should they do so' Tyrunid are as far above other life forms, such as Mankind, as Mankind is above the domesticated livestock it consumes. The Tyranids cannot be reasoned with, appeased or surrendered to. There can be no hope of merey from such a foce. To face the Tyranids is simply a matter of survival: kill or be consumed.

So far, the Tyranick have been decouring worlds in the Eastern Firinge, feating on the very borders of the Imperium. But with every passing year, the hive fleets push decept into regions of populated space whils still more approach from the intergalactic void and emerge from their aeno-long slumbers. The thought processes of the Hive Mind are gathering pace as more Tyranids wake and recall the ageoid purpose of their kind – feed, grow, surve.

There is a cancer eating at the Imperson. With each devale it advances deeps, heaving durand, deal worlds in its work. This ment, this advances in a strong durant duration with functions on an unimagnable, gulaters cale, and all we can do it by to be the worms of discongineerin moustic it underlash using using institut. We have genera the homera a name is subserve our form; we call it the Tyranid rate, but if it is any our of using a list in must house us only as Proj.

- And a have





registrade has a

FIRST CONTACT

Mankind's first recorded contact with Tyranids happened in early 745.M41, on the eastern outskirts of the Imperium. Up to this point, Mankind was wholly unaware of the new threat on its borders, and if any of the galaxy's older empires knew of the oncoming swarm, they did not see fit to warn the upstart Imperium.

For decades, since their arrival on the galactic rim, the hire fleets had comsumed worklow with no intelligent life, replenishing the reserves of biomatter expended during the long, slow crawl through the interstellar work. Now reinwigorated, the altens descended upon the larshlung Imperial world of Tyran Primus – an invasion for which the Imperium would thereafter name their race. Tyranids.

Tyran Primus was home to a heavily fortified Adeptus Mechanicus explorator outpost and was no easy prey. Given the outpost's position on the very edge of known space, and its separation from the Imperium's other worlds, it had been founded with both a garrison and armaments deemed adequate to deter the attentions of both piratical raiders and alien invasion. Four giant defence lasers stood guard over the Tyran Primus main base, each protected by void shield generators. This formidable firepower was complemented by an overlapping network of macro-cannon strongpoints, defence bastions and Icarus weapon emplacements. Nor was the planetary garrison lacking in strength. In addition to the Skitarii bodyguard of the outpost's commander, Magos Varnak, Tyran boasted three Endeavour-class space cruisers and an entire infantry regiment of the Imperial Guard. Such was a standard force for a frontier outpost of the Imperium, a design that had proven itself against a hundred adversaries. Yet here, against this new alien menace, this formidable arsenal would be sorely tested.

THE ASSAULT BEGINS

Tyran's defence lasers opened fire the moment the first bio-ships made orbit. The planet's storm-wracked skies were split again and again by incandescent blasts as the base's gunners desperately fended off the descending invaders. Then, just as the cooling systems of the defence lasers began to overheat, the invaders withdrew. Perhaps buoyed by false confidence, Magos Varnak ordered his small fleet to harry the withdrawing vessels, but this strategy soon proved folly. Penetrating the thick spore cloud that masked the alien fleet, the pursuing vessels discovered that fewer than a dozen bio-ships had been destroyed out of a fleet of several thousand. Having lured the cruisers away from Tyran, the hive fleet hungrily fell upon the Imperial vessels. The ancient cruisers lasted long enough to convey a warning to the Tyran outpost before leech-like pods gnawed through their hulls, unleashing hundreds of hungry aliens directly into their decks. The crew were slaughtered within minutes, leaving the doomed cruisers adrift in space.

When the hive fleet returned to Tyran, the defence lasers could not hold the bio-ships back. Thousands of invaders descended on the world, and though the planet's fortilications destroyed many, coundess other warriororganisms made it through the net of fire to reach Tyran Primu's surface. Within the hour, the first invaders reached the base's walls.

Jakab and the

THE DEATH OF TYRAN

Imperial Caurd officers belowed orders through the pouring rain, and in response, torrents of firepower synthed into the alien ranks. At first, the disciplined volleys drose the creatures back. Wave after wave of creatures were blatted apart, their corpuss choking the rain-lashed kill zones between the basitons. Then, the ourthern defence laser fell sitent; flocks of basivinged horrors had thrown themselves into its throat, their own charter corpses cloging the massive weapon. Moments later, the caster defence laser cased firing as a lowering alien gaint of chittan dim duscle raind demolished its coolant lines. One by one, the outpow's defences fell, and there was no way to hold back the next wave of attackers.

In moments, thousands of aliens were rampaging through the outpost, destroying everything in reach. The base's last defensive fortifications were swiftly overrun and the Imperial Guardsmen within butchered. Whilst a few pockets of resistance still held out under the watchful gaze of a Commissar, these were vastly outnumbered, surrounded, and quickly torn apart. Only Magos Varnak's command bunker remained; its ceramite walls cracking and its adamantium gate buckling under the impact of massive alien claws. Finally, the great gate crashed inwards and fanged nightmares poured into the breach in its wake. A few remaining Skitarii fought back with flamers, but the aliens swarmed through the searing fires and hacked their way onwards. Varnak knew that escape was impossible. All that remained was to warn the Imperium before selling his life as dearly as possible.

Unable to transmit a message by means of astroidepathy, the aliens having cut off all psychic communication. Varnak compiled a data-codex containing Tyran's records. With only seconds left, Varnak shot the codex plummeting into space before whispering a final prayer and activating the sarred self-distruct rune of ending, annihilating the entire outpost in a catackysmic Jaskan explosion.

Tyran Primus was lost. The First Tyrannic War had begun.

We cannot live through this, Mankind cannot live through bits. In a single day, they have covered this planet with a flood of living balles and meells fanged mouths. Kill one, and the tables is place. If they are truly without mumber, then our race is dooned to a violant doubt before every shard of our vivelisation is secured away by a foremer covariassus than the first of held thereafers.

> Death! By the Machine God, Death is here!' - MAGOS VARNAK, LAST WORDS



PHASE I: INVASION

Tyranid spores choke the atmosphere. They then blacken as clouds of winged horrors dive from above. Soon, the prey world is seehing disgorges a swarm of creatures into its ecosystem. Hordes of Tyranid vanguard warnor-organisms make planetfall and churn across the world's surface, driven by he impulse to feed. The shies turn red as When a hive fleet locates a suitable prey uverid, it descends to the planet and ath Tyranid creatures





PHASE II: PREDATION

slaughtering the planet's inhabitants like cattle, strange alten structures begin to grow to threats with overwhelming numbers, expending lives by the millions to ensure all opposition is removed. If this fails, the hive Is the swarms flood across the landscape, on the surface, which start poisoning the world's cosystems. The Tyranids respond fied creates fresh new waves of Tyranids, which are each specifically adapted to vercome any defences that remain.



PHASE III: CONSUMPTION

are unleashed to cover the planet, consuming every scrap of flesh, every blade of vegetation remains of fallen Tyranids, all are consumed so that its biomatter may be recycled and the defeated, uniting tides of feeder-organisms and every drop of moisture. Nothing is left to waste, especially not the corpses littering these are the bodies of slain defenders or the the battlefields of the prey world. Whether Once a prey world's defenders have been hive fleet replenished.



Having gorged themselves, the Tyramid deter-organisms raturn to large digstion pools where both they, and the biomatter they have devened, are dissolved into a rich biological grund that is funnelled up through Tyranid's orbiting bio-ships. When the culting assimilated, the Tyranids more on in search of fresh feeding grounds, leaving a scoured, lifeless wasteland behind. is complete and every shred of biomatter is PHASE IV: ASSIMILATION vast capillary towers and absorbed by the

ТНЕ ВЕНЕМОТН

Having scoured Tyran Primus of biomass, the alien hive fleet moved on in search of other worlds to feed upon, pushing its tendrils ever deeper into the galaxy whilst the death screams of an entire world went unheard.

Were it not for a single man – Inquisitor Kryptman – the face of Tyran might have gone entirely unnoticed. After all, the galaxy is a big place, mysteries are commonplace and the Imperima is a solve to react as only a monolithic bureaucracy can be. Whilst in time many other Inquisitors, including such distinguished mannes as Czevak, Agmar and Lak, would come to realise the true threat of the Hire Mind, were it not for Kryptman, its very existence would not have been known before it was already too late. Indeed, whether through a quirk of face or out of some investignatic mistint, Kryptman's decision to personally investigate. Tran's mysterious silence proved viata to the Impertuni's survival

A GRIM DISCOVERY

By the time Kryptman reached Tyran, a year had passed since the attack. At first, the Inquisitor could not equate the husk of a planet he found to ocean-bound Tyran Primus. The world had been sucked dry; every scrap of vegetation and every drop of water was gone. A crater was all that remained of the Adeptus Mechanicus outpost, and all that could be found of the planet's cruiser fleet were acid-eaten hulks; icy shells devoid of life and adrift in space. After a long search, Inquisitor Kryptman recovered Magos Varnak's data-codex, the knowledge contained within it bought with the life of an entire planet. What Kryptman saw when he reviewed the fragmented data was a dire prophesy of doom; static-laced images of scythe-limbed aliens, footage of the skies over Tyran turning black with swarming monsters, and orbital pict-views of a fleet of living ships so vast that the stellar horizon was veiled in inky blackness. Kryptman felt hollow as he realised what he had discovered. Not wasting another moment, the Inquisitor set forth to warn the galaxy of the oncoming horror from beyond the stars, a horror he named 'Tyranids' for the doomed world they had consumed.

Kryptunan ordered his Astropath to send a warning to the Imperium, but the psyker could not penetrate the Warp turnoil left by the passing of the alten fleet. Even the nearby Thandros telepathica booster matrix was obscured. In desperation, Kryptunan set course for Thandros in the hopes of re-establishing communications with the Imperium there.

THE FATE OF THANDROS

It was on this voyage that Kryptman realised the scale of the Tranaid thera: Following in the live flex's wake, Kryptman discovered a string of barren worlds that records indicated should be verdant and hush. Reviewing a decade's worth of planetary survey data, Kryptman saw a pattern emerging. He was able to plot the huse flext's course by the trail of decat and lifeless worlds it had left behind. There was no sublety to the hive flext's approach, no sense of strategic genus. It merey ploughed through the galaxy without stopping, decouring everything in its path with a rapacious topping, decouring everything main from glenn when we discussed by tradition, Kryptman codified the new alien threat with an ancient and forbuilding name from legend: Behemoth. Though Kryptman's ship made good speed, the Tyrands had attacked the Thandros system and moved on long before his arrival. Thandros vas not as well protected as Tyran, and was similarly unable to hold back the warms of Tyranic horrors but railed against them. The telepathica matrix was found to have empired all of its turret magazines and burned out its defence laser crystal before being overrun. Thandros had fought bravely, but its populace had been slaughtered.

A VOICE IN THE DARK

With Thandrois lost, Kryptman's quest became critical. The next system in Behemoth's path was Ultramar, and unless forewarned, the Imperium might lose its best chance to stand against the Tyranid onslaught. With haste, Kryptman salvaged the telepathica marity and through a herculean effort, his Astropath finally managed to patree the Shadow in the Warp to contact the unsupsecting imperium. The Astropath, nose and ears bleeding from the effort, broadcast Kryptman's warming. One voice spoke back from the dark, and it came from Macragge, the heart of Ultramar and the home world of the Ultramarines Chapter of Space Marines.

The Ultramarines had heard Inquisitor Kryptman's call, but the message was gabled and incomplete. The Space Marines knew that a dire threat was approaching, but they did not fully understand the true nature of their foe. Knowing he would have to deliver his report in person, Kryptman's ship strained to follow the guiding light of the Astronomican through the swrifing energies of Warp space. At times, the undersow left by Hwe Fleet Behemoth threatened to lose the Inquisitor's ship in the Warp, but the Naviggator avoided every whirtpool and rupide suft consumate skill, and Kryptman somehow arrived at Marcagge abaed of Hwe Fleet Behemoth.

Inquistor Kriptman met with Marneus Calgar. Chapter Master of the Utimamines, beneath the portice of his white mathle palae. Calgar stood as a giant before the Inquistor, his stature grand even among the superhuman warners of the Space Marines. Calgar Istened micruly, but Kryptman's terrible discoverise did not disturb his noble demcanour. Nothing escaped Calgar's notice, not one detail about the foe that could be turned into an advantage. The Fleet Behemoth was fast approaching, and the Utramarines Chapter prepared for the greatest batle in their history.

An alten threat has risen from beyond the abyss, a swarm so vast that it blots out the stars. This horror fights neither for power nor territory, but rather to feed a hunger so insatiable that it will eventually devour the entire galaxy.

INQUISITOR KRYPTMAN

the state of the s

TYRANID BIO-SHIPS

Tyrand bio-ships are enormous space-summing creatures, whose grotoque (forms are endeds in wardy and Junction. No hio-ship is truly a single organism, mither, each is a complex composite of ducars, if not hundreds, of different creatures. Every part, every organ and externity, is a specificity designed bio-construct operating under the single, unified consciousness of the bio-ship is def.

The largest bioships dwarf even the battechips of the Informal Nong. Their auder within and percent with matter catera, and grapping tentacles the largest of him-shires seek auti marsk to be finder apart and named into infossibly voit, durining mass. Nor are bioships defractess at range, for many passes grant biocenamos that spit goals of acid and other stranger projectios across the vacuum, debitating their proy before closing for the hill.

Many Tyranid ships an incredibly old, having travelled through the intergalactic woid for acons. Moving together in great shoat, bioships hibernate as they traverse space. The wast majority of Tyranid organisms within a ship's cuvernous innards also be in a domant state – thousands of warrows relativas are neukated within polds that line the vessel's nproductive chambers. These shepping horors are but a definer force, wannihum (in case the bossbut) comes under attack A small number of senirs (rentum seculite through the boschap's anterial pausagenosys, searching for invasters like an invanue system. If any should be found, a telephatic sagnal is sent that anadors their kin from their shumber. A fee foolsh enough to about a Tyranu like sub-the will some only thought is the protection of the ship.

ACTURAL

Astief from the sentrics, the only other creatures moving acound within the miles of arteral passages and tules that makes up a Tyranish bioship are lesser creatures that perform mindles, repetitive duties to how the ship health jarting it is long passage. Some exist purely to est a new unwanted genesits and dead tissues, others to transfort fluids from one part of the ship to another, a favio for distance arguing and the ship to another, a favio for distance arguing and the ship to another, a favio for distance arguing and the ship to another, a favio for the ship for nears a prey world that the bio-ship strins to full wade/dutes. The Hww Mind's influence spreads through the ship and individual arguing shi into life in response. The bio-ship begins to create thousands, if our millions moverative organisms in pelaparation for the invasion, digestive tracts the size of cities granibling in anticipation of the fost to come.

hit but

BATTLE FOR MACRAGGE

When Hive Fleet Behemoth arrived at Macragge, the Tyranids found it fortified against them. This was no isolated frontier world, neither was it an ill-defended relay system to be overwhelmed in a brief but vicious struggle. This was Macragge, the Imperium's buhwark on the eastern rim and home world to an entire Chapter of Space Marines.

Thanks to Inquisitor Krypman, Macragge had been warned of the Tyranick, and Marcnus Galgar bent his legendary strategic skills to buttressing Macragge's already formidable defences. Space Marine Strike Cruiters and Batle Barges Joomed like grgantic azure monoliths annongst the Ultranar Defence Fleet and the planet so torbial weapon platforms; Macragge was surrounded with a ring of firepower. Another for would have been damited by the assemblage of might that now guarded the capital world of Ultramat, but the Tyranick same on without delay. The first waves of bioships sweept past the defences, intent on reaching the planet below. Each vessel was targeted and climinated in urn by massed firepower, but not before delivering clusters of bioorganisms to Macragge's surface.

Transits warmed over the planet's frozen landscape, and the Ultransites were quick to respond. For a time, Calgar's forces slowed the tide, trading territory for time as they whitled down the oncoming swarm, dividing the rampaging hordes and staning the snow with alten ichor. Yet even under Calgar's cladenship, such tactics could only last for so long against such numbers, and the Ultramarines were soon forced into making a stand at Cold Steel Ridge.



THE SWARMLORD STRIKES

The Hive Mind had learnt from the Ultramarines' tactics, and having identified Calgara such main threat to the Tyrania davance, it unleashed its deadliest servant to bring about his end – the Hive Tyrant later classified in Imperial records as the Swamilord'. Under the influence of the Swarmlord, the Tyranit's primal fury was coupled with keen Tyrands circumvented fire zones, ambushed enemy countertacks and concentrated on weak points in Calgars' line that could only have been perceived by a military genius. The Ultramarines were in danger of being overwhelmed.

With the foe recling, the Swambord extended its will and ten thousand altern minds answered. Reveness and Trygons burst from the chill ground in the midst of manned trenches, forming a will of writhing bodies that separated the beleaguered defenders from Calgar's main force. By the time the UUramarines cut through the subternanean swams, the trench network was a charnel of gore overrun with Tyranist. The UUramarines purged them with fire, bur in so doing left the Swambord's true target – the mighty Banebalde *Puleo Hima* – without infantry support. A save of Carnifexes tore the super-heavy tank apart and with its destruction, the western flank was lost. On the exactern lank, Calgar cursed binnself for underestimating this for. Under the Swarnhold's dominion, the swarm was adapting to defeat Calgar's tactics as quickly as he could concreve them. Knowing that staying on Cold Steel Ridge would waste more lives, Calgar ordered his forces to fall back to the orbiting Battle Barge Ordenwas, All the Ultramarines needed to do was to hold out long enough for Thunderhavk Cumships to arrive and extract them

Somchow, the Swarmlord sensed Calgar's intent to escape, and with an ailen a brick, it plunged into the first, Beside the Swarmlord came a host of elite warrico-organisms, and together they cut a path directly towards their quarry. Seeing the danger heading towards their Chapter Master, the Ultramarines hastened to his aid but found themselves assailed from all sides as the Swarmlord urged hordes of lesser creatures to intercept the would-be heroes. The swarm fell upon the Ultramarines with blind fury, undanted by the space Marines, but it would prove enough, Calgar would have to face the Swarmlord and its bodynard alone

Calgar fought like a hero of legend, but there were simply too many focs and he was finally laid low, his body rent and torm. Calgar's last strength was expended in mortal combat with the Swarmhort tuself, and the Hive Tyrant towered over the Space Marine, blades raised to deliver the killing blow. But the fact a trick never like relatives, Calgar's Honour Guard broke through the mass of Tyranids to throw themselves in front of their wounded Chapter Master, axes of Ultramar flashing in the cold light as they slowly drow the Swarmhord back and shielded their lord with their own bodies. Through valour and scrifice, they held the warm back until the Thunderhawks arrived to evacuate the surviving Ultramarines. Marneus Calgar would not the this day, but Cold Steel Reidge was lost.

THE WAR IN SPACE

Yet if the battle on the ground fared poorly, the war in space was proving disastrois. The first Strand assault wave had claimed the mighty Battle Barge *Caesar*. The third wave saw the destruction of the better part of Ultranar's Defence Fleet. By the time the ninth wave was hunched, Macrage's orbital defence stations were bloody rounds, mere hunks of debris left spinning in space. Macragee now lay undefended, and the Tyrandi invasion intensified.

A fresh wave of bioforms handed on Macragge, bringing a new stage of the planetary assault directly to the prey world's polar fortresses. However, the war in space was not yet concluded. Refusing all but the most vial medical aid, Calgar took command of the remaining ships and turned their frequers to the orbiting hive fleet. The Hive Mind responded as it had done before at Tyran Primus, windfrawing its biovessels from the planet to lure the prey



world's defending fleet into a deadly trap. Calgar took the bait, and pursued the hive fleet to the ringed world of Circe on the edge of the Macragge System, but not without a plan of his own.

As Calgar approached Circe, a second shoal of bio-ships concealed in the plane's ring launched themsethes at the battered fleet. However, the first salvoes had scarely been exchanged when Battleflet Crempestus entered real space on the far side of Circe - it was the Tyranids' turn to be caught in the jass of a trap. Even so, the fighting was fierce, and only the desperate sacrifice of the Domina Atta swing the battle in the Imperium's favour, the great Emperor class battleship detonating its mighty Warp engines and creating a catachymic vorce that draged many hive ships to oblivon. Caught between the guns of two Imperial fleets, the remaining bachymic vertes what storyed soon after.

THE BEHEMOTH FALLS

In truth, Hive Fleet Behemoth was defeated at Carce. The only question that remained was whether Macrage would be lost in the process. Whils hattle raged in space, the valuer of the Ultramarines was being tested as near before on the surface. The veterans of the 1st Company led a tenacious defence of the polar fortresses, holding every wall and battlement. When their bolyguns ran dry, the Space Marines waitched to their pistols, when they too ran out of ammunition, they fought with chainswords, combat blades or seen bare fiss, but not caree did they yield. Only at the batt possible moment did the veterans fall back to their fortresses' hears, prepared to a self. When the fleet-bound Ultramarines returned to Macrages, they found a landscage subsunced by carnage. Though a few survivors were found in the run of Macrage's southern fortress, none were discovered in the north. The 1st Company had died there to a man, fighting backto-back against the full fury of the swarm, their bodies swamped amongst mounds of the Viranid dead. Though the Ultramarines had defeated Behemoth, they had been dealt a blow that would take centuries to recover from.

The body of a Hive Tyrant believed to be the Swarmford was found on the corpse-littered ice fields outside the northern polar fortress, but the damage it had sustained made it impossible to identify with certainty. Rumours persist that the beast had somehow escaped edash and that the Tyranids would one day return. It would be decades before the truth was revealed.

"As I looked into its dead black eyes, I saw the terrible sentence it had in place of a soul. Behind that was the steel will of its leader Further still, I could feel its primagenitor coldly assessing me from the void. And looking back from the deepest recesses of the alien's mind, I perceived what I can describe only as in immortal hunger.

man and a second a secon

We can slay the Tyranids on our worlds, blast their fleets from space, grind their armies to form and ruined fragments. But their hunger? That is beyond our ability to slay. - VARO TICOURS, UTRAMARINES CONF LIBRARIAN

and the second of the second of the second s

fred the date to

THE FIRST TYRANNIC WAR

589.M41 THE SIN OF DAMNATION The Genestealerinfested space hulk, Sin of Damnation, is cleansed in a close-fought series of assaults by the Blood Angels 1st Company. At the time, none are aware that the Genestealers are the vanguard of an imminent galactic invasion.

Vinter T

C. 730.M41 THE BEHEMOTH ARRIVES A vast fleet of alien bio-ships enters the galaxy on the Eastern Fringe

739 M41 THE FLIGHT OF MALAN'TAI Warned of the Tyranid onslaught by far-flung bands of Rangers, the Farseers of Craftworld Malan'tai opt to remove themselves from Behemoth's approach whilst there is still time to escape.

745 M41 THE DEATH OF TYRAN

746 M41 KRYTYMAS'S QUEST Whilst investigating the mysterious silence of Tyran Primus, Inquisitor Kryptman learns the horror of the alien threat. Kryptman names the aliens 'Tyranids' and races to warn to the Imperium. c. 746.M41 THE THANDROS INCIDENT The binary worlds of Thandros offer little resistance to the oncoming Tyranids and their citizens are slaughtered in the darkness of their own mines.

749.M41 BEHEMOTH ADVANCES Imperial Explorator Fleet Dorsari, the world of Helmont and the Moons of Ra'pson all fall before Behemoth's inexorable advance.

C. 752.M41 THE JAGGA WAAAGH! Behemoth falls upon Jagga, pirate base of Kaptin Blackgit. The Ork Kroozers that form Blackgit's fleet launch boarding parties to storm the encroaching bio-ships. The tide soon turns when the rampaging Orks awaken the Tervigons within each ship, which spawn countless broods of Termagants. The Orks are swamped and the Termagants then flood back through the Orks' own boarding tubes to slaughter the Kroozers' crews. Blackgit, sensing defeat as the communications from his fleet abruptly end, attempts to escape by ramming his ship through a lone bio-vessel blocking his path, only to fatally discover it is a starship-sized spore mine.

752 M41 PRANDUM DEVOURED Prandium, the jewel of Ultramar, proves an easy and bountiful conquest for the Tyranids. The barren rock left in Behmoth's wake is scarcely recognisable as the once verdant paradise of yore.

the states

7:3 MJ TH: SYMM SACAGATER The Choice Renerged workhand known as the Death Shadows musters at SyMm in preparation for a accret strike against Ultramar. They are isolated when the Shadow in the Warp envelops the system, and their warlord, the Sorcerer Mlalog a diwn'to in samsib the the Tymath's pecking presence. Leaderless and in the midst operparing for an assault of their own, the renegates are unprepared to defend SyMm from the warm. Though they reap a high tally, the entire working simulilated in test sthan an hour

754 M41 THE PURCE OF YMGARI. The Salamanders conduct a xenocidal campaign to purge the moons of Yingarl of Genestealer infestation. Though the Salamanders suffer heavy casualties, the moons are finally declared scoured, or so they believe. 801-807 M41 A NEW TIBEAT Hive Fleet Naga, a relatively small Tyrand fleet, descends upon the Ybaric Cluster and consumes several minor races on the edge of Ulumeathi space. Its progress does not noticeably slow.

to a la parta

801-808.M41 A CRV FOR HELP A string of Eldar Exodite worlds and maiden worlds fall under the shadow of Hive Fleet Naga. The Eldar craftworlds of Idharae, Jyanden and Malan'tai despatch fleets to their aid.

809.M41 THE SERPENT WOUNDED The leading elements of Hive Fleet Naga are caught between the warfleets of Idharae and Malan'tai. Naga splinters into two tendrils.

755.M41 AssAULT ON CALTH Bio-ships seed Calth with invaders before rejoining the hive fleet at Gree. Though few in number, the Tyranids are led by a great Carmifex that wreaks havoe until it is shot in the skull by a Commissar.

Andrew and a lot

-

757.M41 BATTLE FOR MACRAGE Hive Fleet Behemoth reaches Macragge. There they face the entire Ultramarines Chapter, who ultimately seize a bloody victory. Behemoth is effectively destroyed. 810-8311 Mp1 Thr War root Hastrare The Hasphio Pfander's Het is destroyed shifts attempting to piece the Tyranid blockade on Halahdrel. Primee Yrel assumes command and defeats the remaining bloships, but it is too late to save Halahdre's Kodoite protectors. Overwhelmed by rage and grief, Yriel orders the planet to be scoured of all life lest a single Tranid survive, before unbing to rejoin his kin at Eth-aclas.

20681 2: M41 ETHALLAS BESIFICID Corriered and outgamned, the second, smaller tendril of Hive Fleet Naga is cash; destroyed by Eldar pulsar fire, but not before its bioships seed Evicaelas with warrior-beasts. The Eldar forces make planetall to seek and destroy the remaining Tyranids on the surface

789 MJ, A MONSTER REAVALTS The body of a one-cycl Carnifes is discovered encased in ice on Catila Though believed to be dead, the creature awkens and butchers everything in its path. Hundreds of Fyraid creatures that had been lurking in Catila Stalymnthine cave systems emerge and flock to the Carnifes Stade. A tables of its rampage reach Macragge, the Ultramarines depath & Sergeant Telonion I hunt down the monster terrorising Califa's populace. 459812.M41 THE SOUND OF DOOM A psychic scream echoes through the caverns of the webway as all contact is lost with Craftworld Malan'tai.

and drawn to

S60812 Mq1 NACA DTFATTD YIR15 forces arrive at Ethaclass and immediately join the Edata already fighting on the planet's surface. After a string of bloody victories for the craftworld's combined withouts, the last Hive Tyrant is skin at the battle of Sorrowforge Pinnacle. The survivors of the warm are left ledderless and easy prey for the vengeful Eldat. The majorny of Hive Fleet Maga a destroyed, though there will be many further battles before all of its constituent parts are wiped out. The Eldar learn first hand the horror of the Treat date.

820.M41 The BELLY OF THE BEAST Mortifactors Space Marines board an isolated hive ship believed to have survived Behemoth's destruction. The Space Marines suffer ninety percent casualities, but eventually slay the giant bio-vessel.

850.M41 THE ANPHELION PROJECT An Imperial taskforce, sent to investigate a covert project which studied captured Tyranid life forms, is ambushed and decimated by monstrous alien organisms.



THE KRAKEN

For more than two hundred years after Hive Fleet Behemoth's rampage, the Imperium was relatively untroubled by the Tyranids. Though several smaller hive fleets passed into the galaxy in that time, they primarily vented their fury on alien worlds, leading many to believe the Tyranit demace was all but ended. Nothing could have been further from the truth.

By early 990.M41, a new Tyranid invasion had descended upon the Imperium, and it was named Kraken. Where Hive Fleet Behemoth had fought as a single massive wave that advanced and fought as one, Kraken was actually a series of smaller fleets that moved to attack many worlds simultaneously. Not only did this compound the Imperium's difficulty in opposing the hive fleet, it spread the Shadow in the Warp tenfold. Whole sectors were silenced simultaneously, isolated by the Hive Mind's choking influence. Only months after the onslaught had begun did accounts begin to reach the wider Imperium - grim tales of skies turned black by clouds of poisonous spores and of hulking monsters, ripping and slashing with murderous claws. Stories of billions of creatures swarming across the face of a world, devouring everything in their path. Whole populations had been subdued or wiped out in a single night, and those taken alive had envied the dead.

THE TENDRILS OF KRAKEN

Seen on a galactic scale, Hive Fleet Kraken was attacking across a front that covered thousands of light years, making a cobesive defence impossible to mount. The Imperium was forced to concentrate its forces on the most strategically important worlds, whilst others were evacuated or simply abandoned to their fate.

There were some glimmers of light in the darkness however Several Space Marine Chapters enderaoured to save those worlds the Imperium had abandoned. Some, such as the Ilamenters and the Scythes of the Emperor, pat do their boldness with heavy losses, their once proud Chapters reduced to a few scattered remnants, whilst die Kughts of Eternity seemed to have been entirely wiped out. Others carried the battle to the Tyranish in the manner that only Space Marines could, boarding hive ships and blowing them part from the inside. Yet no matter the effort the Imperium made, the Tyranisk were too many, and they drove ever onwards into the galaxy.

ICHAR IV

Fortunately for Mankind, Hwe Fleet Kraken did not remain spread our indefinitely, and many of its tendhs converged on Ichael W, a hive world that some years carlier had been the site of a Genestcaler infestion. Thousands of classed Bends burst from the underhives in support of the invading Tyranids, groug lie to claims that the infestion had been Genased. Defence perimeters were quickly occurs by the seutling horrors that had lurked patiently in hiding forso long. In the confusion, ever more Tyranids made planetial—not merely the Termagants and Gargojets that Mad composed the vanguard of Behemoth's assuts, but monstrous Exorrines and Tyraunofexes in scores. Worse still, goan thoutann now stakled across the surface of the belesguered planet. The Tyranids had descended on Ichar IV with everything at their disposal. Despite its woes, Ichar IV was not yet lost. Forewarned by the previous infestation, Marneus Calgar led the Ultramarines to save the Ichar system, inflicting crushing losses on the Tyranid armada in space and in the classrophobic environs of the towering bive cities. Veterators of the First Tyranic War made planefall and scoured Ichar IV's hives in a series of close quarters buttles shat laked almost a full year.

In a replay of history, Marneus Calgar faced none other than the Swarmolf – a reincarration of the same beast that had haid him low on Macragge – during the final battle for lehar V. This time, however, it would be Calgar who emerged trumphant, slaying the beast in an epic duel. Without the Swarmlord to counter Calgar's military strategy, the Ultramarines finally cast the Tyranids from the world. Vet victory had come too late to swar lehar W, which was now little more than a smoking charnel-blouse of death and destruction – a world scientificed to that the Imperium might endure. Perhaps worse for the Imperium, the Hire Mind absorbed the Swarmlord's conscionses again, and having learned from its own death, its next reincarnation would surve prove the most dangerous yet encountered.

THE SPLINTER FLEETS

The scattered remnants of the Tyrania datack on Ichen IV field towards the galactic ore, driving well within the deface permeters drawn against Huve Fort Kwhen. These sphare first have, if anything, become an even geneter drawn as they feel upon unsuspecting and it-defended worlds for from the upon versionse. Thousing battles with the sphare first facts have continued for many years since Korkey's passage, duraining the galaxy's defences against later incursion. It is doubleful if he true extent of the devastation caused by the hive fleet will even be hnown.

Splitter flots can comprise as from as a doorn hive ships, but even a doorn bioships are more than capable of overrunning a world and harvesting its biomass to become a yet greater threat. Some have become so large as to be classified as a new, distinct have flet. Indeed, Huve Flet Magaloon is groun from one of Kraken's sundered lendris, and continues to ravage the Inperium to this day.

Doubles, the Tyrands have learnt much about the inner galaxy's defines (nom these phiner first: Every built the Transite sugger in, now or foat, adds to the Hwe Mind's everymoning understanding of its prey. Was this Hive Fleet Knehn's true goal all along? Who can say? It is pendage informable to believe that the Hive Mind had this very eventuality Jhanned from the onset, rubte than to enterism the only other possibility'. that the Hive Mind has the strategie wit to turn even its defacts into victions cheadence.

test and a later

DOOM OF THE ELDAR

At around the same time that one tendril of Hive Fleet Kraken was hattling the Imperium on Ichar IV, another was approaching lyanden, one of the largest and most populous of the Eldar craftworlds. It would be here, amidst eldrich architecture and within wraithbone halls, that the most bloody conflict yet between Eldar and Tyranid would occur,

Though lyanden's run-casting Farseers had foreseen echoes of doom upon the future, the first proof of the Tyranid threat was reported by the craftworld's Rangers. A large tendni of Hue Fleet Kraten was headed directly towards Fonden. It was too was to outrun and no mere battle line could contain it. Farseer Kelmon, spiritual leader of lyanden, declared that all sould have to fight together if they were to stand a glimmer of hone. The entire craftworld made ready for war, and in a sacred tittal, the Avatar of the Bloody-handed Cod was awakened.

THE WALKING DEAD

Even with every Eldar on Isanden armed, the swarm that approached will vasily outnumbered the defenders. With a heavy heart, Kelmon ordered the ghost warriors to be brought forth. In an act considered by many Eldar to be akin to tomb robbing, the spint stones of lyanden's ancestons were plucked from their resung places and placed in the warahbone shells of war-constructs to fight alongside their sull-living children. It is a testament to the terrible their sull-living children. It is a testament to the terrible ther sull-living children at its forced the Eldar to commit such a distasteful act. Without the ghost warriors, the Transit's would have overschemed the cardioved, but by waking them from death, Kelmon risked the accumulated wisdom, cultural and racial memories of byanden tself.

Gather the dead for war, let them join our ranks, lest we are forced to join theirs." - FARSTER KELMON

THE SHADOW DESCENDS

The first Tyranid swarms attacked lyanden twenty days later. By then, the craftworld had already been isolated for over a week by the Shadow in the Warp, and a dark malaise hung heavy in every Eldar heart. The Tyranids approached the giant craftworld like a vast shoal of sharks, thousands of bioships attacking in unrelenting waves. Iyanden's formidable space fleet destroyed each wave in succession, but the ability of the craftworld's forges to repair and replace lost spacecraft was outstripped by the viciousness of the deep space battles. The Eldar do not fight wars of attrition by choice, and slowly, craft by craft, the Eldar succumbed and the jaws of the Great Devourer closed in on the craftworld. Then, lyanden was hit by two huge attack waves in quick succession, swarms that dwarfed all the other assaults combined, and the remaining floulla of Eldar vessels was swept aside. The bloated Tyranid craft blotted out the stars as they descended onto their quarry, vomiting forth armies of hideous creatures into Iyanden's unspoilt havens. A horrific psychic scream resounded around the craftworld's infrastructure as seething hordes of clawed, scuttling aliens were disgorged into its heart.

THE KRAKEN STRIKES

Battles erupted all over lyanden, the fighting bitter and close ranged, with enemy forces often only separated by the width of a corridor or wall. Eldar Guardians fought bloods hattles with vast numbers of Termagants, shuriken fire and fleshborer maggots screeching through the air with equal lethality. Eldar Aspect Warriors and Wraithguard attempted to slice their way through massed swarms of Genestealers and Tyranid Warriors that blocked the arterial corridors like a vile cancer. Above curved halls, Swooping Hawks and Gargoyles fought a deadly aerial dance whilst sleek Eldar jetfighters and bat-winged Crones exchanged roles of hunter and prey at breakneck speeds amidst alabaster spires Carnifexes wrestled with ancient Wraithlords as Trygons battled towering Wraithknights. Graceful Phantom Titans duelled with grotesque bio-titans, slaying each other over a spore-choked surface. War even raged beyond the material realm as Zoanthropes and Warlocks engaged in mighty psychic duels. The Eldar had no place to hide, no sanchurr the Tyranids could not breach and no warrior or weapon of war that the aliens could not match. Soon, the Eldar's Walking Dead outnumbered the living.

The Eldar warriors sold their lives dearly, exacting a terrible toll in Tyranid corpses, but it was not enough. First the Fortress of Tears fell, then the Shrine of Asuryan was destroyed. Most terrible of all, the deeply spiritual Foress of Silence were ravaged by the Tyranid hordes. It is suid that many of the Eldar wept tears of rage and sorrow to see the damage inflicted on their precious forest shrine, realising that they now stood on the brink of extinction.

THE PRODIGAL SON

Word of Jyanden's peril managed to reach Prince Yriel, despite the psychic barriers isolating the craftworld. Though Yriel, exiled long ago from Tyanden, had vowed neeve to return to the place of his birth, he could not abandon Jyanden in its darkest hour. Tempering his indignation, Ynd and his fleet made best speed to the battle.

Like the huming spear of Khaine, Yriel's forces thrust drough Hive Fleet Kraken's blockade and struck deep not an admeter enveloping handlen. The renegate prace as an admeter and survivors of lyanden's Beer, the Eldar rupped the heart out of the Tyranid swarm. Yriel prevented any mer of Kraken's spawn from reaching the wounded craftwohl, whiles simultaneously coordinating counterstinkes on the largest biovessels. Kraken launched wos further saves but both were destroyed. Bloodied but unbowed, Yriel's forest would overwhelm them. Minutes passed into hours as the flar shape stand ther itse dearty, for savely another wave would overwhelm them. Minutes passed into hours as the next assuit, but it did not come. The space-borne have fleet fuel been defeered.



TO SLAY A MONSTER

flores

STE TAK

Under Fyanden's skies, the battle for the craftworld's soul sull raged. The Tyranids now runned like cornered rats and hurded themselves at the Eldar with renewed ferocity. A massive Hive Tyrant led the frenzied horde, and neuther shurken nor sword blade could pierce the mouster's hide. Wherever the beast attacked, the Eldar were butchered, and across the craftworld, the Tyranids were breaking through, sweeping aside pockets of resistance. The final confrontation was at band, and victory was within the Hive Mind's grap.

Amidst the carnage, the Avatar stepped forward. With a growl akin to an crupting volcano, the fiery warrior roared a challenge to the Hive Tyrant, but instead of meeting the iron-chaf figure, the monster urged its minions to attack. Not one, but a doren Carniferse stampedel towards the flamewreathed Avatar Under such an assault, not even the embodiment of the Bloody-handled God could preval

With the Avarar lost, the last vestiges of hope ebbed from the Eddar. But, in an act of looply that restored Yrite as a here of his people, the Raider Prince and his forces disembarked from their ships to reinforce Fanden's survivors. The Tyrands were on the verge of overrunning the Eldar lines when Yrich bimself plunged into the fray welding the cursed Spear of Twilight. This ancient weapon, locked in stasis by Fanden's seen; was a weapon of such power that it would eventually burn out the He-force of any who wielded it. That yield was sufficient to seenface not only his life, bur also his immortal soud, was a testament to the drastic measures that bad to be taken in order to defeat the Tyrandie. With one fluid motion, Wriel thrust the Spear of Tsilight into the Hite Yran's spanje maw and out through the back of its chitinous skull. With a howling scream, the Tyrnat collapsed and died a triviel's feet. The last echoes of the monster's death shrick signalled the defeat of the alien horde. With their synaptic conduct severed, the remaining Tyrantic cased to attack as a united wave as they reverted to their base institutes. The scattered alien invaders were systematically hunted and eliminated in a series of vicious one-adde batters. The Fyrand tatack on Tyrander was over

THE COST OF VICTORY

The victory on handen was a hollow one indeed, for though Kraken had been defeated, lyanden stood in runn. Fourfifths of lyanden's population lay dead – a terrible blow for the declining Eldar race. Amongst the shain lay Farseer Kelmon, surrounded by the bodies of a dozen Tyranids whose forms bore the marks of paychic free. Wores still, all the sould within those spirit stones that had been destroyed by the Tyranids were lost forever, Fynaden would never truly recover. The Eldar had learned a painful lesson and would never again underestimate the threat of the Great Decource

Hive Fleet Kraken was now little more than splintered fragments of its former might yet credit by neither entirely with the defenders of lyanden nor the actions of the Ultramanities on Lichar W. The Eldra and the Imperium had been fighting as unwitting alles – had Kraken not struck lyanden, the Ultramanities 'victory at Lhar I' Would have been impossible, and vice versa. Had either Ichar W or lyanden fallen Kraken would have been unstoppable.

THE GORGON

Kraken was not the only hive fleet to plague the galaxy in the vake of Flehrmoth. Several smaller hive fleets were also sitting their tendrils into the Eastern Fringe, and though they only lightly encroached upon the Imperium's domain, the emergent Tau Empire was not so lucky and soon found itself rightling a war against extinction itself.

Hive Fleet Gorgon, like numerous other Tyranid fleets – meluding Naga, Chimera and Scarabus – was first thought to be a splintered tendhi of Behemoth and not a hive fleet in its own right. Even so, such a distinction is only significant of one forgets that all the Tyranida are ultimately under the direction of one omnipresent sentience. The Hive Mind was testing the defences of the galaxy, probing for a weakness it could exploit and seeking new races to devoue. During its search, it had tasted the flesh of the Tau, and now it hungered for more.

The Tau were first alerted to the oncoming hive fleet when several outlying infaning planets were mysteriously silent. Soon, a handful of refugee ships escaped to bring word of the alten horrors that had devoured their world. All attempts to establish peaceful contact with the Tyrandis met with bloody disaster, and the Tau Fire Caste finally responded by deploying numerous warrior caffees to halt the onslanght.

Despite its relatively small size, Hire Fleet Gorgon posed a dire threat to the unsuspecting Tau. Gorgon still possessed ships enough to overwhelm the Tau space fleese parelling the borders of their territory, and could unleash untold waves of warroor-organisms to overrum a planet. It was not because of its numbers, though, that Hire Fleet Gorgon would prove so dangerous. More so than any here fleet encountered before or since, Gorgon possessed an ability or applivd adapt to new circumstances on a biological level, emerging from every lost battle with a new clutch of organisms perfectly suited to overcome the foes that had defeated their predecesors. It would come to define the very nature of the war against the Tau. adapt or die.

FLESH AGAINST TECHNOLOGY

The Tau chose to draw the line on the forest world of Sha'draig. Other outlying colonies were simply evacuated as the shadow of Gorgon loomed, abandoned so that the Tau could concentrate their forces instead of over-extending themselves across dozens worlds against a numerically superior foe. The Tyranids' first assault on Sha'draig was an overwhelming failure. The Tau patiently waited for the rampaging hordes to close within optimum firing range before felling hundreds with every volley of their pulse rifles. The few large Tyranid organisms that lumbered forwards were systematically felled as Tau battle tanks engaged them at extreme range, sniping the monsters with pin-point ion cannon fire before they ever got within range to use their monstrous claws. A few Tyranids managed to weather the storm of plasma fire, but even these ran headlong into the waiting guns of Tau battlesuits - their bodies blown apart as they were targeted by multiple heavy weapon systems. In their naivety, the Tau believed their technology was proof against anything the Tyranids could throw at them. Then, another wave of attackers reached the surface of the heavily forested planet.

In response to the powerful pulse rifles of the Tau, Hive Fleet Gorgon restructured its warriors' carapaces to better absorb plasma bursts; the weapons that had proven so murderous were robbed their efficacy. When one shot had slain a Hormagaunt before, two, or even three hits were now required to fell a foe. Worse, towering monsters with giant bio-cannons cradled in fused limbs on their backs now stalked the landscape, hunting Tau tanks at range and blasting apart the Broadside battlesuits that stood sentinel over the beleaguered Tau. In desperation, the Tau fell back under the covering fire of their Kroot allies, whose solid-shot sniper rounds still proved effective. Protected by the cover of the forest, the Kroot were able to keep the Tyranids from getting to grips with them, and their sharp-eyed marksmen slowed the advance of the swarm. But then the Hive Mind unleashed a new wave of creatures; bloated beasts whose dorsal weapons spurted gouts of flame to burn their pres from their wooded sanctuary. Beside them came lithe, snake like creatures to whom the tangled undergrowth of the forest was no hindrance. They darted between boughs to pounce on the survivors, tearing them apart in an eveblink

The Kroot died in their thousands, but their sacrifice longht the Tau enough time to regroup and refit their hattlesuis. The Tau began to equip their squads with protopy missle pods and experimental rail rifle weaponry, ballsness that the Tyranids Han on before encountered. The war shifted again in the Tau's favour as these new weapons carved furrows mit the Tyranids ranks, and though hard fought and bloody, the second assault was ultimately thwared. Gorgon proved an implacable for though, and with its second defeat, the cycle of adaptation began ancew.

When the Tyranids next swarmed across Sha'drag's surface, the Hire Mind had spawned gangrel creatures to fit in the midst of its swarm, cruiting thick Colouds of choking spore that masked the hordes' approach. Plasma and solid shot alike were useless when no target could be seen, and only the missiles of retrofitted Broadside hattlennis worked with any efficiency in the obscuring gloom. Their barrages saturated large areas, and every explosion blasted scotts of 'Tyrands to ash. Soon, however, the ground beneath the Broadsides' feet rumbled before tunnelling Mawica ban's from below to swallow them whole. The Taw see now too few to make an effective stand, and with a leavy heart, they abandoned Sha'draig to the Gorgon and fell back to the seyth world of Ka'han.

Never have I faced a tide of fors that can alter both strategy and flish to hasten our downfall. Swift as these beasts adapt, we wait be swifter, for if we fail, the Tau Empire will drawn in its own blod. - STASTE VORCAM OF KYLSIAN



FLIGHT TO KE'LSHAN

and ber C Water als on their 3 that stady ton the last 2 Con Vice in otered in them op the Trees Cred Bo hen the Harles and been to obm tan CR CER H TERMIN IN then had ALL DIN

histor

and how

16410

Though the Tau fleet was pursued by dozens of bioships, only a handful of carlex vestels were boarded and destroyed before the Tau successfully punched through the Tyranid blockade Unaffected by the Shadow in the Warp, the Tau's ZR Horizon drives propelled their ships at near light speed through realspace, and arrived safely at Ke Ishan. It took the Tyrandis many days to traverse the same span of space, and for the first time in months, the Tau hoped to have a chance to catch their breath and recuprete.

However, upon arriving at Kelshan, the Tau found the sept world embrodied in a war against the Imperium of Man. With no time to waste, the Tau fleter fell upon the interlopers, but the Imperium's task force was no mere radiding party. A dozen Imperial Guard regiments of the famed Cadian 18th were already dug in on the planet's surface and determined to reclam the world in the name of the Emperor. Battle ragged for three full days, and all the while, Hive Flete Gorgon came ever closer.

STRANGE ALLIANCES

It was the Imperium's forces who first detected the Tyranuka entering the Kerlshan system – the mad habilings of the Cadian's Primaris Psyker alerted them to the approaching danger Faced with a common enemy, the Imperial Guard finally listened to the Tavi's calls for a casafire and agreed upon an uneasy truce. For one of the few times in recorded hotory, Imperial Guardsmen and Tau Fire Warries stood, if not shoulder to shoulder, then at least as brothers in arms, against the Tranids.

Acting in concert, the Imperial and Tau fleets cut deep into Gorgon's vanguard. Though casualties were heavy, the allies destroyed a majority of the bio-ships, severely reducing the Tyranids' reproductive capacity. The few remaining bio-ships fled the system after deploying their swarms to Ke'lshan's surface, but the Tau pursued, determined to end the threat forever. Meanwhile, on the surface, the allied forces held the line against the Tyranid horde. Three Imperial Guard regiments and two Tau cadres were overrun in the initial onslaught, but the disparate weaponry and tactics employed by the allies prevented the rapid adaptation that had plagued the Tau on Sha'draig. Slowly, the allies' guns drove the swarm back, and during the Battle of Worldspine Ridge, the last Hive Tyrant was slain, leaving the leaderless beasts to be purged with relative ease. Though the alliance with the Cadians ended soon after, Hive Fleet Gorgon was defeated.

Aliens they may be, but I'd rather take my chances with the alien I know, fust make sure they stay between us and those. . things.' - CASTELLAN CRASS OF THE CADIAN 18TH

Gorgon would have a lasting legacy for the Tau. Seeing how quickly their technologies had been circumvented, they stirved to make new weapon advances. It would be over a century before the Tau were forced to face the Tyranids again, and it remains to be seen whether their latest weapons of war are enough to withstand the Hive Mind's instable hunger.

set find a find

THE SECOND TYRANNIC WAR

807 M41 THE GORGON STRIKES Hive Fleet Gorgon invades the space of the Tau Empire, thrusting the young race into a deadly battle of survival.

Vigter Pr

c. 990.M41 THE KRAKEN AWAKES Hive Fleet Kraken invades the Eastern Fringe and warkens from its long slumber. The Diatan, Salem and Veridian Sectors fall silent as the Shadow of the Warp envelops them.

015990.M41 RAVENS AND KRAKENS Originally despatched to rescue the remaining population of the planet of idos, the Raven Guard 4th Company are instead ordered to launch a desperate surgical strike in an attempt to defeat the Trranid swarm ravaging the world.

156901 M41 THE MARTYRDOM OF SALEM Confronted with the horror of live Fleet Kraken, the monks of the asteroidmonastery of Salem choose to poison themselves and their carefully-lended ecosystem with necrotising rotweed, rather than allow their purified flesh to be consumed by the advancing Tyramids. 2 # 25001. M41 The Textus RumELION The plane of 10 hear W crupts into rebellion as a faction known as the Brotherhood overthrows the planetary governor. Soon after the fighting breaks out, Inquisitor Agmand, despatched from the Inquisitional fortress on Talsas Prime, Leads his battle forces into the planetary capital of Lomas and discovers that at its heart, the rebellion is harborning a massive Genestealer infestation. Realising the forces under his command are insufficient to combat the threat. Agmar sends an urgent plea for assistance.

signor Mat CLANNER or Fortan IV Responding to the Inquisitor's report, the Ultranarines Battle Barge Ostimu arrives in orbit, carrying two differents of Space Marnes alongade elements of the newly founded, but under strength 1st Company. The Ultranarines lead the attack into the heart of Ichar IV's planetary capital whish regiments of the Inperial Guard advance in support. The Janet is hongoit back under the heal of the linepring within there weeks of bitter fighting, and the victors report all trace of the Genestealer infestion has been cleaned from Ichar V. 689991 M41 THE PRICE OF COURAGE As part of a century-long crusside of penitence, the Lamenters launch an articagainst Hwe Fleet Kraken, fighting a series of hopeless battles. Whils their herois slow Kraken's advance for a while, the Chapter is brought to the edge of extinction by the borrendous exaulty rate influenced upon a

750991.M41 MORTREX OVERRUN The Imperial world of Mortrex is overwhelmed by unrelenting tides of Ripper Swarms.

777991 M41 THE LOSS OF CERES XIV

S01901 M41 The Jawe on Diract Kraken sinks its teeth into the mining wold of Devian. The Imperial Gand's carefully prepared defences proce useless agants assaults from henerals be tunnelling Tyranid creatures, spearheaded by a monster honors to the penific populace as the Red Terror. Due to the sacrifice of Lamenters Space Mannes. the Tyranda ser held back long enough to evacuta a few million colonsts before Devian is consumed. 025992 M41 THE DEATH OF SOTHA Kraken invades Sotha, homeworld of the Seythes of the Emperor, who are overrun by the Tyranids. The Chapter is decimated and the few survivors reluctantly evacuate to Miral Prime to regroup with their offworld forces.

C.t.T

Calification of the

THE OWNER

Car and

the liter

Cabala

12 x 12 , 10 3

n Oraza

107902-MJ MYTTRY OF Abul's Hore A refuge ship from Devlan arrives in orbit around Adu's Hope, ominously silent. Those investigating the ship find is to be a blood-drienched abattoris – all aboard mercilesky butchered. Though a breach of quarantine is suspected to have allowed a found. Three weeks later, all contact is lost with Adu's Hope.

25505 M41 GOTTH'S LAST STAND Franceps Goche of the Imperator Titan Methalm Objetos single-handedly manages to hold back a tendini of Hive Fleet Knaken on the ash-choked plains of Horst Prime. The mighty war engine is finally destroyed when a brood of Hierophant bio-titans pounce on the noble machine like a pack of wild dogs. In the frenzied attack, Metalum Objetari plasma reactor is breached and the resultant explosion vaporises everything for a mile around, leaving behind a crater that is still wisble from orbit – a testament to the sacrifice meded to fight the Tyraniok 45:1928: M41 Th: Distance, or Minac, Imperial Gand regiments and the Space-Marines of the Synches of the Emperor Chapter barely hold out against Vyranida on the death world of Minal Prime. Against the onslaught, the Imperium's forces as forced to fall back to a huge rock mesa known locally as the 'Gann's Coffin' to make a defanal tas stand. Here, the fight daily against raging hordes of Tyrainds. Despite their heroics, the Seythes of the Emperor suffer catastrophic casualities. Faced with the total destruction of their Chapter, the Space Marines reluctantly retreat, leaving Winal Prime to the Kraken.

650992.M41 THE TROPHY HUNTER Eager to add to his burgeoning collection of skulls, Roghas Bloodhand, varlord of a World Eaters warband of Chaos Space Marines, leads his maniacal host into a headlong attack against a tendril of Hive Fleet Kraken.

849092:M41 TO STERE A BLOW Though too late to save the rain-frenched bastion world of Eoreshia from a splinter fleet of Hwe Fleet Kraken, Space Marines of the Deathwatch successfully plant nucleonic charges within the innards of the massive Tyranib hoship at the centre of the fleet as it feeds upon the dying planet. Upon the charges' detonation, the entire splinter fleet falls into disorder. c. 992. M41 THE FALL OF IXANDEN The Eldar craftworld of lyanden is subjected to a series of massive Tyranid attacks. The once mighty craftworld musters cervy warrior at its disposal, living and dead, and is soon embroiled is desperate fighting against wave after wave of Tyranid organisms.

992-993 M41 Thr. Kuckurs Strings Several tendhis O Hue Picet Karken converge on Ichar IV: The full might of the Ultramarines answers Ichar IV's call to arms, and once again, the Hwe Mind responds by unleashing the Swamhord. The experience of Ultramarine's Vecterans from the First Tyramic War proves decisive, and Sowby but survey, Kraken's grip on Ichar IV is severed and the Tyramids are scoured from the world.

991-MJ Thr SPEINTERS of KRAKS Following the view defeats at their IV and lyanden, the scattered remnants of Hwe Fleet Kraken flee towards the galactic core, driving well within the defensive lines drawn to combat the Tyranid threat. Though the Kraken as a single entity is defeated, these splinter fleets, varying in size from a few dozen, to a few hundred bio-ships, continue to be a dire threat, preeng pon Ildefended workhs to this day



THE LEVIATHAN

At the close of the 41st Millennium, the largest and greatest of the Tyranid hive fleets descended upon the galaxy. The Hive Mind had learnt well the lessons of its carlier invasions, and this new fleet, Leviathan, employed these teachings to the detriment of all other life it recountered.

Once again, it was Inquision Kryptman who alerted the High Lords of Terra to the new Traind have fleet, one of terrible size that he named Leviathan. Where the other hive fleets had attacked the Eastern Fringe, striking the galaxy edgeon as they emerged from the intergalactic word, this new hive fleet appeared to have skirted the galactic rim, and was now attacking upwards through the galactic plane.

As with Kraken before, Levatahan did not focus its forces into a single killer blow, but attacked across a hord front. Levatahan's tendnils stretched across the segmentums Uluma, Tempestus and even Solar. By the tume Inquisior Kreptman could raise the alarm, Levatahan had already advancet far, and the Shadow in the Warp that herafded its coming had orphaned dozens of worlds. The worlds of Valedor and St. Caplien chad attacady been lost, the forge world of Grephonne IV - home of the mighty War Grephons Titan Legion - had fallen ominously silent and the agri world of Tarsis Ultra was embroiled in a bloody battle for survival. The morale of the Imperium's forces began to plange as more worlds were consumed, and with every planet devoured. Levathan greve stronger.

A DRASTIC MEASURE

With a grim finality, Inquisitor Kryptman ordered that a galactic cordon be established. His plan was that a band of worlds should be exacuted a cross the path of Lexiathan's main advance, with many of them razed to the ground in order to deny the hive fleet any further raw materials for its ships. This would slow its advance long enough for Battlefleets Solar and Tempestus to muster. Any worlds, already under inwasion within the bounds of this cordon were to undergo Exterminatus just at the point when the Tyramids descended to feed upon the doomed populace. Kreptman theorised that, using this method, the swarms would expend great resource to clam a world only to have every living thing upon it reduced to ash by barrages of cyclonic torpedees and virus bombs. With on estre and callous decision, Kreptman had condemned billions of souls to extermination. To this day, it remains the single largest act of genocide ever inflicted upon the Imperium by its own forces since the Horns Herces.

Kryptman's decision to abandon hundreds of Imperial worlds in the face of the alien advance was met by howls of outrage by his peers. His butcher's bill was deemed intolerable, and many influential Inquisitors called for Kryptman to be declared Excommunicate Traitoris. When dozens of the cleansed worlds were claimed by the everexpanding Orks of Octarius, Kryptman's detractors cursed him for a radical, a traitor and a fool. A Carta Extremis was issued, stripping Kryptman of his title and forcing him into exile as a criminal of the worst kind. However, the fact remained that the inexorable advance of Leviathan had slowed to a crawl. Kryptman had bought the Imperium time, that most valuable of commodities, at the expense of a hundred worlds. He had resolved that the many lives he had to sacrifice would not be lost in vain, and had put into action a plan aimed not merely at slowing the advance of Hive Fleet Leviathan, but at dealing it a fatal blow.

KRYPTMAN'S GAMBIT

Non and and

Despite being cast out of the Inquisition, Kryptonan could not elondon this ight against the Hire. Mind, A.L. Scrinthan continued to dynard its tendrits into the Informar, The former Inquisitor clasmed that he could not only defail. Levinthan, but in doing so, he could rid the Informaria of the galaxy's valencies. Though morely of his for remaining after labeled him a food, it could not be denued that he understood the Tyravisto as other did. But, at the Informani would lacari, understanding an enemy such as the Tyravista, and controlling it, are two equally infossible things.

Determined to prove his theories right, Kryptman planned to use a tendrel of Lexistanta to denimate the Ork Empire Of Cotarius. The Imperium had long been embroiled in an ever-escatating war against the Orks in this regroup of splace, and despite huge influxes of srinforcements - resources that Kryptman devaal work have been better served fighting the Tyrainst- the Orks were dominating the war. Kryptman's gamble was to change the balance of posce forever. Entisting and from a spatial of Deathquick Space Marmes who will had fut in hum. Kryptismus coptured a tice breed of Tyranuk and then loaded them onto Perchism's Eleme, a space hub that had energed from Warp space aload of the approaching hive fleet. As the Tyranids awake from stass, Kryptism destroyed the moon of Ghest, and in doing so, discreted the hub's trajectory towards the Orks. Within weeks, the Tyranid infestation had spread to dozens of works. The Wer Mind had sampled a new forlang ground, and in reports, a tendrif of Leviathan werd bounds Octarias. At first, it appeared that Kryptism's gambe had succeeded.

- the hand is

A: Tyramik and Ork fought on endless wor acons the sector, the Inperum was content to the that alm forces upic each other out. However, both Orks and Tyramids are mees that thrive on wor. Generskin Jlocked in Joan the fight from light years around, and every Oh deround provedid yet one bomass to feel the growing Tyramid swarm. It soon became apparent that Krythann hat and idelord the investidath, for whichever aliens energed from the conflict as victors would do so stronger than ever before.

Stor Tom

WAR IN OCTARIUS

Kryptman had lured Hive Fleet Leviathan into the Ork-held Octarius Sector in the hope that the two alien species would annihilate each other. Where another race would have been terrified at the approaching swarm, the Orks were jubilant – alier all, they live for a good fight. Only time would tell if, in the Tyranids, the Orks might finally have met their match.

The first world of the Octarius Sector to feel Lexiaban's hunger was Orrok. Abore the Orks' settlements, thunder rumbled and the skies turned from blue to black as hioships entered orbit. Weirdboy psykers began to gibber in fear - something was clawing at the backs of their brains, something with an infinite hunger focused upon the Orks like the eye of a starving predator. Then the souro Broke.

THE DEMISE OF ORROK

Millions of warrior-organisms swarmed across Orrok. To the Ork mind, the best form of defence is to beat the enemy to death, so it was not long before a tide of greenskins crashed headlong into the oncoming Tyranid swarm. Thousands of altens of both races died in a matter of scends as blades and fangs sank home. All semblance of strategy was lost, replaced by blind farr, but the Orls' enthusasm for war could not defeat the Tyrandb' overwhelming mumbers. By nightfall, every single greenskin on Orrok was dead, their bodies reconstituted and chamelled back to the orbiting bioships to create yet more Tyranids. Death had come to the Ottarius Sector.



THE WAAAGH! WITHOUT END

Dozens of worlds were soon crawing with Tyrands, and every time the skies darkened, the Orks planuside would work the other of the orks planuside would hands and grinning fitterely as for once, the fight came to them. The greatest battle centred on the planet of Otaria itself, heart of the Ork empire. Billions of Orks and Tyrands clashed over Octaria's mountainous terrain, host forces sending a near constant stream of reinforcements into a grinding war of attrition. The ground underfoots turned inno a crimison mulch of spit blood and alien ichor. It was togal unremitting, endless violence, and the Orks loved it

The battle for Octaria continued to escalate, and neither side had a shortage of numbers. Orks streamed in from distant sectors to join the fight of the century, and Tyrand hue-ships produced fresh waves of warriors as quickly as they could assimilate biomass. So it was that, as the war on Octaria raged, Leviathan was forced to seek out nearby proworlds whose biomass could be fed into the meaginginder

THE GHORALA SWARM

In their search, a handful of Leviathan's scout ships happened across the world of Ghorala, a planet rich in bomass and base to Skarfang, Pirate-Warboss of the dreaded Skar Fleet. This mighty, if ramshackle, armada fell upon the bio-ships before they could react. The Trivanid Breet was all but distoyed under Skarfang's guns. However, amids the carmage, a single bio-ship Droke through the Ork blockade, pouncing on the planet as a starving man might sauth at a scrap of bread. Alone blood and vicera split into the vacuum of space, but in its death throes the bio-ship delivered several broods of Tyranids to the world's surface. Skarfang grew glum a he realised the battle was over, and he resolved to join the fight on Octaria, as the few Tyranids that had made planetfalls were soon stomped out.

THE SWARM SURVIVES

For the first time since the Tyranids had invaded the Octarius Sector, they found themselves embroiled in a war where they were vastly outnumbered by their prey-Skarfang's horde was mighty, and somehow, the Tyranids sensed that a war of attrition would only end in their demise In response, the Ghorala swarm adapted in order to survive At first, the Tyranids stalked and preved upon isolated Ork patrols, but the greenskins soon took to scouring the landscape in mobs too large for the fledgling swarm to face. Forced to abandon their guerrilla war, the Tyranids adopted an altogether more cunning strategy and engaged the Orks in the open. The Tyranids attacked without thought of survival, every action aimed at maximising the carnage. Despite the Tyranids' frenzied attacks, the Orks' superior numbers gave them the advantage in these brutal skirmishes. Whenever the Tyranids were on the verge of being overrun, they would, in cerie unison, switch from

hyperactive sharghter to hasy retreat. The Tyranids lurked in nearby cavers or else burrowed beneath the soli to shelter from pursuant search parties. In the dead of night, synapse creatures remustered the scattered swarms to the corpuse-choked battlefield. There, the Tyranids fed on Ork, cadavers and Tyranid carcasses alke, before returning to digestion pools secreted in the planet's rocky mess. Slowly but sarely, the Tyranid's numbers started to grow.

SKARFANG'S FURY

a d Gila

aldin a

Habel

the ale

Contrainte

dis ant

O Z GILDO

that, a tir with cell ou cath (the perigram

- HE

As the Tyranid forces swelled, they changed their methodology yet again, growing more aggressive and seeking out ever larger concentrations of Orks. Though the Tyranids' reward for their victories was ever-increasing masses of bio-resources, the increased violence soon attracted the bored Skarfang to the surface to join the fray. Wherever Skarfang's guttural war-cries were heard, the Orks attacked with renewed vigour. Even when the Tyranids looked to be on the cusp of victory, the Warboss was able to turn the tide, bellowing blood-curdling threats that encouraged his Boyz to get stuck back in. The Tyranids were being pushed back by the resurgent Ork front, slowly the swarm was being trampled to death. Despite the Tyranids' earlier success, there was little chance that they could face a united Ork force of such magnitude and survive. Whilst Skarfang lived, the Ghorala swarm was doomed.

Dis ain 't no stinkin' scrap against puny gits dat run and hide behind walls when the killing starts, dis is proper fightin ' - PirATE-WARBOSS SKARFANG

DIVIDE AND CONSUME

In response, the Tyranids created Lactors with the express purpose of climinating the Oxk Warboss. Within days, the Lactors had tracked their eminent quarry, but Skarfang's packol of Squig-bounds foiled all attempts to get close enough to assassinate their target. Although eternally patient, lying in wait for a chance to strike down their target was a luxury the starving swarm could ill afford. So instead, they created an opportunity

Following pheromone traits, a scutting tude of Hormagauns was thrown at the Ork incs. As the Orks roused to man their rusy barriades, Tyranid Warrion willed the scutting masses to withdraw. Skarfang's frustration rose to infuriation as the Tyrands repeated these feints, approaching from different directions to within an arm's length, then withdrawing before the Orks could realiate C on the tenth such retreat, Skarfang's temper could take no more. With a roar, the Warbos ordered his mobs to pursue the retreating swarms. Soon, Black smoke was belching skywards as Battlewagons and Trakks runbled after the swarm. The Tyranids had succeeded in goading the Warbos, separating him from the bluk of his fores and luring him into an ambush.

The Tyranids had spawned broods of Venomthropes to blanker the greenskins in a thick, toxic fog. As the Orks pursued their quary, they rode headlong into the sudden, blinding mist. The entire convoy ground to a halt as vehicles skidded into rocky outcrops or else lost control and ploughed into each other. Coughing and hacking,



those Oris that hadn't choked on their own blood pulled themselves from the vereckage. Skarfang linuseff stumbled across the battlefield and happened across the tentacled beast responsible for creating the noxious cloud. As he vented his anger on the venomus creatures, the fog receded and the eviscerated corpess of Oris surrounded the Warhoss. Lictors had stalked through the blinding cloud and dispatched the unwary greenskins one at a time until only Slarfang remande. The Lictors closed on their true quarry, surrounding the Warhoss in deathly slence. Reving in chainblade into life, Skarfang charged the nearest with a roar of definite. He managed two steps before a dozen mutishke claws pierced his form and fore him sauder.

With Skarfang dead, it was not long before ying Orkboxes started fighing annongst themselves to fill the power vacuum. The Orks were soon divided, and the disparate bands became easy prey to the united Tyranid swarm. Each was isolated and destroyed in quick succession, and withm days, the Orks on Ghorala had been slaughtered like cattle. The Tyranid sporged themselves on their flesh.

THE SWARM REBORN

From the digested remains of Ghorala, the swarm created new bio-ships and set forth to rejoin the hive fleet at Octaria, the biomas it had consumed destined to fuel the next phase of planetary invasion. Though the ward for Octaria rages still, one thing is already clear despite the machinations of Kryptinna and the ferotivy of the Orks, Lexiathan shows no signs of stopping. The Tyranids are not only surviving the Octarian Wark they are thiving in it.

sent hand a la

THE FALL OF SHADOWBRINK

As Hive Fleet Leviathan drifted into the deadzone left by Kryptnan's executions, the Tyranids found world after world reduced to empty shells. Yet one planet, the cathedral world of Shadowbrink, still stood defiant. As the Hive Mind districted out is mighty tendrist to claim Shadowbrink for its wom, it could not know the horrors its hunger was about to mleask.

When the order to evacuate reached Shadowbrink's rulers, they stood paralysed with indecision. Their orders from Segmentum Command were clear, and there could be little doubt that Shadowbrink faced the onrushing fury of a sizeable tendril of Hive Fleet Leviathan. Yet beneath its swooping gothic spires and macromausolea, Shadowbrink's capital city of Rossov concealed a terrible secret. In a vast sepulchre, buried deep beneath the city's streets, there lurked a ring of obscene archeotech dating back to the Dark Age of Technology. Upon its discovery by Inquisitorial acolytes, some three decades earlier, the foul relic had been christened the Maelstrom Cradle. Emitting a steadily strengthening Warp-signature and fluctuating patterns of empyric overbleed, this evil device had resisted all efforts at destruction. Thus, a permanent garrison of Grey Knights had been assigned to stand sentry over it, performing daily rituals of warding while their Librarians worked to permanently seal the potential daemonic rift. With the onset of Hive Fleet Leviathan, it appeared the Grey Knights had run out of time, yet their leader - Brother-Librarian Cadulon - could not permit evacuation while there was a chance the rift might burst asunder. Were Daemons allowed to spill through onto Shadowbrink, there was a very real chance that the Imperium would be faced with a major daemonic incursion on top of the woes of attempting to battle Hive Fleet Leviathan. This was a threat that Imperial forces could ill afford. Employing his authority, Cadulon instructed Shadowbrink's Governor to refuse the order to evacuate his people, instead commanding that the defences be readied to repulse the approaching Tyranids.

VES-SPAT

TO THE LAST MAN

Shadowink was an important world, its populous cities replete with ancient and priceless relics. As such, it did not stand helpelses before the Levahan. Alongside the planet's civil defence forces and fraters militia were two full regiments of Cadian infantry and another of Vostroyan armour, not to mention the small but detadly force of Grey Acaduoh humself. In orbit, Shadowink was watched over by three mighty orbital defence platforms bristing with lance and torpedo batteries, and an attendant squadron of no less than six Cobra Class Imperial Destroyers. Yet as the planet's deeppace scanners began to fill with an evenincreasing blizzard of bloodred contact closus, it became apparent that such a force would not be arything like lancing to weather the oncoming storm.

To their credit, Shadowbrink's orbital defences survived over three hours before being overwhelmed. Yet soon cough, the Cohrs and orbital platforms were reduced to empty hulks, their frantic defenders butchered by vast waves of Crones, Harpies, and spore-borne Tyrania warbeasts: As the skies darkened above Shadowbrink and the mindcuruling Shadow in the Warp coccooned it in horror, billions of Tyranid organism descended upon the stricken planet. Tides of mindless organisms overran the Imperial trench-lines, the Hive Mind spending the lives of its minose at a merciles rate to ensure the prey world's swift dening. Valiant Guardsmen stood shoulder to shoulder until the last, yet none could withstand the onslaught. All across Shadowhink, in every major settlement and eity, the same scene was repeated as outmatched defenders vanished screaming beneath heaving tides of class and fange.

At the last, as the numberless Tyranich hordes spilled into the vault holding the Maelstrom Cradle, Cadulon and hus handful of followers strode to meet them. A pair of Neneus Dreadknights led the charge, vast blades hewing zenos monsters apart in droves, yet even these noble champions could not survive forever against the swarm. One by one, Cadulon's brethern fell, their definit war cries replaced by a sickening crunching as the Grey Knights' corptes were hurriedly desoured. Yet as the Tyranids swept from the wall to begin their consumption of the shughterd world, they were oblivious to the sulphurous runes beginning to smoulder on the Maelstrom Cradle's flanks.



FROM THE MAELSTROM'S HEART

Mere hours after Cadulon's hopeless charge, the fate that the Grey Knights had striven to avoid came to pass. Gorged on the spilled souls of millions of dead humans, the Maelstrom Cradle roared violently to life. Crackling corposant danced around the vault and the bilious, migraine-hued light of nightmares blazed from the heart of the Maelstrom Cradle. Amid cacophonous gibbering and inhuman shricks of anticipation, daemonic legions boiled from the widening rift. Coalescing from thin air like hideous, animate tumours, a vast tide of Warp-fiends spilled up through the tunnels and catacombs below Rossov city to erupt onto its corpse-choked streets. Wading through the tide of lesser Daemons came a mighty warlord of each Chaos God. The Bloodthirster, Hak Vasha, roared Khorne's praises as the Great Unclean One Shub'Luth'Gug lumbered forth alongside him, chuckling in a wet and rumbling baritone. Slipping more cautiously through the rift, the Lord of Change K'rix'xi'kra watched keenly as its old rival - the Keeper of Secrets Lesh'Jae 'Thi'Hah - loped ahead in search of adoring victims to slay. This cabal of mighty Daemons - known in Imperial Dacmon-lore as the Quadrifold Abominatum - had brought low a myriad of worlds during the Imperium's ten thousand years, and had set their sights upon Shadowbrink as their latest twisted conquest. Yet it took only moments for the lords of the incursion to sense that something was very much amiss.



THE WRATH OF THE WARP

> As the daemonic horde ran amok through Rossoy, their momentum faltered. Where they had expected cowering mortals upon which to feast, they found only a charnel house of piled corpses that writhed with gnawing Rippers. The buildings were tumbled ruins, and the city was smothered by a blanket of muffling psionic static that caused the Daemons to flicker and fade. Casting their otherworldly perceptions across Shadowbrink, the Daemon lords' confusion turned to outrage at the seething tide of aliens that choked the surface and skies. These creatures had no souls to corrupt, manipulate or twist. They could no more be led into damnation than a lump of rock. Yet the Tyranids' mere presence was a challenge that the Daemons could not ignore, and if the daemonic legions must first exterminate these proliferate vermin before turning their attentions to the Imperium, then so be it. With thousands more daemonic foot-soldiers pouring from the Maelstrom Cradle every minute, the Abominatum prepared to unleash their minions upon the Tyranid swarms and scour them from the face of Shadowbrink. Warp energy flared forth in roaring waves, causing the very stones of Rossov and the flesh of its fallen to writhe. As reality convulsed, an insane citadel rose into being, a fitting seat of power from which the Abominatum would prosecute their war of extermination.

SLAUGHTER ON THE PLAINS

Until this point, the Hive Mind had utterly ignored the emergent Daemon forces. While it recognised that a psychic disturbance of some magnitude was occurring on

the planet's northern landmass, the gestalt consciousness of the Tyranid swarm detected neither fresh biomass nor a direct challenge from this strange phenomena, and deemed it irrelevant. However, this bizarre instinctive standoff was not to last, for the minions of the Dark Gods revel in the destruction they can wreak in the material realm Millions of Daemons poured from the gates of the impossible fortress that rose from the grave of Rossov. Thundering Bloodcrushers and trilling Fiends crashed into grazing swarms of Tyranid organisms, hacking left and right with gleeful abandon. Plaguebearers and Nurglings spilled across Shadowbrink's northern plains in a tide of shambling foulness, their mere touch poisoning the biosphere upon which the Hive Mind fed. Clanking, bellowing Soul Grinders tore down towering spore chimneys, trampling them with petulant ferocity while Pink Horrors capered amid the digestion pools, transmuting the rich vitriolic acids within to kaleidoscopic flame. The Hive Mind responded like a wounded animal, its feeder organisms recoiling frantically from this strange new foe as clouds of spores spat from the bellies of orbiting bio-ships. Yet even the sky above Rossov was now rebelling at the otherwordly incursion, shuddering between the grim reality of the blotted stars and a roiling vista of racing, bloodshot storm clouds. As the spores plunged through this twisted stormscape, they were ravaged by daemonic energies, exploding into sparkling rains of cinder and ash. Those that made planetfall struck as ossified orbs that shattered on impact, or burst open to spill tides of rank, malformed foulness that mewled and twitched even as they writhed with corpulent maggots.

The sodden agri-plains around Rossov had been transformed by the Tyranids into a twisted nightmare of fleshy tendrils and sizzling sludge. Now, thundering across this tortured landscape, came a vast herd of Tyranid beasts. Hormagaunts, Termagants and Raveners raced ahead of hulking Carnifexes and Tyranid Warriors. Yet the Tyranid land-offensive met with little more success than had their attack from orbit. As the Tyranids closed upon the Daemons' vanguard, the roiling clouds above split open with a scream like a billion tortured souls, and a rain of bile and blood began to fall. Greasy, daemonic ichor turned the mud of the plains to dilute muck that bogged down the Tyranid forces. Flaming Daemon chariots swooped down upon their struggling foes. As the Tyranids slithered amid the puddles and pus they were scoured by magical flames, hundreds of warrior organisms dving in minutes as their flesh bubbled and vaporized. Flocks of shricking Furies harried the Tyranids from above, dodging and weaving around the gobbets of hissing bio-acid. As the Tyranids continued to press forwards in their millions, clambering over their own half-submerged dead amid the worsening deluge, the thrum of foetid wings filled the air. A great swarm of Plague Drones descended upon the struggling Tyranids, stabbing and slashing to tear heads from shoulders and shatter chitinous carapaces. Daemonettes danced feather-light across the surface of the mire, weaving aside from frantically slashing talons as they gloried in the abundance of writhing. desperate flesh. A lumbering wave of Haruspexes pressed into the mayhem. Their serrated gullets spat forth to snare Daemons and drag them whole into their maws, only to find the strange flesh rebelling within them, bursting the biohorrors' guts open like rotten seed pods.

THE TIDE TURNS

Even as the masters of the daemonic horde strode forward to join the battle, so the Hive Mind was adapting. Now it viewed the rampant Daemons not as prey, but as rival predators endangering the food source. The Tyranids' efforts were redoubled, and they raced to devour Shadowbrink's biomass before it could be spoiled. As vast tides of Rippers scoured the planet's southern and equatorial continents, the Hive Mind threw every war beast it had against the Warpspawn. This new enemy could reshape the rules of reality and were as deadly at close quarters as the Tyranids themselves. Thus, the Hive Mind despatched swarms of Exocrines and Biovores to form a vast cordon that ringed the emergent Daemonic forces. As one, this apocalyptic living artillery battery tensed and unleashed a barrage of unimaginable scale on the foe. Crackling orbs of bioplasmic energy rained down upon the Daemons, annihilating them in their thousands. Clouds of Spore Mines drifted through the downpour, detonating in clouds of whizzing bone shrapnel.

This world, this galaxy, all of it is ours to twist and corrupt as we will Such claborate artistry have we planned for the floch and sould that you would, in your ignormark, gobble like mindless beasts. We shall cast you back into the outer dark from whenes you came, for this reality is the plaything of the children of the Eye, and you have no place in th'

- LESH'JAE'THI'HAH, KEEPER OF SECRETS

The daemonic offensive faltered and the Hive Mind pushed scores of Tervigons to the fore. For hour after hour, waves of fresh Termagants spilled from the bloated bodies of their brood-mothers, hunkering down amid the churned mutch of Shadowhrith & plains to rain wilder after volley of Beibhorer beetles upon the faltering Daemons Shub Luth Cing, Great Unlean One of Nurgle, attempted to break the deadlock and push through the Tyrand condon yet even as the ponderous mountain of fifth manihalle hit Warp. Moments later, the huge Daemon was blown apart in a classtrophie deluge of four viscera as broods of hoven Zoamhropes, striking with uncanny coordination, piered his bloated hide with a barrage of scarm psychic blass



With one of their number fallen, the remaining lords of the Abominatum realised the nature of the battle had changed The Hive Mind was leeching their energies, severing the Daemons from the sustaining powers of the Empirean No real blood flowed for Khorne, just worthless alien eikor As each rancid disease was unleashed by the children of Ningle, so the next brood of Tyranish had grown resistan to it. Without the fear or devotion of true mortals to sustain them, the Daemons were foundering fast.

As hours turned to days without relief from the successor waves of Tyranids, the dearonic numbers thnned as they lost their grap upon reality. The Lord of Change, Krix Sir kin, blasted into way back to the shattered heart of what was left of Rossor city, and made good its escape through the flickering MacIstrom Cradie. The remaining two Gravet Dearons, Hak Vasha and Lesh jar? Thi Hah, led a final, mad charge to break the Tyranid lines, turning all of heir boundless ire upon the creatures before them.

Yet the Hive Mind, having absorbed its foes' strategies, predicted their attack. Even as the Bloodthirster and Keeper of Secrets pounded forwards at the head of ten thousand minions, a mighty swarm of Tyrannofexes and Trygons surged to meet them. As one bio-round after another slammed into their corrupt flesh, the daemonic lines collapsed. With sudden, abrupt fury, the Maelstrom Cradle imploded in upon itself, the daemonic citadel collapsing with a thunderous, sucking roar. The Bloodthirster, Hak'Vasha, was the last Daemon dragged back into the Warp - its unholy form was still wrestling furiously with three monstrous Trygons as it was wrenched from the mortal plane. The creature's bellows of fury faded slowly into silence. On Shadowbrink the Hive Mind had won a mighty victory against the legions of Chaos. Yet even as the Tyramds returned their attentions to devouring the ruined world. in the twisted realm of the Warp, malevolent intelligences smouldered with fury and plotted their revenge

Hive Fleet Jormungandr	LT 55 C	Hire Fleet Kraken Kraken Kraken Hire Fleet Gorgon Gorgon Hire Fleet Behemoth catacrac mans
Hive Fleet Moloch	GHOI STAP	CRUSSOF O'NEATH O'NEATH CRUSSOF MORAGES PRAN
Hive	ULTIMA	a Hideet
them, the more I have them. I have the more they have us, but because they are - Nectors Acoustics Acoustics	A	THE AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA
(1) none 1 loan about they also, the none I course to indestinate that almost time the none 1 hour than 1 have then for what they are and for what they may use day become 1 hour the none mode become day that we they are a what they are and for what they may use day become 1 hour the annot hour at hour and a set of the set of the set of speed, themase, hourse is hour at hour at the set of the hour at the set of t	THE EVE OF	HON HEN SEGMENTUM SEGMENTUM SOLAR NOSTA POSTI PO
The sourt liver about these about for what they are and for solution	HALO STARS	SE AM HORE - R SECANENTUM TEMPESTUS SOUNA

THE THIRD TYRANNIC WAR

c. 997.M41 THE COLLS OF PYTHOS The Red Talons Space Marines hold the fortress world of Orask on the edge of the Ghoul Stars from an invading splinter of Hive Fleet Pythos.

1 million

138997-M41 THE LEVIATHAN ARISES Hive Fleet Leviathan strikes at the underbelly of the Imperium, sinking its tendrils into Segmentums Tempestus, Ultima and Solar.

250997 M41 SLAUGHTER OF ST. CASPALEN Blood stains the cloisters as Leviathan invades the shrine world of St. Caspalen. The world's leaders are slain and terrorised by a Tyranid assassin and, riven with panic, the planet's defence forces are easy prey. The only true resistance comes from a force of Sisters of Baule who hold out bravely for weeks, but even they are overwhelmed when Deathleaper lures Trygons to excavate beneath their holy bastion and swarms of Hormagaunts use the tunnels in their wake to flood the fortification. The loss of St. Caspalen is a blow to the Imperium, and a manifest warning that faith alone is no defence against the Tyranids.

302997.M41 THE SWARMLORD RETURNS Leviathan's swiftest victories occur along a spine of worlds in the Hodur Sector. In the span of a single year, the Swarmlord oversees the absorption of dozens of worlds, including Talon – homeworld of the Storm Falcons Space Marines Chapter

360997.M41 THE FOLLY OF PRIDE The supposedly impenetrable Iron Warriors fortress world of Forgefane falls to the Tyranids in less than a week.

400997.M41 BATTLE OF BLOODSTAR Battlefleet Ultima concludes a disastrous campaign against Leviathan when it is ambushed and entrammelled by two separate Tyranid fleets in the Bloodstar Sector and the celebrated flagship, *Imprial Clory*, is destroyed.

498997 M41 A WORLD ABANDONED The Adeptus Mechanicus abandon the world of Teals Prime, choosing to use its military forces to bolster Gryphonne IV, one of the principal forge worlds in the galaxy, in preparation for a definat stand against Hire Fleet Leviathan. 5090977 M1 DEFERCE OF DESIX UTFRA Levindhan invades Tarsis Ultra at the imp anoso of winner begin to fall. Despite the presence of the Ultramarines and the Mortifactors, the thed o black turns against the armits of the Imperium dathe Mortifactors, the thed oblack turns against the armits of the Imperium dathe Mortifactors, the theory of arms alone but through a biological plague created but through

-

899997. M41 MASS EXTERMINATUS Inquisitor Kryptman orders the destruction of hundreds of worlds to create a cordon to slow the advance of Hive Fleet Leviathan.

obfogp3 Aq1 The BATTLE FOR GRYPHONE IV Skies darken with bioships over the forge world of Gryphonne IV, home of the War Gryphons Titan Legion. Cambined with the planet's Skitani legions and the military forces of Tesla Prime, the Adquin Mechanicus prepare for war
When Tyranid warrio-corquisms reachthe planet's wirface, a battle of truly epic sade unfolds. The landscapes of metal and grider run black with ichor as heavy weaponry takes a fearsome toll on the imaders. Within an hour, the ground shakes to the tread of Titans, emerging from their cathedral hangars to engage the huge monstrosities stalking through the manufactorum.

However, for every bio-tuan that falls to the fury of the Mechanicus' guns, one of the Impertum's gant war machines is torm apart by enormous bladed class, volleys of bio-cannon fire and gouts of bissing protocid. The ground reverberates to the read of ducling gants for days on end, the Adeputs Mechanicus and the swarms of the Hire Winh both refusing to give.

Despite the resolve of the Tech-Pricess and the toll their machines reap on the Tranids, the Tyranid invasion gatters pace. Slowly but surely, the defenders of Gryphonen UV are overwhelmed by the unending swarm, and even the mighty Titans of the War Gryphons are brought crashing down.

Within days, the world is scoured. Though the loss of Gryphonne IV is a calamity of unprecedented scale for the Imperium, the Tyranids are uncaring of their victory and Hive Fleet Leviathan simply moves on in search of fresh feeding grounds. 755998.M41 A BLOODY HARVEST A lone bio-ship launches an invasion against the planet Stormwald. The Phoenix Lord Maugan Ra stands alone against the swarm, and triumplis.

854998.M41 THE FALL OF SHADOWBRINK Hive Fleet Leviathan descends upon Shadowbrink, annihilating all the prey world's defenders and unwittingly triggering a daemonic incursion.

932095 MJ 5TOCK IN THE CARW HIVE FEE LEVANIAN fights the Imperial Guard regiments of Catachan on the the detail world of Jorn V. Though ournumbered, the Catachan Jungle Fighters prove stubbornly resourceful and show the Tyranish advance long enough for additional Imperial Guard and Space Mante reinforcenents to arrive planestic and strike a vial blow against the hive field:

2000900 Mq1: KRYPTARA'S GAMITE Kryptinan undertaks a dangerois mission on the labyrinth world of Carpathia. Leading several specially equipped Deathwatch teams into the heart of the planet's caverins, Kryptinan succeeds in capturing a live Genestaeler brood in a stassi field, though many of the Space Marrines die in the attempt. 520000 Mat - Dur Cutsstana Trawarres High Marshal Helbrecht of the Black Templars, in pursati of the Ork Wairod Guagdhuil Thrasha. Leada a fleet forged from fifteen Space Marine Chapters against a sphiner tendril of Hice Fleet Levanhan which is barring hu paul Despite employing every strategy and ploy at his disposed. Helbrechts fleet is continually forced to fall back before the Tyanaid advance. His mounting ire matches the rising numbers of the Space

650999 M41 PERDTION'S FLAME Krypman and his allies board the space hulk Porition's Flams and lodge his clutch of captured Genestealers aboard Kryptman then orders the destruction of the moon of Gheist, diverying the space hulk's path into the system-wide Ork empire of Octarins.

718999 M41 THE OCTARIAN WAR

990999 M41 TH BURNINGS Eldar from Biel-Tan and Saim-Hann Craftworlds utter/d devastate a wathe of Imperial and Orkheld worlds surrounding the warstorn Octarus Sector, with the intent of creating a band of dead worlds that will halt the spread of Hive Fleet Leviathan.

GALACTIC FEEDING GROUNDS

As Hive Fleet Leviathan continues to coil its tendrils around the galaxy, entire worlds are being scoured of life, and hundreds more are embroiled in a desperate light for survival. So far, all attempts to slay Leviathan have resulted in death and failure, and the Hive Mind's inexorable advance shows no signs of stopping.

The Great Devourer has sunk its tendfish deep into the galaxy, and thus far, it has shown only the first hints of its true strength. Levialan's encroachment could not have happened at a worse time for the Imperium, for the Imperial Tarot bave predicted a time of darkness for the galaxy, unmatched since the bleakest hours of the Houts Heresy. All potentis indicate that the arch-traitor Abaddon the Despoler is on the verge of launching his 13th Black Crusade, and the Imperium can all afford to leave its back angitured against a foc as powerful as Hive Fleet Leviathan as it turns to face the imminent Chaso onslaught.

The Adeptus Terra has heen sufficiently shaken by the constant flow of Tyrani invasion reports to convene the High Lords of Terra. Their rapid and succinct conclusion is that the inroads Lexitahan has made into the Imperium must be stopped at all costs, the Tyrand race must, if possible, be utterly exterminated. The military juggernaut of the Imperium' armed forces are slowly being marshalled to face the Tyrand threat – the Imperium will not submit to the Great Devourer without a fight.



EVER EMERGING THREATS

Unfortunately for the Imperium and the other races of the galaxy, it is not only Leviathan that is assailing the galaxy New hive fleets are even now beginning to emerge from their cold sleep through the intergalactic void. Hive Fleet Medusa, mistakenly thought by the Imperium to be another tendril of Leviathan, was last recorded feasting upon the treworld of Shadrac. Hive Fleet Moloch's inexorable advance from the galactic north is also gathering momentum as it devoured the Kiltor Sector and now the Tarellian civilisation Perhaps most worrying of all are Hive Fleets Scylla and Charybdis carving parallel paths up through the Segmenture Pacificus and Solar, the closest known Tyranid threat to Hale Terra. Though the Imperium might have a little time left to prepare its defences against these twin threats, Saim-Hann Craftworld is caught in the jaws of these two hive fleets, and cannot easily navigate a path to avoid one without risking falling into the clutches of the other.

None know for sure how many other hive fleets still lie dormant within the void, slowly approaching our galaxy to wake and feed. Nor are the threats of previous Tyranid invasions truly over. The splintered fleets of Hive Fleet Kraken are regaining their strength as they feast on a bounty of worlds ill-prepared to defend themselves whilst the galaxy looks to supposedly greater threats. Long dormant remnants of Hive Fleet Jormungandr stir to life, bringing several Imperial worlds to the brink of destruction. Rumours even abound that remnants of Hive Fleet Behemoth, thought slain over two centuries ago, continue to ravage populations and settlements within Ultima Segmentum, with scattered reports of Tyranid attacks on worlds from Calth to Macragge and beyond. With so many threats emerging from unseen quarters, many worlds are holding back from reinforcing the fight against Hive Fleet Leviathan, choosing to preserve their forces for wars closer to home.

HIVE FLEET HYDRA

Hive Fleet Hydra is only more beginning to star from its acous long hibernation. It was the Dark Elder of the Possond Fier Abda Jush first consultered this still domant hive first and way extremes of the eastern spiral arm. Instead of denorate the vulnerable house flext, the Dark Elder south of the start the anomach. Houser, the Dark Elder south other Asdat Hamonical. Houser, the Dark Elder wore unproperly for miss at unich the bioschipt anode, and every printe that style stude and of the bines thip moses killed, hinkerel by a protect the of the printice spanned to protect the ship. The remaining Dark Eldar flext attempted to sceape, but for every anowship they destroyed, house to keep Erneaturity ausknind from its slumber, Hine Freet Hydra has accelerated its advant in the long targets.



A GLIMMER OF HOPE

> However, as the ongoing Octarian War is proving, the Transh are commerny everyerater levels of resistance from their prey. Whilst the Imperium reinforces whole star systems, raising thousands of Imperial Guard regiments and dozens of Space Marine Chapters solely to combat the Tyrand threat, several Eldar craftworlds have begun to burn entire worlds to cinder, employing ancient weapons of destruction not used in millennia. The Tau Empire, hawing learned well at the class of Hwe Fleet Gorgon, are developing new technologies and weaponty to fight the Tyranids and field-testing experimental protypes to defend their realm. Even the Neerons and forces of Chaos are turning their attentions towards a fore that is slowly devouring a galaxy that both believe is theirs alone to rule over or despoil as they see fit.

So far these efforts are, at best, succeeding in slowing the Leviathan's rapacious advance, but it is only a matter of time before the Hive Mind adapts. With every lost battle, the live fleets create new breefs of warrior-organisms and bioconstructs to counter and defeat their loss. Yet with every Victory, another world dies, devoured to feed the instanable lunger of the Hive Mind.

Tyranids are creatures from our darkest nightmares. But remember this, they can bleed and they can die...' - INQUISTOR KRETENAN, FROR TO HIS EXCOMMUNICATION.

WAR ZONE VALEDOR

There have been times solven the staryfarming bio-fields have faller (sidd) Want storems, never to approve again. The sphiner field of Krahen that was sent headlong into the Empyrean by the sense of Confluend Honden had on even stranger fate. It bio-haps later emerged from a dimensional rift into the Valedor System, being in the Segmentium Solver. The sphiner face had crossed the span of the galaxy in a matter of years. Wares still, it had emerged right in the path of Hine Field Lexindan.

When Sponden's serve learns of this, have, grapped them, if the biomatter from Hue Foel Krahen were to merge wuch that of Levandan, the resultant strams of Framids would be all hut mistophable, for they would combine the greatic secrets of Ork, Elder and Huwan alube. Dreading the referencisions that this under yourion would have upon the enforced so of the Elder, the Franken contrast implored there allow on militant Biel-Tan to interced. Yet despite its supfit and deadly attacks, even the Soondwist dues strandle to keep the hum felts a part.

If it were not for a shadowy hargan struk with the Dark Edar of paradise planet of Visitols - or Dividia a the Edar called it - would have been the brits stee of a new doon for the galaxy. By using the Friedmant, a Commonite antifact of incicible paper, the combined forces of the Edar debroyed Dirind in a strong of firm and volcone just at the Transit seven adout to save there wile prize. In the process they averted disaster – for a sing, at least.

and the second of the second o

see he bold have been a





FORCES OF THE HIVE MIND

This section details the forces used by the Tyranids – their warriors, their weaponry and the legendary creatures that you can choose to use, including any unique biomorphs that they employ in battle. Each entry describes a unit and gives the specific rules you will need in order to use it in your games. The Tyranid Swarm (pages 92-103) refers back to these entries.

TYRANIDS SPECIAL RULES

The Tyranids army uses a number of special rules that are common to several of its units. These are collected and explained here, in full, for your convenience. Special rules that are unique to particular units are presented in the relevant entry instead. Other, more common, rules are simply listed by name – these are described in full in the Special Rules section of your Wanhammer 40,000 rulebook.

INSTINCTIVE BEHAVIOUR

Unless controlled or coordinated by the domineering will of the Hive Mind, many Tyranid organisms will revert to their baser instincts.

This special rule is always followed, in brackets, by a type: either Lurk, Hunt or Feed, which corresponds to a table opposite. At the beginning of each of your turns; all *Codex: Tynarki* units with this special rule that are outside of the synapse range of any friendly Synapse Creatures (see below) must take a Leadership test unless they are: engaged in combat, falling back, have gone to ground or arrived from reserve this turn. If the test is failed, the unit arts normally during this turn. If the test is failed, the unit must roll a D6 on the appropriate Instituctive Behaviour table. The effects of the result rolled last unit the beginning of your next turn, unless specified otherwise.

SHADOW IN THE WARP

The unfathomable presence of the Hive Mind radiates out from its synapse creatures, smothering the ability of the psykers who stand before them to draw upon their mystic powers.

All enemy units and models with the Psyker, Psychic Pilot or Brotherhood of Psykers special rules suffer a -3 penalty to their Leadership whilst they are within 12° of one or more models with the Shadow in the Warp special rule.

SYNAPSE CREATURE

Some Tyranids serve as synaptic conduits or nodal relays through which a portion of the Hive Mind's iron will flows, overriding the natural instincts of the swarm.

Models with the Synappe Creature special rule have a synappe range of 12°. Friendly *Code: Tyrunds* models within this synape range, including the Synape Creatures themeshes, have the Fearles special rule. If a unit from *Code: Tyrung* is falling back and at least one of the unit's models to sub a friendly Synapse Creature's synapse range before the unit moves, the unit atomanically Regroups.

WARLORD TRAITS

When generating its Warlord Traits, a Tyranid Warlord may either roll on one of the Warlord Traits tables in the *Warhammer* 40,000 rulebook, or instead roll on the Warlord Traits table presented here.

WARLORD TRAITS TABLE

D6 WARLORD TRAIT

- Nature's Bane: Clouds of microcopic Tyrand organisms swarm around this Warlord, merging there way into local flora and creating florb-eating forom. At the beginning each of your Movement phases, you may select one forest; jungle or wood terrain piece within 12° of your Warlord. That terrain piece becomes a Carnivorous Jungle (see the Mysterous Forest table in the Warlammer 40,000 nicklook) and remains so for the remainder of the game, even if it was previously a different type of forest.
- 2 Heightened Senses: This Warland can sense its pay in pitch blackness or through dense smoke. The Warland, and all friendly models from Coder. Tyrands within 12° of it, have the Night Vision special rule.
- 3 Synaptic Lynchpin: This Warlord is a strong link in the synapse chain, enacting the Hive Mind's will. The Warlord's synapse range is 18".
- 4 Mind Eater: This Warlord devours the minds of energy leaders and generals so that the Hive Mind can abord its prey's memories, learn its strategies and adopt its own bailte plans accordingly.

Your army gains 2 Victory Points for each enemy model with the Independent Character special rule, slain by your Warlord in a challenge. Killing an Independent Character as the result of a sweeping advance does not award these Victory Points.

- Digestive Denial: This Warhof can accrime asib that will preve strategacily important to its pre, and them complet acute digestion pools in develop heanth a After deployments, hou before Scout redeployments and Infiltrate deployments, nonimate our effet terrain in the enemy deployment zone (this more not be one vour opponent has purchased as part of their arms). The terrain piece's cover save is reduced by one for the duration of the game (to a minimum of 64). Note that a piece of terrain can only be affected by this ability once:
- 6 Adaptive Biology: This Warlord has been created to adapt against the weaponry used by the current prey world's defenders.

If the Warlord suffers one or more unsaved Wounds, it gains the Feel No Pan (5+) special rule at the beginning of its next Movement phase and keeps it for the remainder of the game

INSTINCTIVE BEHAVIOUR TABLES

INSTINCTIVE BEHAVIOUR (LURK)

D6 LURK RESULT

- 1-3 Survive: The Tyranids' survival instincts take over and they turn tail and flee the battlefield. The unit is treated as having failed a Morale test and must immediately Fall Back.
- 4-5 Seek Cover: The brood immediately seeks out shelter to hide from the enemy, ignoring the foe until they are safely concealed from their eyes.

In the Movement phase, the unit is not slowed by difficult terrain, though its models must take Dangerous Terrain tests as normal. In the Shooting phase, the unit can Run, but it can only shoot if it is in a building or area terrain (if the unit is partially within area terrain are allowed to shoot). The unit cannot charge in the Assual phase.

- Stalk: The Tyranids blend seamlessly into the shadows, stalking their prey from safety until the right time to strike presents itself.
 - This follows all the rules for Seek Cover (above). In addition, the unit gains the Stealth special rule

INSTINCTIVE BEHAVIOUR (FEED)

D6 FEED RESULT

1-3 Cannibalistic Hunger: On the verge of starvation and desperate to sate their gnawing hunger, the Tyranids turn upon themselves.

The unit immediately suffers a number of hise equal to the number of models in that unit. These hits are resolved using the unit's majority Strength (if drawn, use the highest) and AP-Wounds are allocated by the owning player and armour saves (but not cover saves) may be taken. After resolving casualise (if any) the unit can do nothing else unit the end of its turn. Units consisting of only a single model treat this result as Devour (below), instead.

45 Desur: Driven by their instinct, the Tyrands hurd-themselves at the closest pay holy can find, tech and claus eager to bite into Jeah. In the Shooting phase, the unit cannot shoot or Run. In the Assault phase, if the unit is able to declare a charge, it must do so against the closest viable enemy unit. If the unit cannot declare a charge, it does nothing in the Assault phase.

6 Kill: The broad's ravenous hunger sends them into a muterous frenzy. This follows all the rules for Devour (above). In addition, the unit gains the Rage special rule.

INSTINCTIVE BEHAVIOUR (HUNT)

D6 HUNT RESULT

- Burrow and Hide: Without the Hive Mind's direction, the broad burrows to protect istelf from enemy fire. The unit immediately Goes to Ground. Units that contain at least one model with the Fearless special rule treat this result as Prowl (below), instead.
- 4.5 Provi: The Tyranidiv institute take sever and they advance in search of face to hart with their biosevapous in the Shooting plase, the unit cannot Ran and must instead shoot at the closest cnearly unit that is within range and line of sight of at least one model in the Tyranid unit. If there is no viable target, the Tyranid unit can do nothing during the Shooting plase. The unit cannot charge in the Assault plase.
 - 5 Destroy: The brood catches the scent of fresh proy on the word and they become hyper-actively agatade, biowargons spitting draft while the proy is uterfact, distored. This follows all the rules for Proxl (above). In addition, the unit gains the Preferred Enemy special rule.



HIVE TYRANTS

Hive Tyranits are the commanders of the Tyranit awarms and enact the fires Mind's vall on the field of battle'. Though individuals display a wide variety of physical characteristics, all Hive Tyrans are fearsome hulting monsters that tower over even a Dreadmought. They are bratally strong, able to share (Froreiere with sickening ease. Every part of such a bear's body is perfectly created to kill, even the layers of chintons plating that protect them. Al Hive Tyranit is a formidable opponent at any distance, as deadly with ranged weapons as it is with boneword or claw.

Vinter Provident

Hwe Tyrants are highly psychic, and their relationship to the Hive Mind is amongst the closest of any known bioform. Indiced, the synaptic link is os strong that they are the primary conduits through which the Hive Mind enforces its dominance over a hive fleet's lesser creatures. The institutive nature of a Tyranid swarm is smothered with implicable drive and purpose, and the need to hunt and devour is imbued with a cumning and tactical awareness that would put the galaxy is finest strategists to shame.

Hive Tyranits were created not only to overpower their prey, but also to outhink it. Unlike many Tyranid creatures, Hive Tyranis are incredibly intelligent and are even, to some extent, self-aware. Whilst they are still slaved to the gestalt conscionses of the Hive Mind, they are given



wider haitunde in achieving its goals. As such, they can respond to battlefield events far faster than the inseruiable like. Mind and adapt the behaviour of the swams they command accordingly. As a result of their highly developed synaptic connection and greater levels of intelligence. Hatransmissing insylaters of the Hew Mind's terrifying suit. Hig-Tyrants can invigorate the swarm, shatter their foe's morale or shred the minds of their prev.

Hive Tyrants embody the Tyranid Hive Mind completely but their destruction does not in any way diminish it. Death is simply another learning experience that gives insight to the prey's strengths and weaknesses. This goes some way to explain why the Tyranids can rarely be defeated the same way twice. Should a Hive Tyrant be slain on the battlefield. the Hive Mind simply grows a replacement, imbuing it with the same knowledge as its predecessor. Fortunately for the rest of the galaxy, this does not lead to infallibility of purpose. Even the most fearsome Hive Tyrant cannot anticipate its prey's every ploy, nor can it oversee every quarter of the battlefield. However, the Hive Mind's capacity to regrow its fallen leaders does render each Hive Tyrant practically immortal. No matter how many times a Hive Tyrant is killed, sooner or later it will always come back to overcome and devour its prey.

WS BS S T W I A Ld Sv Hive Tyrant 8 4 6 4 5 4 10 3+

UNIT TYPE: Monstrous Creature (Character).

WEAPONS & BIOMORPHS: Two pairs of scything talons (pg 63).

SPECIAL RULES: Psyker (Mastery Level 2), Shadow in the Warp (pg 38), Synapse Creature (pg 38).

PSYKER: A Hive Tyrant generates its psychic powers from the Powers of the Hive Mind (pg 69).

UPGRADES:

Hive Commander: For each Hive Tyrant in your arms with this upgrade, choose a single troops selection from the same detachment. All models in the selected unit gain the Outflank special rule.

Indescribable Horror: Units taking a Fear test caused by this model must roll an extra dice when taking the test and use the highest two results. In most circumstances, this will mean the unit rolls 3D6 and discards the loarest dice roll.

Old Adversary: This Hive Tyrant re-rolls all failed To Hit and To Wound rolls of 1 when fighting in close combat.

TYRANID WARRIORS

Tyrand Warriow are the most adaptable of all the Hive Mind's bioforms. They are creatures from the blackest of mghmares, unstoppable killing machines with publising ichor for blood, needle-sharp teeth and darky gleanning eves that recal a terrible intelligence at work. A Tyrand Warrior sands twice the height of a man, its carapace protected by a thick chin. One might expect such a creature to be slow in its actions, but a Tyrand Warrior is lithe, with reactions as swift as a whip.

Trandi Warriors have the mental flexibility to employ as sole variery of biovexpon switholtes. As such, on the battlefield, they can be found leading all areas of a Tyranid searm fighting in close quarters with class, boneswords and lash ships, or at longer ranges with decoursers, deathpatters or even heavier bio-cannons. Whatever weaponry it welds, a lyrand Warrior is a dangerous and uniforging foe, able to identify and exploit the weaknesses of its targets with innute shreadness. Worse, with its ablen consciousness permanently bonded to the ageless Hive Mind, a Tyranid Warrior can instandy draw upon a reservoir of knowledge and experience that spans epochs, should its own prove insufficient to the task at hand.

Though they are formidable fighters in their own right, it is the Tyranid Warriors' role as the synaptic lynchpins of the swarm that makes them truly deadly. Tyranid Warriors are psychic resonators for the unwavering will of the Hive Mind and some of the more common conduits used to exert control over the less receptive creatures of the hive fleets. As such, Tyranid Warriors form a vital link in the Tyranid swarm, acting as relays and amplifiers through which Hive Tyrants issue their commands. So crucial is this role to a hive fleet's efforts to defeat a prey world's defenders that each Hive Tyrant is invariably accompanied by several broods of Tyranid Warriors cultured from its very own flesh - the better to enhance the psychic link throughout the swarm. This is not to imply that Tyranid Warriors are merely drones, for each is instinctively capable of assessing local battlefield situations. They can then, if the need arises, direct those Tyranid creatures near them, like an officer marshalling their forces, to exploit any tactical weakness that may appear in the enemy's defences.

TYRANID SHRIKES

Trainid Shrikes are an adaptation of the Tyranid Warrior bioform, with teathery sings that allow them to swoop and soar through the skies of a prey world. With broods of Tyranid Shrikes at its command, the Hive Mind can ensure that its influence extends to every correr of the warm, even to the Gargotjes and Harpies whose aerial assuils are prone to lexing them solated from the rest of the force.

Though more lightly amounced than Tyranid Warriors, Shrikes can redeploy at a moment's notice. In doing so, they can fill gaps in the synaptic web or assail the foe where it is most submerable. Few enemies expect so large a creature to approach from the sizes, and a well-limed attack by Tyranid Shrikes invariably spells disaster if the prey's sentries are cought off guard.



TYRANID PRIMES

Tyranid Primes are the apex of the Tyranid Warrior strain, faster, stronger and smarter than the other Warriors they lead to battle, who instinctively emulate their deadly skill.

	WS	BS	S	Т	W	I	A	Ld	Sv
Tyranid Warrior	5	8	4	4	3	4	3	10	4+
Tyranid Shrike	5	3	4	4	3	4	3	10	5+
Tyranid Prime	6	4	5	5	3	5	4	10	3+

UNIT TYPE: Tyranid Warriors are Infantry. Tyranid Shrikes are Jump Infantry. Tyranid Primes are Infantry (Character).

WEAPONS & BIOMORPHS: Devourer (pg 64), scything talons (pg 63).

SPECIAL RULES:

Independent Character (Tyranid Prime only), Shadow in the Warp (pg 38), Synapse Creature (pg 38), Very Bulky.

Alpha Warrior (Tyranid Prime only): All Tyranid Warriors or Tyranid Shrikes in the same unit as a Tyranid Prime use its Weapon Skill and Ballistic Skill rather than their own, unless their own would be higher for any reason.

GAUNTS

Termagants, Hormagaunts and Gargoyles are simple bioforms created by the hive fleets in their billions. Onslaughts by these creatures often precede the main attack, wave after wave hurling themselves against enemy lines like an avalanche of teeth, claws and bio-weapons fire.

Contra to

TERMAGANTS

Ternapants are agile and cuming creatures. They are amongst the smallest of the Hive Mind's warriows and were originally created to roam the arterial passages of bio-ships in search of intruders. In planetary invasions, Ternagants scattle forwards on four legs which uncleashing torrents of fire from the anti-personnel bio-weaponry – commonly Relaborers – Cuthede in their clawed forelimbs.

Termagants are expendable bioforms, and the Hive Mind treats them as such. It is not uncommon for the Hive Mind to suppress the Termagants' survival instincts and send them forwards to die in droves until the enemy's ammunition is depleted, defensive positions are overrun, resistance has been eliminated and victory is assured.

HORMAGAUNTS

Hormagaunts are vicious and extraordinarily single-minded predators that will pursue their victims without pause or respite. With powerful hind legs, Hormagaunts dart across



the battlefield in a series of bounding leaps, ignoring injury and tiredness until they have run down their exhausted quarry and torn it apart with frenzied strikes of their sythelike claws.

Hormagaunts have fearsome hunting instincts and require little direction from the Hive Mind to seek out and shappler prey. Indeed, once the Tyranid assault begins, they are mostly left to their own devices. On occasion, however, the Hive Mind will make contact with a brood's quicksher consciousness, spurring it towards a more distant or strategically important foc-

GARGOYLES

A Tyranid attack is preceded by the beating of thousands of membranous wings as Gargoyle broods descend upon the foc, blotting out the sum and spitting death from their fleshborers. Their winged manoeuvrability gives Gargoyles a distinct hunting advantage. Wherever Tyranids attack a planet, the defenders look fearfully to the skies, for they know that every sky-borne shadow could be a flock of Gargovles about to attack.

Though Gargoyles instinctively hunt at range, many a solder has mistaken this stand-offish behaviour for covardice. These fools discover too late just how dangerous Gargoles can be at close quarters, realising their doom only alter the winged creatures spit caustic venom into birer eyes. A moment later, blinded and debilitated, the victim is tom apart by a lock of lashing tails and razor talons.

	WS	BS	S	Т	W	I	A	Ld	Sv
Termagant	3	3	3	3	1	4	1	6	6+
Hormagaunt	3	3	3	3	1	5	2	6	6+
Gargoyle	8	3	3	3	1	4	1	6	6+

UNIT TYPE: Termagants and Hormagaunts are Infantry. Gargoyles are Jump Infantry.

WEAPONS & BIOMORPHS: Termagants: Fleshborer (pg 64).

Hormagaunts: Scything talons (pg 63).

Gargoyles: Fleshborer (pg 64), blinding venom (pg 67).

SPECIAL RULES: Termagants: Instinctive Behaviour (Lurk) (pg 38), Move Through Cover.

Hormagaunts: Fleet, Instinctive Behaviour (Feed) (pg 38), Move Through Cover.

Bounding Leap: Units entirely composed of models with this special rule Run an additional 3" (this will normally be D6+3").

Gargoyles: Instinctive Behaviour (Hunt) (pg 38).

GENESTEALERS

There are many terrifying creatures in the Tyramid hive facets, but one in particular has carved out a horrifying and bloody legend on more than a thousand worlds. It is a lurker in dark places, a clawed harbinger of sudden death. It is Known as the Genestealer, and it is a plague upon the galaxy.

A Genescaler is a swift and powerful predator with highming5st release and serrated class that can tear through even the thickest of armour. Genesctalers also have large, highly adaptive brains and posses a form of brood telepathy that allows them to function with full independence from the Hive Mind. This autonomy allows them to destroy through stealth and guile that which cannot be defacied through numbers alone.

A strong survival instinct drives Genestealers outwards from the hive fleets, and they seek out space-bound vessels attempting to flee the surface of doomed prey-worlds. It is simple for a Genestealer to stow away aboard such ships, nesting unseen amongst crawl-spaces until it is brought to a new planet by the unsuspecting crew. If a single Genestealer reaches an inhabited world, it can spell disaster. Genestealers reproduce by implanting other life forms with their own genetic material. Once infected, a victim is enthralled by the Genestealers' nascent telepathy and Tyranid attributes are passed on to its offspring, creating monstrous hybrids completely under the alien's domination. These deformities eventually breed true, creating 'purestrain' Genestealers under the control of a Broodlord - the strongest and most dangerous of their kind. These Genestealers seem content to lurk in sewers and caves beneath cities, preving on the populace like folktale monsters until the Hive Mind's will once again dominates their minds.

No one knows how widespread the Genestealer infectation has become or how many worlds if affects. For every brood uncovered and purged, a dozen go unnoticed. When a Variaid hive fleet enters an infested system, the Hive Mind akers its synaptic dominion over the Broodlord and its claus Planetary defenders are thrown into disarray as Genestealers auddenly burst from the shadows, overwhelming reucial systems and leaving the prey world vulnerable before the mercless Tyraind onslaught.

	WS	BS	S	т	w	I	A	Ld	Sv
Genestealer	WS 6	0	4	4	1	6	2	10	5+
Broodlord	7	0	5	5	3	7		10	

UNIT TYPE: Infantry. Broodlord is Infantry (Character).

WEAPONS & BIOMORPHS: Rending claws (pg 63).

SPECIAL RULES: Bulky (Broodlord only), Fleet, Infiltrate, Move Through Cover, Psyker (Mastery Level 1) (Broodlord only).

PSYKER: A Broodlord always knows The Horror psychic power (pg 69)

YMGARL GENESTEALERS

The Genestealers of Ymgarl were one of the first Tyranid creatures encountered by Mankind, but their origins remain a mystery. They do not seem to have been created by any known hive fleet, leading to speculation that they are the last survivors of a vanguard fleet lost for time immemorial. Whatever the truth, since their discovery on the moons of Ymgarl, every attempt to eradicate them has been met with butchery and failure. Ymgarl Genestealers are unique, in that they can alter their own flesh in a matter of moments. Their claw-tipped fingers can quickly elongate and fuse together to form curved blades to hack apart their enemies. A few seconds later and the same limbs split apart into ropes of sinewy tendon to ensnare victims attempting to escape, dragging them instead towards the writhing mass of tentacles each Ymgarl Genestealer uses to feast upon its prey's blood in place of a fanged maw, Stranger still, whilst the instincts of other Genesicalers lead them to flee their parent hive fleets, Ymgarl Genestealers actively seek them out. They spread across the galaxy searching for worlds in the path of an advancing hive fleet. However, the Hive Mind has no wish to reabsorb them, lest their mutable instability spread amongst the hive fleet. Therefore, after a world has been scoured of all other biomass, the Ymgarl brood is left behind to begin their search anew.



LICTORS

The Lictor is a highly specificed development of the Tyranid Warrior bioform, specifically adapted to fill a scout orde in the wagrand of the Tyranid advance. Lictors rowe abcad of the main body of a awarn, seeking out pockets of resistance to be cradicated and unixe hile forms to be absorbed. Able to more swithj and without sound through even the densest terrain, and concealed by a chameleonic carapace that renders it all but invisible to the naked eye, a Lictor can remain hidden until it chooses to strike. It can wait motionless for dasy, unnoticed by its vicinis, an unseen herald of approaching disaster.

and the second

Lictors are not msincitively aggressive, as they are created primarily to locate prey for the walter swarm. Lictors are opportunistic hunters and therefore tend to stalk their quarry from the shadows, avoiding confornations where they would be vastb outmatched. A Lictor will often pick off is prey in ones and toos whils they are separated from their comrades, sometimes retreating for days at a time before launching a further attack.

When the time comes to strike, Lictors are brutally efficient, with a whole arsenal of bio-wcaponry that includes manitalike claws, talons that can pierce steel, barbed flesh hooks and feeder tendris. The feeder tendris are topped with sharpened bomy plates that can pierce a vicinit's skull as



casily as they poke through eyeballs and the sockets behind. They are used to lobotomise victims so that the Lictor can savily decour its brain and absorb its memories. Thus, in death, the enemy reveals more to a Lictor than iteer did in life, betraying the whereabouts of comrades and exposing any weaknesses that might be exploited.

Yet feasome as the Lictor is as a physical foe, it has an altogether more deadly purpose than simple slaughter. Stalking Lictors exude a pheromone trial which draw other Tyrands, the larger the concentration of prey, the stronger the response and the more irresisable the lure. So it is that even killing a Lictor is no guarantee of survival, for the creature's mere presence ensures that the swarm already knows where its prey can be found. After that, it's only a matter of tume.

N. Salar de la	WS	BS	S	Т	w	I	A	Ld 10	C
Lictor		0	6	1		-	-		34

UNIT TYPE: Infantry.

WEAPONS & BIOMORPHS: Rending claws (pg 63), scything talons (pg 63), flesh hooks (pg 67).

SPECIAL RULES: Deep Strike, Fear, Fleet, Hit & Run, Infiltrate, Instinctive Behaviour (Lurk) (pg 38), Move Through Cover, Stealth, Very Bulky,

Chameleonic Skin: A Lictor does not scatter when arriving from Deep Strike Reserve.

Pheromone Trail: If a friendly unit from *Codec: Tyranids* arrives on the battlefield via Deep Strike, it will not scatter so long as the first model in the unit is placed within 6° of a model with this special rule. Note that the model with the Pheromone Trail special rule must already be on the table at the start of the turn for this ability to be used.

DOMINATRIX

The Dominatrix is a colossal creature of the Tyranid swarm. It is a fearsome opponent, for its sheer mass and panophy of bio-weaponry dwarf that of an Imperial super-heavy tank.

The Dominatrix is no unthinking beast – its level of intelligence is akin to that of the Hive Tyrant, and its link to the Hive Mind surpasses even those mighly creatures. Whilst within range of the Dominatrix's psychic awar, lesser Tyrand creatures become little more than an extension of the Dominatrix's will.

As a result, a swarm under the Dominatru's direct supervision functions with uncarny efficiency and a tactical genus that is beyond compare. Fortunately, such leasts are extremely uniin all but the most advanced Tyranid swarm, for where the Dominatrux treads, doom surely follows:

ZOANTHROPES

Zandhropes are created solely to harness the psychic peterital of the live. Mind, and their entire bodies are peterital of the live. Mind, and their entire bodies are can be used to extend the range of the Hire Mind's synaptic can be used to extend the range of the Hire Mind's synaptic extensions to lesser creatures. Under these circumstances, the Zandhrope is hild: more than a lightly sophisticated messenger, but this is only a fraction of what their altern minds are capable of A Zandhrope's hilds to the synaptic web is such that, by flexing the merest part of its mind, it can rain neardesceri power on the censue, projecting destructive bolts of energy that boils through adamantium plate and disintegrates flexing with equal case.

Despite their instituctive command over their otherworldly abilities, tapping into the Hwe Mind's pochic potential is not without danger. It is not unknown for Zoanthropes to suffer massive cerebral trauma whilst attempting to harness the energies they widel. In such instances, a surge of pochic power courses through the Zoanthrope, and as the raw energy flows through its Brain. The creature has just the time to critit a pochic food of agony before falling limp to the ground, like a puppet whose strength has been exercted.

Zoandhropes are vital nodes for harnessing the Hive Mind's profile might and are created with a powerful sense of selfpreservation. Therefore, they institutively project a potent Warp field to protect themselves in battle – a mental shield that is invisible but for a slight shimmer when small-arms and heavy-weapons fire alike patters harmlessly against t. However, Zoanthropes are still predators, capable of eliminating any perceived threat with bolts of flaming pevchic nerves.

WS BS S T W I A Ld Sv Zoanthrope 3 4 4 2 3 1 10 5+

UNIT TYPE: Infantry.

SPECIAL RULES: Brotherhood of Psykers, Shadow in the Warp (pg 38), Synapse Creature (pg 38), Very Bulky.

Psychic Brood: A Zoanthrope brood follows all the rules for Brotherhood of Psykers except that the unit has a Mastery Level of 2. In addition, if a brood of Zoanthropes uses the Warp Bata power (pg 60), the number of shots fired is equal to the number of Zoanthropes in that brood.

For example, a brood of three Zoanthropes that successfully manifested Warp Blast would treat both the Burst and Lance profiles as Assault 3.

Warp Field: Zoanthropes have a 3+ invulnerable save.

PSYKER: A Zoanthrope brood always knows the *Warp Blast* psychic power (pg 69). The unit can generate one additional power from the **Powers of the Hive Mind** (pg 69).



THE DOOM OF MALAN'TAI

The Eldar legend of the Doom of Malan'tai refers not only to the tale of an entire craftworld's death, but also to the abominable Tyranid creature that caused it - to the Eldar, the two are indistinguishable. The lament speaks of a Tyranid creature unlike any other, a beast that gorged not upon flesh and blood, but upon the life-force of its victims, leaving only soulless oblivion in its wake. The Doom of Malan'tai was an adaptation of the Zoanthrope, and its weak physical appearance belied its true horror. So it was that, when a lone, wounded bio-ship invaded Craftworld Malan'tai, the Eldar did not at first realise that the true threat lay not with the towering Tyranid monsters rampaging through their home, but with the unassuming creature left relatively unhindered to feed on Eldar souls. As it fed, the Doom of Malan'tai's power grew, the absorbed life-energy enhancing its fearsome psychic might. Once it had gorged on the spirits of the craftworld's infinity circuit, it was nigh invulnerable, possessing the power to pulp Eldar warriors, snap wraithbone war-constructs and shatter towering spires with catachysmic bolts of psychic energy. It was all that the few Eldar survivors could do to escape Malan'tai, a craftworld found adrift in space years later, reduced to nought but a cold, lifeless shell. Of the loathsome creature that had brought about its destruction, there was no sign.

TYRANID GUARDS

While many Tyranid creations are expendable, others are vital to a hive fleet's success. To this end, the Hive Mind has created a number of organisms whose sole role on the battlefield is the safeguarding and protection of other Tyranid bioforms.

TYRANT GUARD

Trant Guard are the ulimate bodyguards; it is the entire purpose of their creation. Their is minuts tend not towards self-preservation, but to the defence of the Hive Tyrant to which they are bonded. Should the Hive Tyrant come under atack, its Tyrant Guard move into the path of incoming fire without thought or concern, sheltering their charge with their own bodies. Tyrant Guard, therefore, take the form of colosal living shields. They are all but impervious to smallsms fire, and should heavy weaponry be brought to bear, several salvoes are required to fell even one of these beasts. These creatures have an incredible resistance to injury and are only dimby aware of pain, shrugging off wounds that would blow a ma part.

Should their charge be slain, the Tyrant Guard will go berserk, lashing out and tearing at the enemy with brutal ferocity and savage abandon. A Tyrant Guard's rampage is not guided by grief, nor a sense of neglected duty, for such things are alten concepts to the Tyrantek Rather, a Tyrant



Guard's reaction is pure instinct and part of the coldy calculated strategy of the Hive Mind. Hive Tyrants are sing to the Tyranid onslaught, and if the enemy finds away to bring such a beast down, the Hive Mind does not want knowledge of how the feat was accomplished to survive hie battle and be passed on to a future foe.

HIVE GUARD

In the later stages of a Tyrand invasion, strange alien architecture begins to blight the prey world. Towering sporchimeness burst from beneath the churned ground to betch their poisonous spores into the air, and capillary towers are grown to finnel the digested great of the planet is bomas up to the Hive Ships waiting in space. Such structures are will to the Tyrands' attempt to consume a world, and the Hive Mind has created a specific beast for their protection the Hive Gurd.

Hwe Gaard are heavily armoured gun-beasts bound to extremely powerful symbiotic biovexpons. Though they have no eyes, Hive Guard posses a weak telepahic ability that allows them to perceive through the senses of other Tyranids, giving them access to a wealth of targeting information that would overwhelm even the most ophisticated technological cogitator. The scant menal capacity apportioned to the Hive Guard means that, withou the direction of the Hive Mind, they have been known to stand motionless, waiting for prey to come within range instead of mowing forwards to engage.

	WS	BS	S	Т	w	I	A	Ld	Sv
Tyrant Guard	5	3	5	6	2	4	2	7	3+
Hive Guard	4	3	5	6	2	2	2	7	4+

UNIT TYPE: Infantry.

WEAPONS & BIOMORPHS: Tyrant Guard: Rending claws (pg 63), scything talons (pg 63).

Hive Guard: Impaler cannon (pg 64).

SPECIAL RULES: Tyrant Guard: Instinctive Behaviour (Feed) (pg 38), Very Bulky.

Blind Rampage: If a Hive Tyrant (or the Swarmlord) is killed whilst part of a unit of Tyrant Guard (see the Shieldwall special rule, below), from the end of that turn the surving Tyrant Guard have the Furious Charge and Rage special rules for the remainder of the battle.

Shieldwall: A single Hive Tyrant (or the Swarmlord) may join a unit of Tyrant Guard exactly as if it were an Independent Character A Hive Tyrant (or the Swarmlord) in a unit that contains at least one model with this special rule automatically passes Look Out, Sir rolls.

Hive Guard: Instinctive Behaviour (Hunt) (pg 38), Very Bulky

VENOMTHROPES

Venomthropes are gangrel creatures with scrawny bodies and whip-like tentacles that drip with alien poisons. Their carapaces house bulging gas-filled bladders, allowing the Venomthropes to float ponderously across the battlefield, using their clusters of tendrils to steer themselves towards suitable prey.

In addition to providing the Venomthropes' mobility, the gas bladders also produce thick clouds of alien spores. Venomthropes are shrouded in a dense fog of these airborne spores that conceals not only them, but any other broods of Tyranid predators advancing in their wake. The spores are also the Venomthropes' most insidious form of attack, for they are extremely poisonous to non-Tyranid life forms. Brief exposure causes violent bouts of nausea and uncontrollable muscle spasms, leaving foes weakened and easy prey for the nearby Tyranids. If the enemy is unfortunate, or foolish enough to inhale the Venomthropes' emissions for any prolonged period, the alien spores will gain a foothold within the foe's body. Reproducing rapidly, they spread throughout the host's system, breaking down organic tissues at a horrifying rate. The victim ultimately drowns in its own frothing and infected bodily fluids, and as the diseased corpse collapses in on itself, the Venomthrope uses its feeder tendrils to suck up the bubbling remains.

The bodies of Venomthropes are coated in a variety of alien posons, but it is their writhing tentacles that exude the most leihal of all Tyrand toxins. These venoms are so vinilent that on contact, they cause the flesh of their prey to wither and slough from bone. Those vicinis that do not succumb immediately are entangled by the writhing limbs, bound in a posonous embrace until the Venomthropes toxic spores do their gruesome work.

Though Venomthropes are not the most physically imposing or sagressies Tyranic bioforms, they are, if anything, more dangerous to a prey world's continued survival than bordes of variory organisms. Left to their own devices, a single brood of Venomthropes will eventually poison not only the entire world's indigenous life, but also its sol and atmosphere, leaving the plague-shrouded planet fit only for consumption by the heve fleet.

WS BS S T W I A Ld Sv Venomthrope 3 3 4 4 2 3 2 6 5+

UNIT TYPE: Infantry.

WEAPONS & BIOMORPHS: Lash whips (pg 63), toxic miasma (pg 67).

SPECIAL RULES: Instinctive Behaviour (Lurk) (pg 38), Poisoned (2+), Shrouded, Very Bulky.

Spore Cloud: All friendly models from *Codex: Tyranids* that are within 6" of at least one Venomthrope have the Shrouded special rule.



MALANTHROPES

Malanthropes are rarely seen Tyranid creatures. This is because they are not truly warrior organisms, and so are not usually encountered by a prey world's defenders. Instead, these floating creatures follow behind the Tyranid attack; they are typically created only after a prey world's protectors have been defeated and the swarm is in the process of devouring the planet's biomass. On those few occasions that a survivor has seen a Malanthrope and somehow escaped, they have brought with them a tale of horror. They describe creatures suberficially similar in abbearance to Venomthropes, but far larger and mon terrifying. They report seeing these giants drift across corpse strewn battlefields, but unlike other Tyranids, which mindlessly devour everything in their way, Malanthropes seem to selectively search through the slain - as to what they are searching for, none can say. Once a morsel that suits their taste has been found, they grasp hold of the body with long groping tendrils before feeding the entire mass into their tentacled maw with small, dextrous arms. Those unfortunate enough to still be al when caught by a Malanthrope are stung with a paralysing toxin and then swallowed whole. Living and awake, but trapped within the Malanthrope's bloated digestion sacs, the skin, flesh and bones of these victims is slowly absorbed over the Mowing days - a terrible and excruciatingly painful death.

TERVIGONS

The Tervigon is a massive synapse creature whose towering carapace shields a swollen abdomen. Though possessed of a formidable array of bioweapons, from monstroms class that crush any prey that ventures too close, to banks of razortipped spines that can be fired a considerable distance, the Tervigon's true threat lies within ...

Every Terrygon serves as a living incubator, within whose bloard form dozens upon dozens of Terringants shumber in a state of nearbife. The Terrigon can spawn its dormant broads at will, joling their minds into wakefunders. So it is that a for engaging a Terriyon up close will find itself assailed by waves of skutering Terringion's capacity to reinforce is terribit to behold, for a Terriyon's capacity to reinforce is vast, and its broads are driven into a nearf-renzy by the need to protect their progenitor. The only way for a coolheaded enemy commander to end the horror is to have his troops concentrate all their firepower on the Terriyon. If the beast is skin, the resultant synaptic backlash may kill many of its young. Such a tactic is easier said than done, for the firepower needed to fell a Terriyon is comparable to that

When a hive fleet travels through space, Tervigons do not slumber in a dormant state like the majority of other Tyranids. Instead, they roam the ship's cavernous innards.



Should a Tervigon detect intruders, it immediately spanna, y vertable army of Termaganis to repulse the foc while using its potent synaptic powers to hamper the cemp with or else awaken additional warriors. Unless the foc tan are quickly, they will quickly be engulfed and overwhelmed beneath a tide of diroling jaws and serrated class.

	THE	DC	C	-	***	100		1282-027
	ws	B2	3	1	w	1	A	Ld S.
Tervigon	3	8	5	6	6	9	0	Ld Sv 10 34

UNIT TYPE: Monstrous Creature.

WEAPONS & BIOMORPHS: Scything talons (pg 63), stinger salvo (pg 65).

SPECIAL RULES: Psyker (Mastery Level 1), Shadow in the Warp (pg 38), Synapse Creature (pg 38).

Brood Progenitor: All Termagants in units within 12" of the Tervigon have the Counter-attack special rule.

Spawn Termagants: At the end of your Movement phase, a Tervigon can spawn Termagants (see army list, pg 96). even if it is locked in close combat. If it does yon 103 Bothus is the number of models spawned. Place the new unit of Termagants on the table so that it is wholly within 6° of the Tervigon. Models in this new unit cannot be placed in impassable terrain or within 1° of enemy models. If you cannot place some of the models due to the restrictions above or because you have run out of Termagant models. the excess is discarded.

The spawned unit cannot move during the Movement phase in which it is spawned, nor can it charge his turn, but it is free to shoot or R un as normal. A unit spawned by a Tervigon is identical in every way to a Termagant unit chosen from the Troops section of the army list, and is treated as such for all mission special rules. Models in a spawned unit are armed with fleshborers and may not purchase options.

If any double is rolled when determining the size of a spawned unit, the Tervigon has temporarily exhausted is supply of lavae – the Termiqgant unit is created as normal. but the Tervigon cannot spawn any further units for the rest of the game.

Synaptic Backlash: If a Tervigon is slain, roll 3D6 before termoing the model as a casualty. Each friendly unit of Termaganis within 12° of the Tervigon immediate's suffers a number of Strength 3 AP- hits equal to the result. Cover asses may not be taken against these hits and Womds are allocated as per shooting, with the Tervigon as the first After all Termagant casualities have been resolved (if any) remove the Tervigon from Jaba.

PSYKER: A Tervigon generates its psychic powers from the Powers of the Hive Mind (pg 69).

RAVENERS

Revences are voncious predators, their clawed and snake-like bodies driven onwards by an all-consuming hunger. Twisted muculature grants these beasts at terrifying turn of speed. Reveners can bound over small obstades in an eye-blink, dart beaveen larger obstructions and even sinker through flooded mashland with bewildering swiftness. Yet such is not the Revener's only bewildering swiftness. Yet such is not the Revener's only form of approach and neither is it the most feared, for at least when these alten horrors are charging their pry down arross the battlefield, the enemy has a chance to grate, before energing in a spay of earth right in front of an enemy position, claws existerating their ambushed prey white their thora-mounted weapon switholes spit death.



UNIT TYPE: Beasts.

Karry .

WEAPONS & BIOMORPHS: Two pairs of scything talons (pg 63).

SPECIAL RULES: Deep Strike, Instinctive Behaviour (Feed) (pg 38), Very Bulky.

THE RED TERROR

For neurol days, the so-called Red Terror preyed upon the defenders of the Imperial mining world of Devlan Primus. Survivos spoke of a beast with a blood-coloured carapace, taken that could tunnet through rockcrete, and a maw so wide it could sould wa man whole. With every re-telling, the lygend grew more fearsome and terrifying. Some claimed that the Red Terror was the size of a Ravnere, of there saver it was as big as a Trygon. The survivors of the Devlan massacte for those of a single beast. However, if the Red Terror is a dutinet Tyrand torganism, it must be a highly efficient like; it has never been reported since, but this can only be ensue there have been no survivors left to cell the take.

Support hours what pit gammed the hidrons operation we came house as the Rod Terrors. It first attacked the nature bustion and boardy four new doale lot any with filmers. We never new found the holdres of Lieuranni Bonelae and Capitan Laws is raited situate to lide away from the command pairs and nist the tanaded. It returned the following with, and the shangher genn may but this time we aver ready of the ... or so we though - Fixon Terrors Days IP Mills. The RETRIENT FIXON FIXON PANAS.



	WS	BS	S	T	W	I	A	Ld	Sv
The Red Terror	6	3	5	5	3	5	4	8	4+

UNIT TYPE: Beast (Character).

WEAPONS & BIOMORPHS: Two pairs of scything talons (pg 63), prehensile pincer (pg 67).

SPECIAL RULES: Deep Strike, Instinctive Behaviour (Feed) (pg 38), Very Bulky.

Swallow Whole: If the Red Terror hits with at least four of its close combat attacks in a single phase (escluding its prehensile pincer attack), you may nominate a single enemy Infantry, Jump Infantry or Jet Pack Infantry model in base contact with the Red Terror and attempt to swallow it whole:

If you choose to do so, no To Wound rolls are made (or any of the Red Terror's Attack (excluding its prehensile princer attack). Instead, the nominated model must pass a single invulnerable save (if it has one) or be removed from play as a casaluly. There is no need to decide beforehand if you sull attempt to swallow a model whole, declare after rolling To Hit. Encomy models with entire the Very Balls or Startenetly Balls special role cannot be nominated as targets to be swallowed Whole. If no models in the target unit can be nominated, the Red Terror cannot choose to Swallow Whole and must roll for Wound normally.

TYRANID ARTILLERY ORGANISMS

Whilst many Tyranid organisms excel at tearing their prey apart at close quatters, the Hive Mind has created several with the express purpose of destroying its foes from a great distance. Biovores are perhaps the most commonly encountered ling artillery' bolorm utilised by the hive fleets, but larger and stranger creatures bearing highly specialised bio-cannons are becoming increasingly prevalent. They are not only powerful weapons in the Hive Mind's arenal, but proof of the Tyranid's highly adaptive nature.

BIOVORES

A Biovore is a squat, bloated creature – yet no less deadly for all that. Deep within is hamped from, the Biovore nutrutes a clutch of Spore Mines – living bombs that blanket the enemy in acids poisons and shrapnel-sized pieces of chiun. Biovores hump forward in battle, bony protrusions on their forelimbs anchoring themselves into the ground as they release their vibe payload in a single shundlering span.

As the Spore Mine is flung through the air, its internal gas bladder inflates and it floats down towards ground level. Even if the shot misses its initial target, the danger it poses is far from over, for the Spore Mine is possessed of a rudimentary intelligence and detonates not on impact with the ground, but when it senses the proximity of a non-Fryani dife form.



SPORE MINE CLUSTERS

Clusters of Spore Mines are often seeded directly onto worlds from orbiting bio-ships. Spore Mines have been known to drift for days, just waiting for an unwary foe to come near, before detonating with brutal effect.

	WS	BS	s	т	W	1	A	Ld S
Biovore	3	3	4	4	3	2	2	6 4
Spore Mine	100	-	1	1	1	1		1

UNIT TYPE: Infantry.

WEAPONS & BIOMORPHS: Biovore: Spore Mine launcher (pg 65).

SPECIAL RULES:

Biovore: Instinctive Behaviour (Hunt) (pg 38), Very Bulky.

Spore Mine: Deep Strike, Fearless, Floating Death (pg 65), Living Bomb (pg 65).

Designer's Note: The full rules for Spore Mines can be found on page 65, in the Weapons and Biomorphs section.

EXOCRINES

Exorrines are feared for their ability to deal death from afar The most distinctive feature of an Exoremic is its dorsal bio-cannon, which emits a high-pitched hiss a second before firing, gwing its prey just enough time to realise the danger they are in before searing plasma secours them into atoms.

The Exocrine is purely a means of transportation for the weapon symbiote nexel time is flesh. Whilst the Exocrine possesses considerable strength, it has a disproportionately small brann. Indeed, the dorsal bioweapon has a larger menal capacity than its host and often diverts a portion of its own intelligence to subsume the Exocrine's will. Only when the larger beast remains small can the symbiote focus all of its menal resources into targeting and destrong its pro-

Contraction of the second seco		-		1	-	1	-	-	-
No. of the second	WS	BS	S	т	w	I	A	Ld	Sv 3+
Exocrine	3	3	6	6	5	3	3	7	3+

UNIT TYPE: Monstrous Creature.

WEAPONS & BIOMORPHS: Bio-plasmic cannon (pg 64), scything talons (pg 63).

SPECIAL RULES: Fearless, Instinctive Behaviour (Hunt) (pg 38).

Symbiotic Targeting: If an Exocrine does not move in us Movement phase, it gains a +1 bonus to its Ballistic Skill until the end of its turn. An Exocrine cannot declare a charge during the same turn that it uses this special rule.

Tyranid Feeder Organisms

The live fleets create many organisms whose sole role is the consumption of biomass. Whilst the Rupper is the simplest and most numerous of such creatures, the Hire Mind has also created several larger species of feeder-beast, creatures that can speed up the digestion of a prey world terfold, pre-digesting biomass and devouring in once bite what would make hundreds of smaller jaws to tera apart.

Being larger, stronger and often created with deadly symbiotic bioweapons, these specialised feeder-beasts can also be deployed before a prev wolfd's defences have been completely defeated. Thus, they are often encountered amongs the reargurated of Tyranid attacks, hunting down the last remnants of resistance from a planet's populace alongside other warrio-organisms before stripping the battlefield clean of corposes the moment a battle is won.

HARUSPEXES

The Tyranid Haruspex is a ferocious beast created to consume biomass at a sickening pace. It is possessed of a rapacious appetite, driven by the need to sate an infinite hunger. Few focs are foolish enough to stand before a feeding Haruspex, for it can devour an entire platoon of soldiers in a matter of moments, shovelling victim after victim into its craw without ever slowing down. Any morsel that proves too large to be swallowed in one gulp is seized with the Haruspex's gargantuan claws and ripped, crushed or battered apart with negligent ease. Buildings are smashed open, battle tanks torn asunder and the unfortunate prey sheltering inside hungrily devoured. Only those that turn and flee have any hope of survival, and only then if they can avoid the Haruspex's grasping tongue as it lashes out to grab hold of its prey and drag it, kicking and screaming, into its vast maw

т	w	I	A	Ld	Sv
6	5	3	3	7	3+
				0 0 0 0	T W I A Ld 6 5 3 3 7

UNIT TYPE: Monstrous Creature.

WEAPONS & BIOMORPHS: Grasping tongue (pg 64), acid blood (pg 67), crushing claws (pg 63).

SPECIAL RULES: Fearless, Instinctive Behaviour (Feed) (pg 38).

Feeder-beast: If a Haruspex inflicts at least one unsaved Wound in the Assault phase, then at the end of that phase it recovers a single Wound lost earlier in the battle.

Repations Hunger: In the turn in which a Haruspex charges, stery unsaved Wound that it inflicts in close combat sumediated allows it to make an additional Attack. These bonns Attacks cannot generate further Attacks. Wounds that uffici Instant Death only generate one bonns Attack. Note that Wounds caused by its Hammer of Wrath, acid blood or tab homopph do not benefit from this rule:



PYROVORES

Provores exist to pre-digest biomas; their mass drip with acids that reduce flesh, metal and even stone to a smouldering mucous for consumption by other Tyranids. A pyroore's primary threat is its dorad bio-weapon, which can launch searing flames to reduce its foes to ash. Slaving a pyroore is not without risk ether, for its detailhole can ignite volatile ichors within its stomachs in an explosion that leaves behind only charred scraps of flesh and a fout smell.

the second second		-	-	-			-	-	
P. A.	WS	BS	S	т	w	1	A	Ld	Sv
Pyrovore	3	3	4	4	3	2	2	6	4+
k. Holore	1000	0.31	0.90	6396	-	0.7/1	1.5	-	

UNIT TYPE: Infantry.

WEAPONS & BIOMORPHS: Flamespurt (pg 64), acid blood (pg 67), acid maw (pg 67).

SPECIAL RULES: Instinctive Behaviour (Feed) (pg 38), Very Bulky.

Volatile: If a Pyrovore is slain by a Wound that inflicted Instant Death, every unit suffers a Strength 5 AP- hit for each model (excluding Pyrovores) within D6' of the slain Pyrovore (resolve damage before removing the Pyrovore as a casualty)

CARNIFEXES

Camifexes are living engines of destruction, towering monsters of unpicking armourced chinn and knotted allen musculature. They are one of the toughest and deadliest of all a hive field's warrior creatures, created to spearhcad assaults in massed battles. Though the Hive Mind has since created larger varrior-organisms, few are the Camific's equal in terms of size to strength, nor in terms of sheer destructive potential.

The Imperium's first recorded Carnic's encounters occurred in the buttles leading to Hive Feter Behemoth's imvasion of Macrage. As the great starvessels of Mankind Storow with the unearthik imiga physics of the Tyrands, Carnificress were to be found at the head of every boarding attion, tearing the defenders apart with sythe-shaped talons and immolating the survivors with incandescent bolls of bioplasma. These creatures swithy became known as 'Screamer Kllers', named for the terrible utulating shirek that accompanied their bio-plasma discharges. Though many other iterations of Carnifes have since been encountered, some even more fearsome by any objective standard, the Screamer Killer had slaughtered is way into legend.

Carnifexes are created by the hive fleets in relatively large numbers, meaning that it is a rare Tyranid assault that does not include at least one brood of these mighty creatures.



They are rugged and adaptable bioforms, their great strength allowing them to wield some of the Tyranide' most powerful weaponry with case. This allows the hive fleets to create an army of monsters perfectly suited to overcome and destroy a prey world's defenders. To make matter wore, Carnifexes are protected by a heavy, reinforced exokeleton that is at least as dense as ceramite. Combined with their massive bulk and unnatural alien vitality, Carnifexes can shrug off an obscene amount of firepower and endure horrendous wounds before succumbing to death.



Though Carnifexes lack the swiftness of other creatures in the Tyranid swarm, they more than make up for it in sheer brute force. A Carnifex's thunderous charge starts slowly steely sinews straining as the beast propels its improbable bulk to top speed making the ground itself shake. Its heavy footfalls beat out a sonorous drum-beat of doom as it strides forth. As the beast reaches full speed, its prey scatters before it or is trampled to death. A charging Carnifex is likened to a living battering ram, for their immense bulk can crush any opponent that bars its way and smash through almost any obstacle. Indeed, only a hardened fortress wall or superheavy tank has any hope of surviving the impact and stalling the Carnifex's stampede. Sometimes, not even this proves sufficient, as the few surviving records from Macragge's polar fortresses bear testament. The best way to survive a charging Carnifex is to be elsewhere when it arrives.

Fortunately for the other races of the galaxy, the Camiles is not without a weakness. A Camifes is a beast of little self-awareness and even less intellect, needing constant supervision by synapse creatures lest it revert to an unthinking rampage that, which horrifying to behold, can be exploited by a cunning strategist. However, whatever solace an enemy general might take from a Camilés' lisk of tacties is unlikely to extend to the troops facing such a moster on the buttlefield – even an undirected camiles can wreak a path of carnage and havoc before it is evenually brought down.

Carnifex WS BS S T W I A Ld Sv 3 3 9 6 4 2 3 7 3+

UNIT TYPE: Monstrous Creature.

WEAPONS & BIOMORPHS: Two pairs of scything talons (pg 63).

SPECIAL RULES: Fearless, Instinctive Behaviour (Feed) (pg 38).

Living Battering Ram: When this model charges, it inflicts D3 Hammer of Wrath Attacks, rather than just 1.

RIPPER ORGANISMS

From the moment a Tyranid hive fleet makes planetfall, coundess voracious organisms are released. Most numerous amongst these creatures are Rippers. They writhe across the surface, their numbers ever growing as they consume everything in their path. Ripper organisms follow hard on the heels of the Tyranid advance, devouring the dead and wunded with grim efficiency and boundless vigour.

During a Tyranid invasion, billions of Ripper organisms overshelm and consume the defenders. When sated, they throw their own engorged bodies into large digestion pools where they, and the biomass they have feasted upon, are broken down into a thick gruel used to feed the orbiting bioships and eventually create more complex creatures.

Uncontested, Rippers will scour a prey world of every scrap of biomass and every drop of moisture, leaving only an empty and desolate wasteland in their wake.

RIPPER SWARMS

A Ripper Swarm is a writhing mat of maggodike Tyranid organism driven by a single ovaricous appetite. Each Ripper is link more than an armoured scrpent, terminating in a bood maw crammed with needlesharp teeth. They are pensisten beings, quite capable of pulling down reatures many times their size. Once a Ripper's jaws tighten around is prey, they say calampled shut unul a mouthful of fisch is form away or the Ripper is slain. On the rare occasions when the Ripper discover an obstacle that cannot be chewed through, they burrow beneath the obstruction, guided through, they burrow hereath the obstruction, guided

 WS BS S T W I A Ld Sv

 2
 2
 3
 3
 2
 4
 5
 6+

UNIT TYPE: Infantry

SPECIAL RULES: Fearless, Instinctive Behaviour (Feed) (pg 38), Swarms.

SKY-SLASHER SWARMS

Though Rippers are the simplest Tyranid organisms, different swarms sport variant characteristics. Winged Rippers, known as Sky-slashers, are an increasingly common sight, especially on prey worlds with little or no land mass.

Krand .		-				-	-	-	laine says
	WS	BS	s	т	w	I	A	Ld	Sv 6+
Sky-slasher Swarm	2	2	3	3	3	2	4	5	6+

UNIT TYPE: Jump Infantry.

SPECIAL RULES: Fearless, Instinctive Behaviour (Feed) (pg 38), Swarms.



THE PARASITE OF MORTREX

The Imperial fortress world of Mortrex was one of the most heavily defended planets in Segmentum Ultima - a world where fortifications sprouted from every mountainside and bastions punctuated the landscape. For days, when Hive Fleet Kraken attacked, this formidable defence held back the vicious hordes. However, during the tenth day of the invasion, the Imperial Guard defending Mortrex encountered a winged bioform they had never seen before. Without warning, the monster dove towards the human entrenchments, stabbing at the Imperial Guardsmen with lightning-quick strikes of its tail. The creature's victims were thus injected with Ripper parasites, many of which grew to maturity within a few heartbeats, devouring their hosts from the inside out. Amidst agonised death screams, a swarm of Rippers ruptured through cracked bones and torn flesh as they emerged in a spray of blood. The few survivors told of the new Tyranid threat, a horrifying creature that implants organisms into its still-living prey.

They called this creature the Parasite, and all knew that to face it was to risk the most horrfic death imaginable. Two weeks later, the planet of Mortrex was overrun by vast, ravenous tides of Ripper Swams. All that remained was a single transmission that warned of the Parasite.

MAWLOCS

Mawlocs are huge wormlike creatures with great distended jaws. They are the unmelling outriders to the Tyranid swarm, and burrow deep beneath the ground to bypass a prey-world's front line defences. Once past the outer perimeter, a Mawloc bursts forth in a shower of dirt and stone, swallowing any focs unfortunate enough to be standing where it emerges. The Mawloc then runs rampant throughout the reeling enemy, wreaking as much havoe and urange as it can with its overmuccided tail before vanishing back beforg ground once more. Severe tremors are the only warning of A Mawloc attack, making sentry duy on a seismically active world a particularly harrowing experience of the defenders should a hive feet enter the wstem.

Physically, a Mawloc is an incredibly simple Tyranid bioform, with little concession given to other roles. Its six clawed limbs are comparatively small and whilst they lack the reach to be seperally efficient in combat, they are nonetheless incredibly powerful – employed to gain extra traction whils thurwoing and haul the Mawloc through its tunnek. This should not be taken to mean a Mawloc is defenceless, norhong could be further from the truth. A Mawloc's massive, razorotoothed maw is the entryway to an equally cavernous gullet. Most of the creature's victims are swallowed whole, there to be painfully digested over the source of several days. Those focus large enough to stick in



the Mawloc's craw are first pounded flat by a battery of blows from the creature's muscular tail before being devoured

A Mawloc is almost entirely blind, and relies on information provided by a series of pressure-sensitive organs that run the length of its flashs. These can absorb and deepher pressure waves, creating a many-layered picture of the world around the Mawloc. It is his ability that allows the creative to hunt its prey even whist burrowing through the ground. Even the sightest tremor above ground grants a hunting Mawloc a wealth of information, enabling it to intercept a quary with frighteming speed and unerring accuracy. The more regular and hydrimic the sound, the more likely it is that a Mawloc will be able to home in on the source. The pounding thung of a terrified hearbeat is like a flaring bacon to a Mawloc. Thus it is a victim's own fear that betrays their whereabous and brings about their destruction.

Contraction	THE	DC		T		1	1	1	1165
	war	63	э	T	w	1	A	Ld	Sv
Mawloc	WS I 3	0	6	6	6	4	3	8	24

UNIT TYPE: Monstrous Creature.

SPECIAL RULES: Deep Strike, Fearless, Hit & Run, Instinctive Behaviour (Feed) (pg 38).

Burrow: An unengaged Mawloc can, at any point during its Movement phases from the second game turn onwards, elect to burrow. If it does so, remove it from the table and place it into Ongoing Reserves. A Mawloc cannot Deep Strike and Burrow in the same turn.

Terror From the Deep: When arriving from Deep Strike Reserve, a Mawloc can choose to Deep Strike onto a point occupied by another model (friend or foe) - roll for scatter as normal. If a Mawloc Deep Strikes onto a point occupied by another model, do not roll on the Deep Strike Mishap table. Instead, place the large blast marker directly over the spot the Mawloc is deep striking onto. All units except Flyers and Flying Monstrous Creatures beneath the blast marker suffer a number of Strength 6 AP2 hits with the Ignores Cover special rule equal to the number of models that unit has underneath the blast marker. If the blast marker is on a multi-level ruin, only models on the lowest level of the ruin count as being under the blast marker For Wound allocation purposes, assume the attack is coming from the centre of the blast marker. Hits against vehicles are resolved against their side armour.

If, after removing canualities, it is now possible to place the Mawloc on the table on the spot where the blast marker landed, then do so, even if this is within 1° d another model four not if it would be in base contact with, or occuping the same space as, another model). If it is not possible to place the Mawloc, replace the large blast marker on the spot and removing casualities for a second time, it is tall not possible to place the Mawloc, roll on the Deep Strike Makhap table

TRYGONS

The Tryon is a wat serpentine creature, so colossal that at over over even the mighty Carnifex. It is a heavily amounted monster, covered from head to tail with a thick carapace of shifting plates. As the Tryon moves, these plates generate a potent bio-static charge that courses along the length of the beast's body and wreathes its bladed forelimbs with cracking power. The Tryon can direct this energy as a lethal high-toltage discharge – unleasting publing arcs of lightming that leave its prey as little more than a charred pile of sorched bones.



A Tryon's claws are not only fearsome in close combat, they also allow it to burrow through practically any material When a Tryon detects an enemy above, it digs upwards, bursting through the ground with explosive force, its huge class systimg through warrios and tanks alike. Such attacks are hard to detect and harder to defend against, especially on worlds with background seismic activity. Once the beast emerges, only focused heavy-weapons fire can be relied upon to bring it down, for the Trygon's iron-hard carapace is proof against ledse.

Trogons execante a massive network of underground tunnels as they burrow beneath the surface of a prey work. Other Tyrand creatures use the passageways left in the Trygon's wale, southing unseen as battle rages overhead. The emergence of a tunneling Trygon therefore often heralds a larger Tyrand attack, with hordes of creatures pouring out of the tunnel shortly after its centergence.

TRYGON PRIMES

As with many Tyranid organisms, different Trygons display ubstantial variety, one of the most distinct is the Trygon Time. These beats have elongated jaws and containment plines running the length of their sinuous bodies, to better barness and direct their bioelectric discharges. More dangerous still, these Trygons share a strong synaptic link with the Hive Mind and are able to dominate the will of leser Tyrand creatures.

	WS	BS	S	Т	w	I	A	Ld	Sv
Trygon	5	3	6		6	4	5	8	3+
Trygon Prime	5	3	6	6	6	4	5	10	3+

UNIT TYPE: Monstrous Creature.

WEAPONS & BIOMORPHS: Bio-electric pulse (Trygon only) (pg 63), bio-electric pulse with containment spines (Trygon Prime only) (pg 63), bwo pairs of scything talons (pg 63).

SPECIAL RULES: Deep Strike, Fearless (Trygon only), Fleet, Instinctive Behaviour (Feed) (Trygon only) (pg 38), Shadow in the Warp (Trygon Prime only) (pg 38), Synapse Creature (Trygon Prime only) (pg 38).

Subterranean Assault: If, when a Trygon (or Trygon Prime) deploys via Deep Strike, it scatters on top of impassable terrain or another model (friend or foe), reduce the scatter distance by the minimum required to avoid the obstacle.

After the Trygon (or Trygon Prime) has emerged, mark the position under the creature's base with a suitable marker – this represents the tunnel left by its emergence. Any frendly Tyrand Infanty unit that arrives from reserve in subsequent turns may emerge from the Trygon's tunnel instead of arriving from reserve as normal. Only one unit may emerge from each turnel marker each turn.

If any unit chooses to do so, place the entire unit so that, all of its models are sholly whilm 6° of the centre of the marker and in unit coherency. These models cannot be placed within 1° of enew models or within impassable terrain; if any models cannot be placed, these excess models are removed as casualises. A unit may not move or charge on the same turn it arrives from a Trygon's tunnel, but may shoot or Run.



HIVE CRONES

The Hive Crone is a flying monstrosity used by the Tyranids to establish air superiority over prey worlds. It is a creature perfectly adapted to aerial combat, able to wrestle enemy aircraft out of the skies as proficiently as any daredevil pilot at the controls of a sophisticated jet-fighter.

A clinich of parasitic tenaclich nestle underneath a Hire Crone's wings, latched en until launched at enemy atteraft. Upon leaving their host, these creatures speed through the air, homing in on their target with uncering accuracy. When these living missiles strike, they emit a massive bio-electric pushe batt can eripple the target's electronics or stall their engines, leaving them without power or thrust and sending them into a fatal dwe. But even without these impressive bio-missiles to shoot its prey, a Hive Crone is still deadly, friging close enough to its quary to tear through them with the bladed spurs on its underside. Once all aerial prey has ground-bound defenders, swooping over the heads of the enony soldiery and drizzling digitive fluids onto its victums.

Before reaching a target planet, Hive Crones also protect bio-ships in their journeys through extragalactic space against attacks from enemy assault shuttles and bomber craft; in silence, a hive fleet's Crones glide through the inky darkness, ripping enemy vessels open to the cold vacuum.



A RECEIPTION OF THE RECEIPTION OF			No. C		1268	1000	in the	Contraction of the local division of the loc
	WS	BS	S	T	W	1	A	Id s.
Hive Crone	3	3	5	5	5	5	3	Ld Sv 10 4+

UNIT TYPE: Flying Monstrous Creature.

WEAPONS & BIOMORPHS: Drool cannon (pg 64), four tentaclids (pg 65), scything talons (pg 63).

SPECIAL RULES: Fearless, Instinctive Behaviour (Feed) (pg 38).

Raking Strike: A Hive Crone's Vector Strike is resolved at Strength 8.



MEIOTIC SPORES

Meiotic Spores are large fleshy sacks full of bio-acid and spore mines. They are mindless beasts, sometimes controlled by the will of synapse creatures, but more often left to drift across a war zone until triggered by an unsuspecting foe.

Though occasionally encountered at ground level, Metotic Spores most often float high above the battlefield, their trailing tendrils alert for non-Tyranid life. When such prey is detected, the Meiotic Spore vents gas from a series of bladders, allowing it to close with alarming speed. Once the enemy is within range, the Meiotic Spore detonates, showering the area with corrosive juices. The force of this explosion is far greater than that of an ordinary Spore Mine, and is often sufficient to rupture an aircraft's hull. Sensors, ailerons and other more sensitive equipment are almost certain to be destroyed, unless the pilot veers off at the last moment - which is as likely to send the aircraft into collision with another Meiotic Spore as it is to bring salvation. In the first recorded encounter with Meiotic Spores, Space Marines of the Red Scorpions Chapter suffered severe losses to their fleet of Thunderhawk Gunships before they could develop effective countermeasures.

Many of the Sport Mines within a Meiotic Spore are dotunted adongsite theor parent, there denues adding to the fore of the already formatable blast. Some, however, are flang from, and continue to drift in search of your largets – which normally through to be any course of passengers, who have balacia of the dotund attractift. Thus is the threat of a Measic Spore often not radds single by shoring it down.

HARPIES

Harpies are monstrous bioforms that fly with a definess and againsy unattainable by even the most sophisticated fightercraft. As they soar overhead, they rain clusters of living bombs onto prey worlds whilst their forearms, which are melded with large bioweapons, spit death as they fly.

Harpies appear in the early stages of a Tyranid attack, working in concert with Gargoyles to drive prey creatures out into the open. However, though the two species share a similar goal, they are physically very different. Where the Gargoyle is very much akin to a winged Termagant, the Harpy appears much closer in nature to a Trygon.

As with many of the larger Tyranid bioforms, the Harpy utilises a wide array of weaponry, according to the particular nection acceds of the hive fleet. In addition to the biolated Spore Mine cysts on their undersides and the bio-weapons fasted to their forearms, the ribcages of many Harpies conceal rows of barbed spines. These are typically fired as the Harpy files over the foe, ripping through infantry formations below.

However, the Harpy is most feared for the ear-splitting short bhat it makes as it dives for the kill. Such is the pitch and volume of this pierring noise that it is almost a weapon in itself. It is exeruscatingly painful to lesser life forms, such as Orls and humans, and can even prove faal to or creatures with more highly developed senses, such as Eldar or the genetically enhanced Space Marines. Those that survive this Geophonous assault are left dizzied and disortented, easy prey for the Harpy's razoeshaper Jalons.

Perhaps due to its opportunistic nature, the Harry tends to awad protracted assaults, instead opting for strafing runs performed at the nadir of one of its swooping dives. This is not to say that the Harry does not engage in bloody melec, built rarely engages in such a contex tunless the odds of victory are stacked in its favour. Accordingly, the Harpy's fourned quarry is something ill-suited to fighting back – hight enemy whicles are a particular favourite, as they lack the speed to escape and the capacity to offer any real threat to be Harpy at short range.



UNIT TYPE: Flying Monstrous Creature.

WEAPONS & BIOMORPHS: Twin-linked stranglethorn cannon (pg 63), scything talons (pg 63), spore mine cysts (pg 65).

SPECIAL RULES: Fearless, Instinctive Behaviour (Hunt) (pg 38).

Sonic Screech: When a Harpy charges into combat, all enemy models in the combat suffer-5 to their Initiative (to a minimum of 1) until the end of that Assault phase.



HARRIDANS

Harridans are truby massive creatures, laboral to the fying drakes and systems of ancient legard. They are the largest Tyranid logions caloble of atmosphere, flight, searing though a prop world's stars on work, lendbrey surgs. Though they lack the short speed of an attack aircraft, it is a drawe foot maded who drinks them an easy target. Harridans can stare a fyre a gatt with a single study of their sussive talons. More more start with a single study of their sussive talons. More along indepinetly and need hover land. Harridans act as impost models in the smaller Comprehense and their undersides worthe textus flocks of them. When the Harridan has instrugeted its those is their destination, the Congoles unlikelds there clause and open their soon membraness studys, reardings a dark claud that learneds to sum of the symbol.



TYRANNOFEXES

There can be little doubt that the massive Tyrannofex exists purely for destruction – it is a monter created for the most apocaliptic and gruelling of battlegrounds. Striding uninously towards their prey, these alien gains deal death from afar, shattering enemp battle lines with mercless salves of bio-weapons fire. The only way to stop the unrelenting shughter is to slav the beast, but a Tyrannofex has the fortimude of a living battle fortress and is herefless of all but the heavier enemy ordname. Cladi an ablatue layers of chitmous armour, a Tyrannofex is as unyielding as any war engine built of steel or born of conventional technology.

Contractory of

Given its enormous bulk, a Tyramofex is ponderous and proto to beging overshelmed in a protracted melec. Therefore, the Hive Mind rarely unleashes such a creature without at least a brood or more of Termagants to act as close support and defence, allowing the Tyramofex itself to concentrate on blasting the enemy asunder with its fearsome weapon symbiotes.

How ronic it is that, as fast as we spread progress and hope throughout the galaxy, the Tyranids spread death and despair. - AUN'SHI OF VIORIA



A Tyrannofex's weaponry eclipses that of its foes' most powerful battle tanks. Cluster spine launchers nesting within thick armour plates provide the Tyrannofex with a formidable anti-infantry arsenal, but it is for the giant biocannon cradled in its forelimbs that this hukking warriorbeat is most feared across the galaxy.

The Tyramofex's primary bioweapon is amongst the largest and most destructive to be carried by any Tyranid bioform smaller than a biofian. The precise nature of this weapon symbiote is different from creature to creature, ranging from aid sprays that can mell entire infanty formations to gant bioccannons that can punch holes clean through Space Marine Land Raiders or Necron Monoliths.

the deside		-	-	-	-	-			-
	WS	BS	s	т	w	I	A	Ld	Sv
Tyrannofex	3	3	6	6	6	2	3	8	2+

UNIT TYPE: Monstrous Creature.

WEAPONS & BIOMORPHS: Acid spray (pg 63), stinger salvo (pg 65).

SPECIAL RULES: Fearless, Instinctive Behaviour (Hunt) (pg 38).

TYRANID BIO-TITANS

Transh disoitans are the mast genuite of all the monstroutes unloaded by the low flort during a planetary invesson and are brought into actions only against the nosi id derimited defines. They are manuses creatures, towering over the buildfeld and broining with spinse, class, tendrits and appendipte howeveryons. The most commonly encountered builties unloaded by the lowe floct are the Hereadule and the even larger Harophant. Though classified as Titans by the indigenous traces of the galaxy, these monsters hare little resembance to the node wave regenes of the Adeptas Mechanics, the graceful wavaithbome constructs of the Eddax or even the idol-labe Carganits of the Orks, except in terms of size and lethnity.

As with all Tyranid argoniums, rapid mutability and adaption is common to biotitans. Like the have ships that created then, hio-titans appear to be composite or several different creatures so closely mished and fused together that they have become an indistinguished whole. Biotitans are natorously difficult to kill, even with super-heavy weapony. They are protected by radged baits of chinn that are angled to adject tomomy Basts Even if this externor is protected by the focussed and repeated hermodynamics and the combined outsmare of the entire army, have a hole of distripting a boistan. Whether such arms can hrang the biotitan down before it typis the start to sufficient of the biotitan down before it typis the energy failed in the starting and the biotitan down before it typis the energy half in the starting the biotitan down before it typis the energy half in the starting the biotitan down before it typis the energy half in the starting the biotitan down before it typis the energy half in the starting the output of the starting and the starting the starting the biotitan down before it typis the starting the starting

THE SWARMLORD

amongs the billions of creatures created by the Hive structure is the very pinnalce of the Hive Tyrant baceform, the alianet conduct through which the Hive Tyrant bacform, the alianet conduct through which the Hive Mind's implacable ali enforced. This creature is to a Hive Tyrant what a Hive Tyrant is to a Termagant. It is a monster of darkest agitamar that has preved on empires and overseen the exinction of entire exilisations. It is a legendary destroyer dowthe and its amoust are legion. It is the Tyranturof of the Hive Mind, the Herald of Great Devourer and the Destroyer of the Khal's Barpire. To be Imperium of Man, the Itaest to face this ancient predator, it is the Swambard, and it represents the greatest. Tyrand therast to the galaxy.

Since the First Tyramic War, the Swamlord has carved a blody path of carnage across the galaxy. It was responsible for the Scouring of the Megyre System, the destruction of the Bryanr race and the consumption of Waaagh! Gorgha, Not only did these events span several centuries, but each was perpetiated by a different hive fleet. It would therefore spaper that the Swamlord's link with the Hire Mind transcends normal physical limitations. If the Swamlord perishes on the battlefield, the Hire Mind trealsorbs its concounses through the synaptic web. The Swamlord is therefore deathless, and can be regrown to face the enemy gain, returning each time stronger than ever before.



The renearmation of the Swarmlord appears to be a stressinduced response to the hive fleets, one tinggered when its prey cannot be defrated through biological adaptations alone. Indeed, each time it has been reborn, the Swarmlord has been created with the express purpose of out-thinking the enemy and developing new strategres to achieve the greatest results with the warmo-beasts fighting around it. To this end, the Swarmlord possesses more autonomy than any other Tyrand creature yet witnessed. The Swarmlord combines its own resourcefulness with tactical knowledge and experence accumulated through acons of bioodshed. Such is the Swarmlord's alten cunning that, on several occasions during the Batle for Macragge, it was alte to outnanceuvre and outsit the Ultramarines, varriors whose oun tactical accuments legendary.

the state of the s		-	-	1	-		-	-	-
	WS	BS	s	т	w	I	A	Ld	Sv
The Swarmlord	9	4	6	6	5	6	4	10	3+

UNIT TYPE: Monstrous Creature (Character).

WARLORD TRAIT: Synaptic Lynchpin (pg 38).

SPECIAL RULES: Psyker (Mastery Level 3), Shadow in the Warp (pg 38), Synapse Creature (pg 38).

Alien Cunning: Whilst the Swarmlord is alive, you must add 1 to your Reserve Rolls.

Swarm Leader: At the beginning of your turn, choose either the Swarmlord's unit, or one friendly unit from *Codex*. *Typanida* within 18° of the Swarmlord. Then, choose one of the following special rules: Furious Charge, Monster Hunter, or Preferred Enemy. The chosen unit has that special rule unit the end of the turn.

PSYKER: The Swarmlord generates its psychic powers from the Powers of the Hive Mind (pg 69).

BIO-ARTEFACTS

Bone Sabres: The Swarmlord wields two pairs of servated bone sabres. Through the core of each blade lies a crystalline growth. These alien crystals are not indigenous to this galaxy, and the bone sabres crackle with lethal power.

The Swarmlord has two pairs of bone sabres. Each pair counts as a Melee weapon with the following profile:

Range	S	AP	Туре
	User	2	Mclee,
			Blade Parry,
			Instant Death

Blade Parry: The Swarmlord has a 4+ invulnerable save against Wounds caused by Melee weapons.

OLD ONE EYE

The Carrifec known as Old One Eve is a monster of living legend When Hive Fiete Rhemoth descended upon the cavern world of Calib, Old One Eve spearheaded the Tranda assault. Sampeding intrough the defenders, it seatted aside Imperial Guardianen and Leman Russ Battle Tanks as if they were rangels but bothersome insects. Only the most powerfail of vesaponry slowed the beast down and, to this day, its body bears the scars of the many blows that should by all rights have killed it. Foremost amongst these its a deep burn running across its armoured skull, a testament to the course get a longelorgotten here of the hear's eyes and into its brain. It was this years shot that brought the Carrifice's rampage to a dramatic halt, the first time such a feat had ever ocurred.

The legend of Old One Eye might have ended there had it not been for a band of smugglers who stumbled across the monster's frozen body decades later. Hoping to reap a bounts for the corpse, they thawed the Carnites exit, but even as they did so, its grievous wounds began to heal Solated from the guiding presence of the Hive Mind, Old One Eye awoke with only the need to kill Is one remaining eye gazed hungrily upon the unsuspecting smugglers who barely had time to register the beast was alive before they were slaughtered.



Released from its icy prison, Old One Eye roamed across the bitzzardswept landscape of Calth in search of more preylake much of the Ultramar system at this time, Fermagants and Genestealers still lurked within caves there, despite Hise Fleet Behemoth's defeat. These creatures were durated one Eye, sensing in the Carnifex a powerful alpha leader. All over the planet, land convoys were destroyed, habdomes manked and entire populations massarcet and devoured

Calth's cries for help did not go unheeded; Sergean Telion of the Ultrammers, a veteran of the First Tyramic Ware answered them. It did not take the Scout Sergeant long to track hin quarry, but neither bolt shell on Sergeant long to genere Old One Kye's annourced hide. As Telion's warriors, were crushed to a pulp beneath the Carnifec's massive chao, the Sergeant somehow managed a one-ins-million shot that found the pit of its runned eyesocket. The mighty Carnifec howled in pain and, in its frenzier chao, each for the beard's body, it was never found.

Since that time, there have been scattered reports of Od One Eye recentriging to wrach have, only to be felded through the actions of a bold hero. Indeed, if all the tales are true, Old One Eye has been slain more than a dozen times, but al great cost on each occasion. None know of Old One Eye's true fate; there are those that believe the creature is long dead and that the tales of its return are mere atores to frighten disobedient children. However, rumours persui that creatures matching Old One Eye's description have been seen plagung planets across Ultramar and beyond. If this is the same creature, it is unknown how it cacaged the confines of Calth, but the fact remains that, wherever Old One Eye's sighted, carnage and slaghter follow in its wake

	WS	BC	c	T	w	T	2.41	Ld	C
		03	3				A	Lu	31
Old One Eve	3	8	10	6	4	9	4	8	24

UNIT TYPE: Monstrous Creature (Character).

WARLORD TRAIT: Adaptive Biology (pg 38).

WEAPONS & BIOMORPHS: Crushing claws (pg 63), scything talons (pg 63), regeneration (pg 67), thresher scythe (pg 67).

SPECIAL RULES: Instinctive Behaviour (Feed) (pg 38), Fearless, Living Battering Ram (pg 52).

Alpha Leader: Any friendly unit within 12" of Old One Eye can choose to use Old One Eye's Leadership for any Morale or Leadership tests they are required to make.

Berserk Rampage: For every successful To Hit roll that Old One Eye makes in close combat (exchaining those from its thresher scythe), it may immediately make one additional Attack against the same unit. These additional Attacks do not confer exitt Attacks.

DEATHLEAPER

Of all Mankind's phobias, it is the unknown and the unseen that commands the greatest fear. The pious people of St. Caspalen came to know such fear because of a single Tyranid organism, a solitary Lictor of such ruthless efficiency that many believed it was in fact a Daemon sent to punish them. So apt at avoiding detection was this predator that the first its victims knew of its presence was when clawed talons plunged into their back. All across the missionary world, watchguards and sentries mysteriously vanished, only to be found days later lying face down in the dirt with their skulls pierced and their brains sucked out. Before long, the soldiers of the St. Caspalen defence force were jumping at every shadow, frightened by any mysterious sound and advancing only with wary trepidation on their patrols, their fears heightened by the unseen beast that hunted them and the grisly death that awaited them. The scared soldiers of St Caspalen named this predator in a vain attempt to salve their fears, a name uttered only in hushed whispers - they called it Deathleaper.

The rumours of Deathleaper spread like wildfire through the supersitions populace, and with each telling, the tales of carange grees. That Deathleaper was created as Hive Fleet Leatahas' sulmate assessin seemed clear, but who the Licotro was seeking out remained eluxor. This only increased people's anxiety, after all, it could be after them! However, Deathleaper was far more than just a mindless assassin, this is a task any Lictor can perform. Deathleaper was created to be a terror weapon, one crafted to utterly undermine the earny's morale and break their will to oppose the swarm.

On St. Caspalen, Deathleaper instinctively sensed that the execution of the planet's spiritual leader, Cardinal Salem, would have only accomplished the creation of a martyr, steeling the resolve of the St. Caspalen people in the face of the approaching hive fleet. Instead, Deathleaper infiltrated the Cardinal's cathedral-bunker and slaughtered his advisors, hacked through his bodyguard, and left only the prey-leader himself unharmed, covered in the blood and viscera of his closest aides. Like a monstrous predator toying with a mouse, Deathleaper repeated this gruesome carnage for ten days, bypassing the ever-increasing levels of security each time to come within a claw's grasp of the Cardinal before mysteriously fleeing from the bloody scene. The knowledge that the Tyranid assassin could eliminate him at any time was more than the Cardinal's sanity could take. His daily broadcasts became increasingly frantic, and his panicstricken paranoia and broken mind did more to break the morale of the St. Caspalen defence forces than any mere execution could have. As terror and confusion reigned free, Hive Fleet Leviathan invaded and the swarm butchered its leaderless prey due solely to the actions of the Deathleaper.

We there, I know it is, lurking in the shadows, stalking me like an animal. It's death itself I tell you, just watching me, wuiting Oh blessed Emperor, why won't it just kill me? - THE RAVINGS OF CARDINAL SALEM.



-			-	-		-	-	-	lonese	97
P	WS	BS	s	т	w	I	A	Ld	Sv	
Deathleaper	9	3	6	4	3	7	4	10	5+	

UNIT TYPE: Infantry (Character).

WARLORD TRAIT: Mind Eater (pg 38).

WEAPONS & BIOMORPHS: Rending claws (pg 63), scything talons (pg 63), flesh hooks (pg 67).

SPECIAL RULES: Chameleonic Skin (pg 44), Deep Strike, Fear, Fleet, Hit & Run, Infiltrate, Instinctive Behaviour (Lurk) (pg 38), Move Through Cover, Pheromone Trail (pg 44), Stealth, Very Bulky.

'It's after mel': Nominate an enemy character at the beginning of the game and roll a D3. Whilst Deathleaper is alive, that model's Leadership is reduced by the result.

'Where is it?': Enemy models can only fire Snap Shots when targeting Deathleaper.





WEAPONS AND BIOMORPHS

This section of Codes: Tyranids lists the weapons and biomorphs used by the Tyranid hive fleets along with the rules for using This section or to a section of the them in your a set of the Hive Mind section, while weapons and biomorphs used by almed characters are detailed in the appropriate entry in the Forces of the Hive Mind section, while weapons and biomorphs used by all the other types of units

MELEE WEAPONS

Designer's Note: Tyranid Melee weapons come as pairs. For game purposes, each pair is treated as a single Melee weapon This means that Tyranid models must fight with two pairs of any Tyranid Melee weapons to gain a bonus Attack in close combat for fighting with two weapons. For example, a Hormagaunt armed with a single pair of scything talons does not gain a bonus Attack, but a Ravener with two pairs of southing talons, or a Genestealer with a pair of rending claws and a pair of scything talons, does.

BONESWORDS

Boneswords are living monomolecular blades that can drain the lifeforce of their victims.

Range	S	AP	Туре
	User	3	Melee,
			Life Drain

Life Drain: Any To Wound roll of a 6 made by this weapon has the Instant Death special rule.

CRUSHING CLAWS

The obscene strength of these claws allows them to smash any foe.

Range	S	AP	Туре
-	+1	2	Melce, Armourbane,
			Unwieldy

RANGED WEAPONS

ACID SPRAY

This weapon sprays caustic digestive fluids that reduce its victims to shapeless gobbets of liquefied flesh.

Range	s	АР	Туре
Template	6	4	Assault 1, Torrent

BARBED STRANGLER WEAPONS

These weapons fire seed pods that grow to maturity in seconds, spreading out hooked tendrils in all directions.

	Range	S	AP	Туре
Barbed strangler	36"	4	5	Assault 1,
				Large Blast,
				Pinning
Stranglethorn canr	100 36"	6	5	Assault 1,
				Large Blast,
				Pinning

LASH WHIPS



Lash whips are cords of muscle that move at lightning speeds to slash their prev.

Range	S	AP	Туре	
	User	-	Melee, Swiftstrike	1

Swiftstrike: A model attacking with this weapon has a +3 bonus to its Initiative during the Fight sub-phase.

LASH WHIP AND BONESWORD

Some Tyranid creatures wield these bio-weapons as a deadly symbiotic combination

Range	S	AP	Туре
	User	3	Melee, Life Drain,
			Swiftstrike

RENDING CLAWS

The diamond-hard tips of these claws can tear through armour.

Range	S	AP	Туре
A	User	5	Melce, Rending

SCYTHING TALONS

Scything talons are long, razor-edged claws of servated chilin.

Range	S	AP	Туре	
-	User	6	Melce	Contraction of the

BIO-ELECTRIC PULSE WEAPONS

As a Trygon moves, it generates a potent bio-static field that discharges with lethal effect when the Trygon sights prey. Trygon Primes have curved spines sprouting from their bodies which contain and amplify this energy.

	Range	S	AP	Туре
Bio-clectric pulse	12 ^a	5	5	Assault 6
Bio-electric pulse w	ith		5	Assault 12
containment spines	18"	5	9	Assault 12

BIO-PLASMA

Some Carnifexes can generate a roaring ball of bio-plasma within their bodies and vomit forth the resultant energy as an incandescent gobbet of fire.

	Range	S	AP	
Bio-plasma	12"	7	2	Assault 1, Blast

BIO-PLASMIC CANNON

This giant weapon can channel bio-plasma through a series of different ventricles to ensure the destruction of its prey, unleashing a wast ball of roaring energy through its central chamber, or firing several focussed streams of death through its surrounding barrels.

	Range	S	AP	Туре
Blast	24"	7	2	Assault 1,
				Large Blast
Streams	24"	7	2	Assault 6

CLUSTER SPINES

Some Tyranid bioforms have rows of quills imbedded in their carapaces that they can project a considerable distance.

Range	S	AP	Туре
18"	5	-	Assault 1, Large Blast

DEATHSPITTER

This multi-creature symbiote fires maggot-like organisms with corrosive innards. A spider-jawed set of fangs drags an organism from the vectopoin's brooding chamber and stripts of it is shell, before the dealhybitter reacts to the caustic flech with a spasm, firing the maggot to explode in a shower of caustic silten against its target.

Range	S	AP	Туре	
18"	5	5	Assault 3	

DEVOURER WEAPONS

These weapons fling worm-like parasites that burrow into their victim's flesh and rat their way through its nervous system to the brain. The devourers weielded by larger Tyranids teem with hives of brainlikech worms, a more aggressive and voracious devourer worm.

	Range	S	AP	Туре	
Devourer	18"	4		Assault 3	
Devourer with brainleech worms	18"	6		Assault 6	

DROOL CANNON

Drool cannons fire gobbets of caustic digestive juice over their victims.

Range	S	AP	Туре	
Template	6	4	Assault 1	2000

THORAX BIOMORPHS

Certain Tyramids have thoracic cavities that play host to swarms of parasites – some of these minute creatures drain their victims' vital fluids, others emit an electrical charge which plays have with enemy vehicles, and others still nestle amongst the foe's armour before exploding in a horrific fashion.

Thorax biomorphs are ranged weapons.

	Range	s	AP	Туре
Desiccator larvae	Template	1	-	Assault 1, Fleshbane
Electroshock grubs	Template	5	5	Assault 1, Haywire
Shreddershard beetles	Template	3	-	Assault 1, Rending, Shred

FLAMESPURT

The Pyrovore's flamespurt bio-weapon billows forth a blazing plume of fire, engulfing the Hive Mind's fors in a searing conflagration.

Range	S	AP	Туре	
Template	5	4	Assault 1	1

FLESHBORER WEAPONS

The fieldwore is a compact brood net for sharpf anged hore budge. When the weapon is first, a first-tab hore back and hunds tady forward with a single flick of its flex bloc legs. The bestle then speads its remaining life energy in a faw scends, franticulty horing through the armour, fleb and hone of the first hing in its pair. The flexibore hire is a seeking colony for the very same bette, but the flexibore hire is a seeking colony for the very same bette, but the accounts, flexibore of the bord scender flexibore hire accounts also and the origin of the bord scender hire is of eggs that hatch and matture at an astomshing rate within the accounts also flexibor of the bord scender hire horizont must get the bedte at regular intervals to prevent the Tyramsofge from busing apolitation that to be mass of creature birthour within a

	Range	S	AP	Туре
Fleshborer	12"	4	5	Assault 1
Fleshborer hive	18"	4	5	Assault 20

GRASPING TONGUE

This creature's clawed tongue grasps its chosen prey before yanking it bodily into its maw.

Range	S	AP	Туре
12"	6	2	Assault 1, Gulp!

Gulp! A To Hit roll of a 6 made with this weapon results in a Precision Shot (see the Warhammer 40,000 rulebook).

IMPALER CANNON

Impaler cannons propel osseous spines at such high velocities that they can punch through reinforced plasteel. At the base of each spine is a small creature known as a shard-beast that uses thin membranous fins to steer the spine towards its target.

Range	S	AP	Туре	
24"	8	4	Assault 2, Homing,	
			Ignores Cover	

Homing: Impaler cannons can be fired at targets out of the unit's line of sight.

RUPTURE CANNON

This wordom fires two different projectiles, launched in quick succession. The first is a bloaded tick that bursts upon impact, showering the target in a thick oily substance. The second, a seedpod, reacts as it contacts the viscous remains of the tick, creating an implision which can even versech armourd vehicle inside to

Range	S	AP	Туре	
48"	10	4	Assault 2	See.

SHOCKCANNON

Shockcannons fire large claus attached to ropes of sinew, which latch onto their target before delivering a powerful bio-electric surge that electrocutes any prey nearby and disables enemy machinery.

Range	S	AP	Туре	
18"	5	5	Assault 1, Blast, Haywire	

SPIKE RIFLE

This bony, muscle-lined tube launches harpoon-like spikes.

Range	S	AP	Туре	
18"	3	-	Assault 1	

SPINEFISTS

This weapon-creature, typically carried in pairs, has a long tail that through a limb to connect the gun's own air-bladder to the enverse and vents of its host. A larger host will exhale great salvoes of spines, ripping through the flesh of anything caught in the blast

Range	S	AP	Туре	
12"	3	5	Assault X*,	1
			Twin-linked	

* Spinefists get one shot for every Attack on the unmodified characteristic profile of the Tyranid creature firing them. For example, a Termagant (1 Attack) fires 1 shot while a Ravener (3 Attacks) fires 3 shots.

STINGER SALVO

Singer salvoes are simple but effective weapons that fire rows of min-long, razor-sharp spikes.

Range	S	AP	Туре	
18"	5	4	Assault 4	

STRANGLEWEB

The strangleweb fires a mesh of sticky strands that ensnare the foe, leaving them at the mercy of the approaching swarm.

Range	S AP		Type	
Template	2		Type	
		-	Assault 1, Pinning	

TENTACLIDS

These living missiles seek out aerial prey, latching onto their targets with barbed fangs before emitting a massive bio-electrical pulse.

Range	S	АР	Туре
36"	5	5	Assault 1, Haywire,
			Sceking, One use only

Seeking: If a model makes a shooting attack with this weapon against either a Zooming Flyer or a Swooping Flying Monstrous Creatures, it re-rolls failed To Hit rolls made with this weapon.

VENOM CANNON WEAPONS

These powerful bio-weapons fire salvoes of corrosive crystals at tremendous velocities which shatter on impact to shred the foe.

	Range	S	AP	Туре
Venom cannon	36"	6	4	Assault 1, Blast
Hvy venom cannor	36"	9	4	Assault 1, Blast

SPORE MINE WEAPONS

Non the state

And the second	Range	S	AP	Туре
Spore Mine cysts	1. A.	4	4	Assault 1, Barrage
				Large Blast,
				Spore Bomb,
				Spore Burst
Spore Mine launch	er 48"	4	4	Assault 1, Barrage
				Large Blast,
				Spore Burst

Spore Bomb: Unlike other weapons, Spore Mine cysts are used during the Movement phase. A Harpy can fire its Spore Mine cysts once in each of its Movement phases. If it does so, it counts as having fired one weapon in its following Shooting phase; however, any other weapons it fires that turn can choose a different target to the Spore Mine cysts. To fire the Spore Mine cysts, the Harpy must he Swooping. After the Harpy has finished moving, centre the large blast marker on any one model the Harpy has passed over that turn and scatter it D6". Units take a hit for each model that is even partially under the blast marker's final position, resolved using the profile above.

Spore Burst: If, when the final position of the first blast marker in the barrage is determined, there are no models (friend or foe) under it, place D3 Spore Mine models anywhere under the blast marker so that they are in unit coherency and not within impassable terrain or 1" of an enemy model (any that cannot be placed are lost). These act as a Spore Mine Cluster for the test of the game,

the set of the set	WS	BS	S	т	w	I	A	Ld	Sv
Spore Mine			1	1	1	1		1	

UNIT TYPE: Infantry.

total -

SPECIAL RULES: Fearless, Deep Strike.

Floating Death: Spore Mines move 3" in the Movement phase and, when they Run or charge, move half the distance rolled. Spore Mines are never slowed by difficult terrain, but must take Dangerous Terrain tests as normal.

Spore Mines do not attack in close combat. Instead, at the Initiative 10 step, the entire cluster detonates! To resolve this, centre the large blast marker over any one of the unit's Spore Mines. Every other unit (friend or foe) under the blast marker suffers a number of hits equal to the number of its models under the blast marker. The Strength of these hits is equal to 4, but is increased by 1 for each additional Spore Mine in the detonating cluster (to a maximum of Strength 10). These hits are resolved at AP4 and ignore cover saves. Once all hits have been resolved, remove all models in the Spore Mine Cluster from play as casualties.

Living Bomb: Spore Mine Clusters are non-scoring. non-denial units. They do not award Victory Points when destroyed, and Wounds suffered by Spore Mines in close combat (including those caused by a Floating Death detonation) are not counted when determining assault results.



BIOMORPH UPGRADES

ACID BLOOD

The alien blood spilt from certain Tyranids is so corrosive that it can ent through ceramite armour and dissolve flesh in mere moments.

For each unsaved Wound a model with the acid blood biomorph suffers in close combat, the enemy unit that unfieted the Wound must take an Initiative test at the end of the current Initiative step. For each test that is failed, the unit that inflicted the Wound immediately suffers a Strength 5.4P bit with the Ignores Cover special rule.

ACID MAW

The maws of some Tyranids constantly drip with acidic bile.

In close combat, a model with this biomorph can exchange all of its normal Attacks to make a single acid maw attack with the following profile:

Range	S	AP	Туре	
	5	2	Melee	

ADRENAL GLANDS

Advenal glands saturate their host's bodies with chemicals that boost the creature's metabolism to a hyperactive state of frenzy.

A model with the adrenal glands biomorph has the Fleet and Furious Charge special rules.

BLINDING VENOM

Some Tyranids spit caustic venom at their prey's eyes.

In close combat, a model with this biomorph can exchange all of its normal Attacks to make a single blinding venom attack, which uses the following profile:

Range	S	AP	Туре
-	3	-	Melee, Blind,
			Poisoned (6+)

REGENERATION

Some Tyranids have the ability to recover from horrendous wounds and injuries that should have proven fatal.

At the end of each friendly turn, roll a DG for each model with the regeneration biomorph that has less than its starting number of Wounds, but has not been removed as a casually. On a 4+, that model regains a single Wound lost earlier in the batle.

TOXIC MIASMA

Some creatures emit toxins to poison a prey world's atmosphere.

Once per game, in any Assault phase, a unit with this biomorph can unleash its toxic misann. If it does so, at the Initiates 1 step, all energy units engaged in the combat will be a unlease of this equal to the number of models from their unit in base contact with any model from the Tyranid unit unleashing the toxic misann. These hits are resolved as Strength 3, AP, and have the Poisoned and Ignores Cover Freesian lates.

FLESH HOOKS AND SPINE BANKS

Flish hooks are attached to a Tyranid's ribeage by ropy tendrils and allow it to scale sheer surfaces or snare prey at close range. The explosive spine banks imbedded in the carapaces of some Carnifexes can also be fired at the foe as the Tyranid charges.

Models equipped with either of these biomorphs don't suffer the penalty to their Initiative for charging enemies through difficult terrain but fight at their normal Initiative. In addition, they can each be fired as a ranged weapon with the relevant profile below.

Range	5	AP	Туре
6"	User	-	Assault 2
8"	3		Assault 1, Blast
	6"	6" User	6" User -

TOXIN SACS

These parasitic glands secrete vile fluids, coating the Tyranid's claws, fangs and talons with a lethal variety of alien poisons.

If a model has the toxin sacs biomorph, its close combat attacks have the Poisoned special rule.

WINGS

The forelimbs of some Tyranid organisms are in fact leathery wings.

If a Monstrous Creature has this biomorph, its unit type is Flying Monstrous Creature.

TAIL BIOMORPHS

The tails of some Tyranids are deadly weapons, from bony protrusions dense enough to cave in the side of a tank to stingers containing enough poison to kill whole regiments.

A unit homorph is a Melee weapon that allows its wieder to make a single additional Attack. Note that this Attack is resolved separately from a model's other close combat attacks and uses the appropriate profile below. Also note that a tial Attack is not affected by other Melee exeptons, biomorphis, upgrades or special rules belonging to the owning model, or vice versa. For example, a Hw prant with a heavy remon cannon, a labl whip and bonesword, a prehensile pincer and toxin stas does not gain an additional Attack for fighting with two close combat weapons, nor does its prehensile pincer rail tarack have either the Smaki or Poissoned special rules.

	Range	S	AP	Туре
Bone mace		8	-	Melee, Unwieldy
Prehensile pincer		6	5	Melee
Thresher scythe	•	4	4	Melce, Rending
Toxinspike	•	1	6	Melee, Poisoned (2+)
	and a second second second		100000	

BIO-ARTEFACTS OF THE TYRANIDS

The bio-srtefacts of the Tyranids are symbiotic organisms of incredible rarity. Only one of each of the following items may be chosen per army – there is only thought to be one of each of these items in existence (or so the indigenous races of the galaxy hope)...

THE MAW-CLAWS OF THYRAX

During the distruction of Thyras, the dread heast that spearheaded the assault bore a symbotic pair of fanglined phiers. These terrible claws fore apart and consumed the bodies of those brave enough to stand against the monstrusity, absorbing their memories and assimilating greater knowledge of its proving

Range	S	AP	Туре
	User	5	Melee, Assimilate,
			Rending

Assimilate: If this weapon's close combat attacks cause an enemy model to be removed as a casually, the model equipped with the Maweclaws of Thyrax gains the Preferred Enemy special rule against all units chosen from the same codex as the model removed as a casuality.

THE NORN CROWN

First named by Inguistic Kyptinan, the Nam Crean is a unique parantic organism that cings to the announcl creat of the heat creatury's head with deems of tendrik. Burrowing usedlesble correlation of the structure of the short. Borrowing the forms a neurosynaptic this that acts as a hyper-conduct for the Hww Mind. Through this adhorm tunion, the Hww Mind's indomitable will can pour protein to augment and control the hardes of lever Tymmist that structure in the leader-boarty works.

A model with the Norn Crown adds 6" to its synapse range.

THE MIASMA CANNON

The Tyranids utilise all manner of hisoworkputs, but none hat have earned more dread than the Miasum Carmon. Unlike other vermine cannons, this workput first goldets of four hidden status so verminen that it reduces spatials of solidiers into shapletes puddies of organize goo as words. Whatler vermining noticeus fluids in great torents on luquefying targets in gouts of acid, the Miasum Cannon has been responsible for ducta beyond counting.

	Range	S	AP	Туре
Miasmic spit	36"	1	4	Assault 1, Blast, Poisoned (2+)
Miasmic spray	Template	1	4	Assault 1, Poisoned (2+)



THE YMGARL FACTOR

The Yingarl Genestealers have long been a cancerous blight on the worlds of the Imperium. Their instatioble voracity is legend amongsi those that have had the misfortune to encounter them and live. Now, dark rumours have surfaced of another Tyranid leader-beast that appears to share the unfathomable adaptability of the Yingarl Genestealers.

At the start of every Assault phase, a model with the Yungarl Factor must alter their form into one of the three listed below. The bonus gained lasts until the end of the phase. The same form cannot be chosen in two consecutive turns.

Slashing Claws: The model has +1 Strength. Tentacled Limbs: The model has +1 Attack. Protective Carapace: The model's armour save is improved by 1.

THE REAPER OF OBLITERAX

The Reaper of Obliterax was first encountered amongst the re-margent Tyranid swarms of Hire Feel formungande A dealth bio-executon resembing a bonesword, this southent blade us commonly-welded alongside a lash whip. The Reaper discharges highly concentrated bursts of destructive energy, and even the lightest blow care result in the blades' larget being rent assumder

Range	S	AP	Туре
-	+1	3	Melee, Life Drain,
			Shred, Swiftstrike

Life Drain: Any To Wound roll of a 6 made by this weapon has the Instant Death special rule.

Swiftstrike: A model attacking with this weapon has a +3 bonus to its Initiative during the Fight sub-phase
POWERS OF THE HIVE MIND

Many Tyranids are also Psykers. They do not draw power from the Warp in any fathomable way, but rather they harness a fraction of the Hive Mind's gestalt will. This makes no difference for game purposes and these models follow all the normal rules for Psykers - a Perils of the Warp attack they suffer instead represents massive etcebrail runno or synaptic Feedback. Tyranid Psykers use the Powers of the Hive Mind, which is treated as a psychic discipline for al rules purposes.

PRIMARIS POWER

Dominion is a blessing that targets the Psyker. Whilst this power is in effect the Psyker adds 6" to its synapse range

- - - -

Catalyst is a blessing that targets the Psyker's unit and up to one other friendly unit from *Codes: Tyranids* that is within 12°. Whilst this power is in effect, the targets gain the Feel No Pain special rule.



The Horor is a malediction that targets a single enemy unit within 24°. The target must immediately take a Pinning test (as described for the Pinning special rule in the Warhammer 40,000 rulebook) with a -2 modifier to their Leadership.

Ondaught is a blessing that targets a single friendly unit within 24". Whilst this power is in effect, the target unit can both Run and then shoot in its Shooting phase. Paroxysm is a malediction that targets a single enemy unit within 24". Whilst this power is in effect, the target unit's Weapon Skill and Ballistic Skill are both reduced by D3 (roll once and apply the result to both characteristics).

Psychic Scream is a nowa power with a range of 6". For each target unit, roll 2D6+2 and subtract their Leadership. That unit suffers a number of Wounds equal to the result. Armour and cover saves cannot be taken against Wounds caused by Psychic Scream.

Warp Blast is a witchfire power. Warp Blast can be used as either a Burst or a Lance. Each time this power is manifested, the controlling player must choose which profile is being used, before the target is chosen:





COLOURS OF THE HIVE FLEETS

The Tyranids offer collectors and painters a plethora of choices, from swarms of warrior-creatures to hulking alien monsters. All Tyranids within a hive fleet tend to share the same colourings, with weapon symbiotes often contrasting vitidly with their host. That said, variances in hue and shade are common, and splinter fleets often display matricings that are alogether unique.



The Swarmlord, Herald of the Great Devourer

Tyranud Prime with deathspitter, lash whip and bonesword



Old One Eye is a nigh-unstoppable engine of destruction.



A winged Hive Tyrant takes synaptic command of a Tyranid swarm as Hive Fleet Leviathan sweeps through the ruins of an Imperial city.





Hive Tyrani with heavy venom cannon, lash whip and bonesscond

Deathleaper



Tyranid Warriors from Hive Fleet Behemoth, Hive Fleet Kraken and Hive Fleet Leviathan



Tyranid Warrior with venom cannon and scything talons



Tyranid Warrior with barbed strangter and boneswords



and strength of the local division of the lo



Tyrant Guard with rending claws and crushing claws



Tyrant Guard with rending claws, lash whip and bonesword

Tyrant Guard with rending claws and scything talons



Hive Guard with shockcannon



Hive Guard with shockcannon

Hive Guard with impaler cannon



A Tervigon can spawn new broods of Termagants to attack its prey.

minin

Tervigon with crushing claws



Termagants from Hive Fleet Behemoth, Hive Fleet Kraken and Hive Fleet Leviathan



Termagants can bear a number of different weapon symbiotes, including fleshborers and spinefists.









Raveners can mount ranged weapon symboles within their chest cavities.

The Red Terror













Carnifex with stranglethorn cannon, scything talons and bone mace tail







Cluster spines or stinger salvoes are often embedded into a Harpy's underside.

This Harpy is armed with a twin-linked stranglethorn cannon. These winged monstrosities also drop Spore Mines – living bombs – on their prey as they succep overhead.





Broodlords, the most deadly of all Genestealers, with rending claws and scything talons



Genestealers from Hive Fleet Behemoth, Hive Fleet Kraken and Hive Fleet Leviathan



Lictors are deadly Tyranid scouts and assassins.







THE TYRANID SWARM

The following army list enables you to field an army of Tyranids and fight battles using the missions included in the Warhammer 40,000 rulebook.

USING THE ARMY LIST

The Tyranids army list is split into five sections. HQ, troops, clites, fast attack and heavy support. All of the broods, monsters and unique creatures in the army are placed into one of these categories depending upon their role on the battlefield. Each model is also given a points value, which varies depending on how effective that model is in battle.

Before you choose an army, you will need to agree with your opponent upon the type of game you are going to play and the maximum total number of points each of you will spend. Then you can proceed to pick your army following the guidelines given in the *Warhammer* 40,000 rulebook

ARMY LIST ENTRIES

Each entry in the army list represents a different unit.

More information about the background and rules for the Tyranids and their options can be found in the Forces of the Hive Mind section, while examples of the Citadel miniatures that they describe can be found in the Colours of the Hive Fleets section.





WARGEAR LIST

These lists detail the points values of various weapon and biomorph upgrades available to your units. Many unit entries in the army list that follows may include options to select items from one or more of these lists – in each instance, the army are army will real you (in bold text) exactly which of these lists you may use.

Basic Bio-weapons	4
A model may replace its devourer with one of the following:	
- Scything talons.	
- Spinefists	~
f - Deathspitter	's
Basic Bio-cannons	
A model may replace its devourer with one of the following	
- Barbed strangler 10 M	
- Venom cannon	5
Monstrous Bio-cannons	5
A model may replace any pair of scything talons with	
one of the following:	
- Twin-linked deathspitter	
 Twin-linked devourer with brainleech worms. 	ŝ
- Stranglethorn cannon 1	2
- Heavy venom cannon ¹ 20 pt	\$
Melee Bio-weaponspg 63	
A model may replace any pair of scything talons with	
one of the following:	
- Rending claws	\$
- Boneswords 15 bb	\$
- Lash whip and bonesword 20 pts	6
Biomorphspg 67	
A model may take up to one of each of the following:	
- Toxin sacs	i
- Acid blood *	i.
- Adrenal glands. 15 pts	
- Regeneration 30 pts	
	-

Thorax Biomorphs	pg 64
A model may take up to one of the following:	
- Electroshock grubs	10 pts .
- Desiccator larvae	
- Shreddershard beetles	10 pts
Tyranid Bio-artefacts	
A model may replace any pair of scything talons with o	ne of
the following. Only one of each Tyranid Bio-artefact m	ay be
taken per army.	
- The Maw-claws of Thyrax	
- The Miasma Cannon	
- The Norn Crown 3	

The Ymgarl Factor ³
 The Reaper of Obliterax
 40 pts
 40 pts
 45 pts

Notes

- One per model. A model cannot have both a stranglethorn cannon and a heavy venom cannon.
 Cannot be chosen by a Haruspex.
- ³ Does not replace the model's scything talons and so can be taken in addition to any other weapon/upgrade.



Most of the Anaran Fourth, you are the hammer of the Engener. Presents Joge frant forward to graph the polarium. You are an implaceble, unstabpable force. With largent and holy flamer, you wall descend on the for the the Engener's some argenaie: He possised a momeri, allowing his works troom to breake. You stand beside your broker solder as he stands beedey our. Joger function this south resonant for the stand beedey our. Joger function to the sense fulfish that have infeted this workd."

said to the state of the said

'Lies!

Jord snapped upright, enraged by the unsolicited interruption. Show yourself, weetch! What fool among you thinks it his place to should the word of the Emperor? His ejes narrowed as they scanned the seried ranks of Guardsmen, searching for the molefactor he would soon have put to death.

A man in ruined Anarion fatigues limped onto the muster ground and thrust a bloodind huife at the preacher. 'Lies and false hope,' he spat, grinding the stubs of his teeth together. 'Yea..' he span round, gesturing to the ranks of assembled treepers. You go to your death.' Who are you? Josef growled at the man, his zealous piety turning to righteous anger.

Captain Randell. Commander of ... 'Randell stopped walking struggling to stay on his feet as his muscles twitched and commised. His left arm was musing below the elbox, his skin was blistend and scarrel, his cycs bardy subile amongst the cheved must by hace. Thick sails adripped from his mouth as he speke, adding to the layers of mud and viscora covering his uniform. Last of the Annoron Thind.'

'How -' Josef opened his mouth to speak but Randell cut him off with a snarl.

We cannot sum hore. The sense are infinite. "Randell learned the kind," We killed at housand of them and a thousand more, and still they came. A vole source of bone and stick lifesh, a., "He stammered, pressing his hand against his ear. "Chittering chattering, they came. Hissing and sevenching: "Randell such to his hones, tears streaming down his checks as analter spasm wanded his tody." When they came beyon, you value due adone. Your hendrar will not be beside you, he will not be behind you. He will already be dood."

HQ

HIVE TYRANT			16	5 Points
Hive Tyrant	WS BS S T W I A Ld Sv 8 4 6 6 4 5 4 10 3+	Unit Type Monstrous Creature (Character)	Unit Composition 1 Hive Tyrant	Page 40
Weapons and Biomorphy Two pairs of scything talor special Rules: Psyker (Mastery Level 2) Shadow in the Warp Synapse Creature		Options: • May take items from the Monstr Melee Bio-wcapons, Biomorphs Tyranid Bio-artefacts lass. • May take any of the following u • Old Adhernary • Hive Commander • Hay take any of the following: • Prehensibe pincer tail biomorp • Wings.	, Thorax Biomorphs	10 15 20 10
THE SWARMLORE	Contraction of the second second	Contract Product	2	85 Point
THE SWARWLONE	WSBSSTWIALd Sv	Unit Type	Unit Composition	Pag
The Swarmlord	9 4 6 6 5 6 4 10 3+	Monstrous Creature (Character)		59
Bio-artefacts: • Two pairs of bone sabres	Special Rules: • Alien Cunning	• Swarm Leader • Synapse Creature	Psyker: The Swarmlord ger its psychic powers f	rom the
Synaptic Lynchpin TYRANT GUARD E You may include one Ty			Powers of the Hive	
Synaptic Lynchpin TYRANT GUARD E You may include one Ty	Shadow in the Warp BROOD rant Guard Brood for each Hive Tyra		Powers of the Hive	50 Point
Synaptic Lynchpin TYRANT GUARD E You may include one Ty These broods do not use	Shadow in the Warp ROOD Tant Guard Brood for each Hive Tyre up A Force Organisation slot. WS BS S T W I A Ld Sy 5 S 5 6 2 4 2 7 3+	int (including the Swarmlord) in Unit Type	Powers of the Hive your army. Unit Composition 1 Tyrant Guard al Tyrant Guard – 3 uing talons with one 2 Ulowing biomorphs:	50 Point Page 46 0 pts/mode 0 pts/mode 3 pts/mode
Synaptic Lynchpin TYRANT GUARD E You may include one Ty These broods do not us Tyrant Guard Weapons and Biomorp • Rending claws	Shadow in the Warp BROOD Tant Guard Brood for each Hive Tyra up a Force Organisation slot. WS BS 5 T W 1 A Ld Sv 5 5 5 6 2 4 2 7 5+ Bind Rampage Bind Rampage Instinctive Behaviour (Feed) Shieldwall	nt (including the Swarmford) in Unit Type Infantry Options: • May include up to two addition • May model may replace its scyl of the following: • Crushing class • Lash whip and homesword • Lash whip and homesword • Tokin size	Powers of the Hive your army. Unit Composition 1 Tyrant Guard al Tyrant Guard – 3 uing talons with one 2 Ulowing biomorphs:	50 Point Page 46 0 pts/mode 0 pts/mode 3 pts/mode
Synaptic Lynchpin TYRANT GUARDD E You may include one Ty These broods do not us Tyrant Guard Weapons and Biomorp • Rending class • Scything talons	Shadow in the Warp BROOD Tant Guard Brood for each Hive Tyra up a Force Organisation slot. WS BS 5 T W 1 A Ld Sv 5 5 5 6 2 4 2 7 5+ Bind Rampage Bind Rampage Instinctive Behaviour (Feed) Shieldwall	nt (including the Swarmford) in Unit Type Infantry Options: • May include up to two addition • May model may replace its scyl of the following: • Crushing class • Lash whip and homesword • Lash whip and homesword • Tokin size	Powers of the Hive your army. Unit Composition 1 Tyrant Guard al Tyrant Guard al Tyrant Guard 2 Llowing biomorphs	50 Point Page 46 0 pts/mode 0 pts/mode 3 pts/mode 3 pts/mode 5 pts/mode
TYRANT GUARD E You may include one Ty These broods do not us Tyrant Guard Weapons and Biomorp • Rending claws	Shadow in the Warp BROOD Tant Guard Brood for each Hive Tyra up a Force Organisation slot. WS BS 5 T W 1 A Ld Sv 5 5 5 6 2 4 2 7 5+ Bind Rampage Bind Rampage Instinctive Behaviour (Feed) Shieldwall	nt (including the Swarmford) in Unit Type Infantry Options: • May include up to two addition • May model may replace its scyl of the following: • Crushing class • Lash whip and homesword • Lash whip and homesword • Tokin size	Powers of the Hive your army. Unit Composition 1 Tyrant Guard al Tyrant Guard al Tyrant Guard 2 Llowing biomorphs	50 Point Page 46 0 pts/mode 0 pts/mode 0 pts/mode 3 pts/mode 5 pts/mode 20 Point
Synaptic Lynchpin TYRANT GUARD E You may netude one Ty These broods do not us Tyrant Guard Wcapone and Biomorp • Rending class • Sything talons	Shadow in the Warp BROOD Tant Guard Brood for each Hive Tyra up a Force Organisation slot. WS BS 5 T W 1 A Ld Sv 5 5 5 6 2 4 2 7 5+ Bind Rampage Bind Rampage Instinctive Behaviour (Feed) Shieldwall	nt (including the Swarmford) in Unit Type Infantry Options: • May include up to two addition • May model may replace its scyl of the following: • Crushing class • Lash whip and homesword • Lash whip and homesword • Tokin size	Powers of the Hive your army. Unit Composition 1 Tyrant Guard al Tyrant Guard 2 illowing biomorphs 2 Unit Composition	50 Point Page 40 0 pts/mode 0 pts/mode 3 pts/mode 5 pts/mode

HQ

			10	5 Points
W Tervigon 3	SBS S T W I A Ld Sv 3 5 6 6 2 3 10 3+	Unit Type Monstrous Creature	Unit Composition 1 Tervigon	Page 48
Weapons and Biomorphs: • Sunger salvo • Synthing talons Special Rules: • Brood Progenitor • Poyker (Mastery Level 1) • Shadow in the Warp • Spawn Termagants • Synaptic Backlash	Psyker: A Terrigon generates its pychic powers from the Powers of the Hive Mind.	Options: • May take items from the Bior and Tyranid Bio-artefacts hut • May replace scything talows with • May replace sunger salvo with	s. ith crushing claws	15.
TYRANID PRIME	A CONTRACTOR	The second s	12	5 Points
W	SBSSTWIALd Sv	Unit Type	Unit Composition	Page
Tyranid Prime 6		Infantry (Character)	1 Tyranid Prime	41
Devourer	Special Rules: • Alpha Warrior • Independent Character	Options: • May take items from the Basic Meleo Bioweapons, Biomerol		
Devourer			hs and Tyranid Bio-arte	
Devourer Scything talons	Alpha Warrior Independent Character Shadow in the Warp Synapse Creature	 May take items from the Basic Melee Bio-weapons, Biomorphic 	hs and Tyranid Bio-arte	5p
Decourer Scything talons	• Alpha Warrior Independent Character • Shadow in the Warp • Synape Creature • Very Bulky	• May take items from the Basis Melce Bioweapons, Biomorpi • May take flesh hooks	hs and Tyranid Bio-arte	51 0 Points
Verpons and Biomorphs: Decourer Scything talons DEATHLEAPER DEATHLEAPER Brathleaper 9	Alpha Warrior Independent Character Shadow in the Warp Synapse Creature	 May take items from the Basic Melee Bio-weapons, Biomorphic 	hs and Tyranid Bio-arte	5p

1 James

TROOPS

TYRANID WARRIOR B	ROOD		9	0 Points
	BS S T W I A Ld Sv 3 4 4 3 4 3 10 4+	Unit Type Infantry	Unit Composition 3 Tyranid Warriors	Page 41
Weapons and Biomorphs: • Devourer • Stything talons	Special Rules: • Shadow in the Warp • Syrape Creature • Very Bulky • Very Bulky	One model in the unit m Basic Bio-cannons list. Any model may take item and Melee Bio-weapons l The unit may take any of Toxin sats. Ficsh hooks	ns from the Basic Bio-weapon	ns . 3 pts/moe . 4 pts/moe
- de				
GENESTEALER BROC	D		7	O Points
WS Genestealer 6 Broodlord 7	BS S T W I A Ld Sv 0 4 4 1 6 2 10 5+ 0 5 5 3 7 4 10 4+	Unit Type Infantry Infantry (Character)	Unit Composition 5 Genestcalers	Page 43
Weapons and Biomorphs: • Rending claws	Special Rules: • Bulks (Broodlord only) • Fleet • Infiltrate • Move Through Cover • Psyker (Mastery Level 1) (Broodlord only) Psyker: A Broodlord always knows The Horror psychic power:	Any model may take scyd All Genestealers in the u following biomorphs: Adrenal glands Toxin sacs May add a Broodlord A Broodlord may take itte	n additional Genestcalers hing talons nit may take any of the cms from the Biomorphs list	4 pts/mo 2 pts/mo 3 pts/mo 60
Construction of the Constr)			10 Point
TERMAGANT BROOD		Unit Type	Unit Composition	Page 42
WS	BS S T W I A Ld Sv 3 3 3 1 4 1 6 6+	Infantry	10 Termagants	
WS Termagant 3 Weapons and Biomorphs: • Fleshborer		Options: • May include up to twenty • For every ten Termagant	v additional Termagants s, one may replace its eweb	4 pts/mo
WS Termagant 3 Weapons and Biomorphs: • Eleshborer The Scutting Swarm: For ever, Trangant Brood of.	3 3 3 1 4 1 6 6+ Special Rules: • Instinctive Behaviour (Lurk)	Infantry Options: • May include up to went • For every ten Termagani Ideslborer with a strangl • Any model may replace i of the following: • Spike rifle: • Devourer • The unit may take any of	v additional Termagants s, one may replace its eweb	.4 pts/mo 5 pts/mo 4 pts/mo

TROOPS

HORMAGAUN	AI BROO	U						50 Points
Hormagaunt	WS B 3 3		W I 1 5			Unit Type Infantry	Unit Composition 10 Hormagaunts	
Weapons and Biomo Scything talons		Special • Boundi • Fleet • Instinct • Move T	ng Lea ive Bel	ip baviour	(Feed)	 The unit may take as Adrenal glands 	venty additional Hormagaunts ny of the following biomorphs	2 tits/mos
RIPPER SWARN	1 BROOI)						39 Points
RIPPER SWARM	1 BROOI WS BS 2 2	S T	W I 3 2	A La 4 5	l Sv 6+	Unit Type Infantry	Unit Composition 3 Ripper Swarms	



ELITES

HIVE GUARD BROOD		55 Points
WS BS S T W I A Ld Sv Hive Guard 4 3 5 6 2 2 2 7 4+	Unit Type Infantry	Unit Composition Page 1 Hive Guard 46
Weapons and Biomorphs: Special Rules: Impaler cannon Very Bulky	 Any model may repla with a shockcannon. The unit may take an - Toxin sacs. 	
LICTOR BROOD	CONSTRUCTION OF	50 Points
WS BS S T W I A Ld Sv Lictor 6 3 6 4 3 6 3 10 5+	Unit Type Infantry	Unit Composition Page 1 Lictor 44
Weapons and Biomorphs: Rending class Scything talons • Flesh hooks • Flesh works • Hu & Run	Options: • May include up to tw	o addituonal Lictors
Infiltrate Infiltrate Instructive Behaviour (Lark) Move Through Cover Pheromone Trail Stealth Stealth Very Budky		
Instinctive Behaviour (Lurk) Move Through Cover Pheromone Trail Stealth	-	50 Points
Instructive Relaxiour (Lark) More Through Cover Pheromone Trail Stealth Very Balky	Unit Type Infanty	50 Points Unit Composition Page 1 Zoanthrope 45
Insunctive Behaviour (Lark) Wove Through Cover Pheromone Trail Stealth Very Bulky ZOANTHROPE BROOD WS BS S T W 1 A Ld Sy	Infantry Options:	Unit Composition Page 1 Zoanthrope 45
 Insunctive Relation (Lark), Nove Through Cover Pheromone Trail Stealth Very Bulky ZOANTHROPE BROOD VSS BS S T W 1 A Ld Sv Zoanthrope 3 4 4 4 2 5 1 10 5+ Special Rules: Provide Rul	Infantry Options:	Unit Composition Page 1 Zoanthrope 45
Insunctive Behaviour (Lark) Nove Through Cover Pheromone Trail Stealth Very Bulky Very Bulky S S T W 1 A Ld Sv Zoanthrope S 4 4 4 2 5 1 10 5+ Special Rules: Psychen Brood Alvays Knows the Warp Shadow in the Warp Synape Creature Very Bulky	Infantry Options:	Unit Composition Page
 Insunctive Relation (Lark) Nove Through Cover Pheromone Trail Stealth Very Bulky ZOANTHROPE BROOD WS BS S T W I A Ld Sv Zoanthrope 3 4 4 4 2 5 1 10 5+ Specia Rudes: Specia Rudes: Specia Rudes: Portion Rudes: Stadow in the Warp Smaps Creature Very Bulky Warp Field VENOMTHROPE BROOD	Infantry Options: • May include up to tw	Unit Composition Page 1 Zoanthropes

ITES	
Unit Type Monstrous Creature	160 Points Unit Composition Page 1 Haruspex 51
	Biomorphs list. the tail biomorph
	40 Points
Unit Type Infantry	Unit Composition Page 1 Pyrovore 51
	Monstrous Creature Options: • May take items from the May take the thresher scy Unit Type



FAST ATTACK TYRANID SHRIKE BROOD 90 Points WS BS S T W I A Ld Sv Unit Type Unit Composition Page Tyranid Shrike 5 3 4 4 3 4 3 10 5+ Jump Infantry **3 Tyranid Shrikes** Weapons and Biomorphs: Special Rules: Options: May include up to six additional Tyranid Shrikes...... • Devourer · Shadow in the Warp 30 bts/model · Scything talons Synapse Creature · One model in the unit may take an item from the · Very Bulky **Basic Bio-cannons list** · Any model may take items from the Basic Bio-weapons and Melee Bio-weapons lists. . The unit may take any of the following biomorphs: - Adrenal glands 4 pts/model - Toxin sacs. 3 pts/model - Flesh hooks 4 bts/model 90 Points **RAVENER BROOD** WS BS S T W I A Ld Sv Unit Type Unit Composition Page Ravener 5 3 4 4 3 5 2 6 5+ Beasts 3 Raveners Weapons and Biomorphs: Special Rules: **Options:** Deep Strike · Two pairs of scything talons · May include up to six additional Raveners. 30 pts/model · Instinctive Behaviour (Feed) · Any Ravener may exchange one pair of · Very Bulky scything talons for rending claws 5 pts/model · Any Ravener may take one of the following: - Spincfists 3 pts/model - Devourer. 5 pts/model - Deathspitter 10 pts/model · One Ravener Brood in the army may add the Red Terror. 85 pts and an a second THE RED TERROR WS BS S T W I A Ld Sv Unit Type Unit Composition Page 5 5 9 5 4 8 4+ Beast (Character) 1 (Unique) The Red Terror 6 3 Weapons and Biomorphs: **Special Rules:** · Swallow Whole · Two pairs of scything talons · Deep Strike Instinctive Behaviour (Feed) · Very Bulky Prehensile pincer 54 Points SKY-SLASHER SWARM BROOD WS BS S T W I A Ld Sv Unit Type Page Unit Composition

Sky-slasher Swarm 2	2 3 3 3 2 4 5 6+ Jump Infantry 3	Sky-slasher Swarms 53
Special Rules:	Options:	
Fearless	May include up to six additional Sky-slasher Swarms	18 pts/base
Instinctive Behaviour (Feed)	The unit may take spinefists	4 pts/base
• Swarms	The unit may take any of the following biomorphs:	
	- Toxin sacs	4 pts/base
	- Adrenal glands	5 pts/base



HEAVY SUPPORT

a the star the day and

A States

CARNIFEX BRO	OD									120) Points
Carnifex	WS 3		5 T 9 6	W 4	1 2		Ld 7		Unit Type Monstrous Creature	Unit Composition 1 Carnifex	Page 52
Weapons and Biomo	rphs:	0	ptior	IS:							
Two pairs of scything t			May in	iclud	e up	p to	two	additio	nal Carnifexes	ishing claws	0 pts/mod
		•.	Any n	odel	may	y tak	ce ite	ms fro	m the Monstrous Bio-cannon		> pis/moe
Special Rules: • Fearless									e following:		5 pts/mos
Instinctive Behaviour Living Battering Ram	(Feed)		- Bio-	plasn	1a						
Living battering Kain			- Thr	esher	scyl	the .			nonani manuana ramana ana ana ana		0 pts/mo
			- Bon	e ma	ce						5 pts/ mo
- di a											
BIOVORE BROO	DD									4	0 Point
Biovore	WS S	BS 3	S T 4 4	W 3	1 9		Ld 6		Unit Type Infantry	Unit Composition 1 Biovore	Page 50
		-	12:000								
	rphs:	•	pecia Instin Very I	ctive		iavic	our (Hunt)	Options: • May include up to two a	dditional Biovores	10 pts/mo
Veapons and Biomor Spore Mine launcher	rphs:	•	Instin	ctive		iavic	our (Hunt)		dditional Biovores	10 pts/ma
	rphs:	•	Instin	ctive		avic	our (Hunt)			
Spore Mine launcher	rphs: ws 5	:	Instin	ctive 3ulky			Ld			19 Unit Composition	10 pts/mo 0 Point: Page 55
Spore Mine launcher TRYGON Itygon Weapons and Biomor	WS 5	BS 3	S T 6 6	tive Bulky W 6	Bch I 4 les:	A	Ld	Sv	May include up to two a Unit Type Monstrous Creature Options:	19 Unit Composition 1 Trygon	0 Point: Page
Spore Mine launcher TRYGON Itygon	ws 5 rphs:	BS 3	S T 6 6 Deep Fearle	tive Bulky W 6 I Rui Strik	Bch I 4 les:	A	Ld	Sv	May include up to two a Unit Type Monstrous Creature Options: May take items from th May take one of the foll	19 Unit Composition 1 Trygon e Biomorphs list. lowing tail biomorphs.	0 Point Pag 55
Spore Mine launcher TRYGON Trygon Weapons and Biomor Bio-electric pulse	ws 5 rphs:	BS 3	S T 6 6 Pecia Deep Fearle Fleet Instin	ctive Bulky W 6 1 Rul Strik Ssrik ctive	I 4 les: c Bch	A 5	Ld 8	Sv	May include up to two a Unit Type Monstrous Creature Options: May take items from the May take items from the - Prehensite puncer.	19 Unit Composition 1 Trygon	0 Point Pag 55
Spore Mine launcher TRYGON Trygon Weapons and Biomor Bio-electric pulse	ws 5 rphs:	BS 3	S T 6 6 Deep Fearld Fleet	ctive Bulky W 6 1 Rul Strik Ssrik ctive	I 4 les: c Bch	A 5	Ld 8	Sv 3+	May include up to two a Unit Type Monstrous Creature Options: May take items from the May take items from the - Prehensite puncer.	19 Unit Composition 1 Trygon	0 Point Pag 55
Spore Mine Launcher TRYGON Trygon Weapons and Biomon Bio-dectre pulse Two pairs of scything (ws 5 rphs: talons	BS 3	S T 6 6 Pecia Deep Fearle Fleet Instin	ctive Bulky W 6 1 Rul Strik Ssrik ctive	I 4 les: c Bch	A 5	Ld 8	Sv 3+	May include up to two a Unit Type Monstrous Creature Options: May take items from the May take items from the - Prehensite puncer.	19 Unit Composition 1 Trygon : Biomorphs list. lowing tail biomorphs:	0 Point Pag 55 10 10
Spore Mine launcher TRYGON Trygon Weapons and Biomor Bio-electric pulse	ws 5 rphs: talons	BS 3	S T 6 6 pecia Deep Fearlo Fleet Instin Subte	ctive Bulky W 6 I Rui Strik Strik ss ctive rrane	I 4 les: e Beh	A 5 aavic Assa	Ld 8 our (ult	Sv 3+	May include up to two a May include up to two a Unit Type Monstrous Creature May take irms from th May take irms from th May take irms of the foll Prehensite pincer Toximpike	19 Unit Composition 1 Trygon : Biomorphe Int. Towning tuil biomorphs:	0 Point Pag 55 10 10 10 10
Spore Mine Launcher TRYGON Trygon Weapons and Biomon Bio-dectre pulse Two pairs of scything (ws 5 rphs: talons	BS 3	S T 6 6 Pecia Deep Fearle Fleet Instin	ctive Bulky W 6 I Rui Strik Strik Strik Strik	I 4 les: c Bch	A 5 aavic Assa	Ld 8	Sv 3+ Feed) Sv	May include up to two a Unit Type Monstrous Creature Options: May take items from the May take items from the - Prehensite puncer.	19 Unit Composition 1 Trygon : Biomorphs list. lowing tail biomorphs:	0 Point: Page 55 10 10 10 10
Spore Mine Launcher TRYCON Tygon Weapons and Biomon Bioelectre pube Two pairs of scything t TRYCON PRIMI TRYCON PRIMI	ws 5 rphs: talons E ws 5	BS 3 Si	s T 6 6 6 pecia Deep Fearlo Fleet Instin Subte	w 6 1 Rul Strik ctive rrand W 6	I 4 les: e Beh an /	A 5 aavic Assa	Ld 8 our (ult	Sv 3+ Feed) Sv	May include up to two a May include up to two a Unit Type Monstrous Creature May take one of the foll Prehensite puncer Toximpike May take one of the foll Prehensite puncer Toximpike Monstrous Creature Monstrous Creature Options:	19 Unit Composition 1 Trygon c: Biomorphs list. Iowang ual biomorphs: 23 Unit Composition 1 Trygon Prance	0 Point Pag 55 10 10 10 0 Point Page
Spore Mine Launcher TRYCON Trycon Meapons and Biomon Bioelectric puble TrycON PRIMI TrycoN PRIMI Tygon Prime Weapons and Biomon	ws 5 rphs: talons E ws 5 5 rphs:	BS 3 Si BS 3 S	s T 6 6 6 pecia Deep Fearld Fleet Instin Subte s T 6 6 9 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	ctive Bulky W 6 I Rul Strik ss ctive rrand 6	I 4 les: e Beh an / I 4 les:	A 5 aavic Assa	Ld 8 our (ult	Sv 3+ Feed) Sv	May include up to two a	19 Unit Composition 1 Tryon e Biomorphs list. Coving tail biomorphs: 23 Unit Composition 1 Tryon Prime 2 Biomorphs and	0 Point Page 55 10 10 10 0 Point Page
Spore Mine Launcher TRYGON Trygon Weapons and Biomon Bio-dectre pube Two pairs of scything J TRYGON PRIMI Tygon Prime Weapons and Biomon	ws 5 rphs: talons E ws 5 rphs:	BS 3 Si BS 3 S	s T 6 6 pecia Deep Fearlo Subte Subte Subte	w 6 1 Rul Strik sss ctive frrance W 6 1 Ru Strik sw in	I 4 les: e Beh an / I 4 les: c the	A 5	Ld 8 our (ult 10	Sv 3+ Feed) Sv	May include up to two a May include up to two a Unit Type Monstrous Creature Options:	19 Unit Composition 1 Trycon 23 Biomorphs list. Investigation of the second 1 Trycon Prime 1 Trycon Prime 1 Trycon Prime	0 Point Page 55 10 10 10 0 Point Page 55

HEAVY SUPPORT MAWLOC 140 Points WS BS S T W I A Ld Sv Unit Type Mawloc 3 0 6 6 6 4 3 8 3 Unit Composition Page Monstrous Creature 1 Mawloc 54 Special Rules: **Options:** · May take items from the Biomorphs list. · Burrow • Deep Strike May take one of the following tail biomorphs: • Fearless - Prehensile pincer. • Hit & Run 10 pts - Toxinspike Instinctive Behaviour (Feed) 10 pts • Terror from the Deep EXOCRINE 170 Points WS BS S T W I A Ld Sy Unit Type Unit Composition Page 3 3 6 6 5 3 3 7 3+ Monstrous Creature 1 Exocrine 50 Weapons and Biomorphs: Special Rules: Options: Bio-plasmic cannon • Fearless · May take items from the Biomorphs list. · Scything talons Instinctive Behaviour (Hunt) · May take the thresher scythe tail biomorph 10 pts Symbiotic Targeting **TYRANNOFEX** 175 Points WS BS S T W I A Ld Sv Unit Type Unit Composition Page rannofex 3 3 6 6 6 2 3 8 2+ Monstrous Creature 1 Tyrannofex 58 Weapons and Biomorphs: Special Rules: **Options:** · Acid spray • Fearless · May replace acid spray with one of the following: · Stinger salvo · Instinctive Behaviour (Hunt) - Fleshborer hive 5 pts Rupture cannon 30 pts · May take items from the Biomorphs and Thorax Biomorphs lists.

REFERENCE

D6

2

3

4

6

All of the rules and tables here are condensed for case of reference. If you need the full rule, see its entry in the main pages of the book

ARMY SPECIAL RULES (PG 38)

Instinctive Behaviour: At the beginning of each turn, units that are outside the range of friendly Synapse Creatures must take a Leadership test unless they are: engaged in combat, falling back, have gone to ground or arrived from reserve this turn. If they pass, they act normally. If not, roll on the appropriate Instinctive Behaviour table. The result lasts until the beginning of your next turn, unless specified otherwise

Shadow in the Warp: Enemy Psykers within 12" of this model have -3 Leadership.

Synapse Creature: This model has a synapse range of 12". Tyranid models within this range, including the Synapse Creatures themselves, are Fearless. Units automatically rally if they are within synapse range when they begin their move.

WARLORD TRAITS TABLE (PG 38)

WARLORD TRAIT

- Nature's Bane: At the beginning each of your Movement phases, select a jungle within 12" of your Warlord. It becomes a Carnivorous Jungle for the rest of the game.
- Heightened Senses: The Warlord, and Tyranide within 12" of it, have Night Vision.
- Synaptic Lynchpin: The Warlord's Synapse range is 18
- Mind Eater: Receive 2 Victory Points for each Independent Character slain by your Warlord in a challenge.
- Digestive Denial: After deployment, one piece of 5 terrain in the enemy deployment zone (but not one your opponent has purchased) has its cover save is reduced by one.
 - Adaptive Biology: If the Warlord suffers a Wound, it gains Feel No Pain (5+) at the beginning of its next Movement phase.

INSTINCTIVE BEHAVIOUR (LURK) INSTINCTIVE BEHAVIOUR (HUNT)

D6 LURK RESULT

- 1-3 Survive: The unit is treated as having failed a Morale test and must immediately Fall Back.
- 4-5 Seek Cover: In the Movement phase, the unit is not slowed by difficult terrain, though its models must take Dangerous Terrain tests as normal. In the Shooting phase, the unit can Run, but it can only shoot if it is in a building or area terrain (if the unit is partially within area terrain, only those models within area terrain are allowed to shoot). The unit cannot charge in the Assault phase.
 - Stalk: See Seek Cover (above) The unit also has Stealth.

D6 HUNT RESULT

- Burrow and Hide: The unit 1-3 immediately Goes to Ground. Units that contain at least one model with the Fearless special rule treat this result as Prowl (below), instead
- 4-5 Prowl: In the Shooting phase, the unit cannot Run and must instead shoot at the closest enemy unit that is within range and line of sight. If there is no viable target, the Tyranid unit can do nothing during the Shooting phase. It cannot charge in the Assault phase
 - Destroy: See Prowl (above) The unit also has Preferred Enemy.

INSTINCTIVE BEHAVIOUR (FEED)

D6 FEED RESULT 1-3

- Cannibalistic Hunger: The unit immediately suffers a number of hits equal to the number of models in that unit. These hits are resolved using the unit's majority Strength (if drawn, use the highest) and AP-. Wounds are allocated by the owning player and armour saves (but not cover saves) may be taken. The unit can do nothing else until the end of its turn. Units of a single model treat this result as Devour (below), instead.
- Devour: In the Shooting phase, 4-5 the unit cannot shoot or Run. In the Assault phase the unit must declare a charge against the closest viable enemy unit, if it cannot, it does nothing in the Assault phase.
 - Kill: See Devour (above). The unit also has Rage

SPECIAL RULES

Alpha Warrior (pg 41): Tyranid Warriors and Shrikes in this unit use the Tyranid Prime's Weapon Skill and Ballistic Skill.

Blind Rampage (pg 46): If a Hive Tyrant in this unit is killed, from the end of that turn the Tyrant Guard have Furious Charge and Rage.

Bounding Leap (pg 42): Run an additional S" (normally D6+S").

Brood Progenitor (pg 48): All Termagants in units within 12" of the Tervigon have the Counter-attack special rule

Burrow (pg 54): An unengaged Mawloc can enter Ongoing Reserves during its Movement phase from the second game tura onwards. It cannot Deep Strike and Burrow in the same turn.

Chameleonic Skin (pg 44): Does not scatter when arriving via Deep Strike.

Feeder-beast (pg 51): If a Haruspex causes one or more Wounds in the Assault phase, it recovers a single Wound.

Floating Death (pg 65): Move 3", halve Run or charge moves. Ignore difficult terrain (but still take dangerous terrain tests). Cannot attack: instead, at the Initiative 10 step, centre the large blast marker over one Spore Mine. Models are hit at Strength 4, +1 for each additional Spore Mine in the cluster. These hits are AP4 and ignore cover saves. Then remove the Spore Mine Cluster from play.

Living Battering Ram (pg 52): Has Hammer of Wrath (D3).



Living Bomb (pg 65): Are non-scoring, non-denial units. Do not award Victory Points when destroyed, and do not count towards combat resolution

Pheromone Trail (pg 44): Friendly units arming by Deep Strike do not scatter if placed within 6" of this model. This model must already be on the table at the start of the turn for this ability to be used.

Psychic Brood (pg 45): Brotherhood of Psykers with Mastery Level 2. If a Toanthrope brood uses Warp Blast, the suraber of shots fired is equal to the sumpler of Zoanthropes in that brood.

Raking Strike (pg 56): Vector Strikes at Strength 8.

Rapacious Hunger (pg 51): When it charges, a Haruspex gets a bonus Attack for every unsaved Wound it inflicts in close combat - these do not generate further Attacks. Wounds caused by its Hammer of Wrath, acid blood or tail biomorph do not benefit from this rule.



Shieldwall (pg 46): A single Hive Tyrant (or the Swarmlord) may join this unit as if it were an Independent Character, and automatically passes Look Out, Sir rolls whilst it is part of the unit.

Sonic Screech (pg 57): Enemies have -5 Initiative in the phase in which they are charged by a Harpy.

Spawn Termagants (pg 48): At the end of each friendly Movement phase, you may choose to place 3D6 Termagants (with fleshborers) wholly within 6" of the Tervigon. This unit cannot move or charge this turn, but may shoot or run. If the 3D6 contains a double, the unit is spawned but the Tervigon cannot spawn any further units.

Spore Bomb (pg 65): During the Movement phase, after Swooping, centre a large blast marker on a model the Harpy has passed over; scatter it D6" The Harpy's other weapons can choose a different target.

Spore Burst (pg 65): If no models are hit by this attack, place a Spore Mine Cluster of D3 models under the blast marker before removing it.

Spore Cloud (pg 47): Friendly Tyranid models within 6" of a Venomthrope have Shrouded.

Subterranean Assault (pg 55): Reduce the Trygon's Deep Strike scatter to avoid impassable terrain or models. Mark the final position of its Deep Strike arrival; in subsequent turns, friendly Tyranid Infantry may arrive from reserve from the same point (one unit per turn). Place these units wholly within 6" of the centre of the marker. Models that cannot be placed are destroyed. These units cannot move or charge in the turn they arrive, but may shoot or Run.

Swallow Whole (pg 49): If the Red Terror hits with four or more attacks in a phase (excluding its prehensile pincer), you may nominate a single enemy Infantry, Jump Infantry or Jet Pack Infantry model in base contact. The model must pass a single invulnerable save (if it has one) or be killed. Very Bulky or Extremely Bulky models cannot be Swallowed Whole.

Symbiotic Targeting (pg 50): If an Exocrine does not move, it has +1 Ballistic Skill until the end of its turn. It cannot declare a charge during the same turn that it uses this special rule.

Synaptic Backlash (pg 48): If a Tervigon is slain, all friendly Termagant Broods within 12" suffer 3D6 Strength 3 AP- hits.

Terror from the Deep (pg 54): A Mawloc can choose to Deep Strike onto another model. If, after scattering, the Mawloc is Deep Striking onto another model, place the large blast marker directly onto that spot. Non-flying models hit by this suffer a Strength 6 AP2 hit with Ignores Cover (vehicles are hit on their side armour). Then, place the Mawloc there if you can If not, resolve another attack as above. If it still cannot be placed, it suffers a Deep Strike Mishap.

Volatile (pg 51): If a Pyrovore is slain by Instant Death, every unit suffers a Strength 3 AP- hit for each non-Pyrovore model within D6" of the slain Pyroyore.

Warp Field (pg 45): Zoanthropes have a 3+ invulnerable save.

Ac co tes Ac Str Ad BI bli

Fle ch: the

> Re Spi ch the

To mo hir To Wi

TAI Ata Atta

Preh



BIOMORPH UPGRADES (PG 67)

Acid blood: For each unsaved Wound it suffers in clos combat, the enemy unit takes an Initiative test. For each failed test, they suffer a Strength 5 AP2 hit. Acid maw: Can exchange its normal Attacks for a single

Strength 5 AP2 Melee attack

Adrenal glands: Has Fleet and Furious Charge.

el

Blinding venom: Can exchange its normal Attacks for a blinding venom attack Range AP

Type Melee, Blind Poisoned (6+)

Flesh hooks: Ignore the penalty to their Initiative for charging enemies through difficult terrain. Can be fired with the profile below.

Range S AP 6" User -Assault 2

Regeneration: Regains a Wound on a 4+ at each turn's end Spine Banks: Ignore the penalty to their Initiative for charging enemies through difficult terrain. Can be fired with the profile below.

Range S AP Type

Toxic Miasma: One use only. At the Initiative 1 step, enemy models in base contact with this unit suffer a Strength 3 APhit with Poisoned and Ignores Cover Toxin Sacs: Close combat attacks have Poisoned. Wings: Becomes a Flying Monstrous Creature



TAIL BIOMORPHS

A tail biomorph allows its wielder to make a single additional Attack which uses the appropriate profile below.

	Range	S	AP	Туре
Bone mace	1	8	1964 - 1965	Melee, Unwieldy
Prehensile pincer	Contra Contra	6	5	Melec
Thresher scythe		4	4	Melee, Rending
Toxinspike	and the second	1	6	Melee, Poisoned (2+)

POWERS OF THE HIVE MIND (PG 69)

DOMINION Warp Charge 1. Blessing. The Psyker has +6" synaps

1. CATALYST

Warp Charge 1. Blessing. The Psyker's unit and one other friendly unit from Codex Tyranids within 12" have Feel No Pain.

2. THE HORROR Warp Charge 1. Malediction. Once it within 24" must take a Pinning test with -2 Leadership.

Warp Charge 1. Blessing. A single friendly unit within 24" can Run and then shoot in its Shooting phase.

4. PAROXYSM

Warp Charge 1. Malediction. One enemy unit within 24" has -D3 Weapon Skill and Ballistic Skill (roll once for both).

5. PSYCHIC SCREAM

Warp Charge 1. Nova. Range 6". Roll 2D6+2 for each target unit and subtract their Leadership. They suffer a number of Wounds equal to the result, with no Armour or cover saves allowed.

6. WARP BLAST Warp Charge 2. Witchfire.

	Range	S	AP	Туре
Burst	24 ⁿ	5	3	Assault 1, Blast
Lance	18"	10	2	Assault 1,



PROFILES

HQ

										Unit Type	
Deathleaper	9	8	6	4	3	7	4	10	5+	In (ch)	61
Hore Tyrant	8	4	6	6	4	5	4	10	34	MC (ch)	40
Old One Eye	3	3	10		4	2	4	8	3+	MC (ch)	60
The Swarmlord	9	4.	6	6	5	0	4	10	3+	MC (ch)	59
Tervison	3	3	5	6	6	2	3	10	3+	MC	-18
Tyranid Prime	6	1	5	5	3	.5	4	10	3+	In (ch)	41
Tyrant Guard	5	3	5	6	2	4	2	7	3+	In	46

TROOPS

WS	BS	S	т	w	1	A	Ld	Sv	Unit Type	Page	
7	0	5	5	3	7	4	10	4+	In (ch)	43	
6	0	4	4					5+	In	43	
3	3	3	3	1	5	2	6	6+	In	42	
2	2	3	3	3	2	4	5	6+	In	59	
3	3			1			6	6+	In	42	
5	3	4	4	3	4	8	10	4+	In	41	
	7	7 0 6 0 3 3 2 2 3 3	7 0 5 6 0 4 3 3 3 2 2 5 3 3 3	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	6 0 4 4 1 6 2 10 5+ In 3 3 3 3 1 5 2 6 6+ In 2 2 3 3 5 2 4 5 6+ In 3 3 3 3 1 4 1 6 6+ In	

ELITES

	WS	BS	S	T	W	I	A	Ld	Sv	Unit Type Pa	ar
Haruspex	3	3	6	6	5	- 3	:3	7	3+	MC 5	
Hive Guard	4	3	5		2		2	7	4+	In 4	6
Lictor	6	3	6	4	3	6	3	10	5+	In 4	
Provore	3	3	4	4	3	2	2	6	4+	In 5	
Venomthrope	3	3	4	4	2	3	2	6	5+	In 4	
Zoanthrone	S	4	4	4	9	2	018	10	100.00	and the second se	444

FAST ATTACK

and the second	WS	BS	S	T	W	I	A	Ld	Sv	Unit Type	Page
Gargoyle	3	3	3	3	1	4	1	6	6+	In. I	42
Harpy	3	3	5	5	5	5	3	10	4+	FMC	57
Hive Crone	3	3	5	5	5	5	3	10	4+	FMC	56
Ravener	5	3	4	4	3	5	3	.6	5+	Bc	49
The Red Terror	6	3	5	5	3	5	4	8	4+	Be (ch)	49
Sky-slasher Swarm	2	2	3	3	3	2	4	5	6+	In.I	53
Spore Mine	-	100	1	1	1	1		1		In	65
Tyranid Shrike	5	3	4	4	3	4	3	10	5+	In, J	41

HEAVY SUPPORT

	WS	BS	S	Т	W	I	A	Ld	Sv	Unit Type	Page
Biovore	\$	3	4	4	3		2	6	4+	In	50
Carnifex	3	3	9	6	4	2	3	7	3+	MC	52
Exocrine	3	3	6	6	5	3	3	7	3+	MC	50
Mawloc	3	0	6	6	6	4	3	8	8+	MC	54
Trygon	5	3	6	6	6	4	5	8	3+	MC	55
Trygon Prime	5	8	6	6	6	4	5	10	3+	MC	55
Tyrannofex	3	3	6	6	6	2	3	8	2+	MC	58

2	the second secon
	UNIT TYPES
ł	Beasts = Be, Infantry = In, Jump unit = J, Monstrous Creature = MC,
1	Flying Monstrous Creature = FMC, Character = (ch)

	IGED V	VEA	PC	NS
Acid spray	Range	S	AP	Type
Barbed strangler	Template	6	4	Assault 1, Torrent Assault 1, Large
	36"	4	5	Assault 1. Large
Bio-clectric pulse	Considerant and a			
Bio-electric pulse	12"	5	5	Assault 6
with containment spines	18*	5	5	Assault 12
Bio-plasma				
Bio-plasmic cannon	12*	7	2	Assault 1, Blast
- Blast				in the beau
- Streams	24	7	2	Assault 1, Large Blas
Cluster spines	24"	7	2	Assault 6
Deathspitter	18"	5		Assault 1, Large Blas
Dessicator larvae	18"	5	5	Assault 3
Devourer	Template	1	-	Assault I, Fleshbane
Desourer	18	4	1	Assault 3
Devourer with	18"	6		Assault 6
brainleech worms				ressault 0
Drool cannon	Template	6	4	Assault 1
Electroshock grubs	Template	5	5	Assault 1, Haywire
Flamespurt	Template		4	Assault I, Haywire
Flesh hooks	6"	User		Assault 2
Fleshborer	12*	4	5	
Fleshborer hive	18"	4	5	Assault I
Grasping tongue	12"	6	2	Assault 20
Heavy venom cannon	36"	9		Assault 1, Gulp!
Impaler cannon	24"	8	4	Assault 1, Blast
	44	0	4	Assault 2, Homing,
Rupture cannon	48"	10		Ignores Cover
Shockcannon	18"	10	4	Assault 2
AROCKCAMITON	18	5	5	Assault 1, Blast,
Shreddershard beetles	and the second second	122		Haywire
sineudersnard beeties	Template	3		Assault 1, Rending,
Spike rifle				Shred
Spine banks	18	3	1.212	Assault 1
pinefists	8"	3		Assault 1, Blast
spinensis	12"	3	5	Assault X,
				Twin-linked
spore Mine cysts	2.6	4	4	Assault 1, Barrage,
				Large Blast,
				Spore Bomb,
				Spore Burst
spore Mine launcher	48*	4	4	Assault 1. Barrage.
				Large Blast,
				Spore Burst
tinger salvo	18"	5	4	Assault 4
tranglethorn cannon	36"	6	3	Assault 1.
			-	Large Blast, Pinning
trangleweb	Template	9		Assault 1, Pinning
entaclids	S6"	2 5	5	Assault 1, Haywire,
citacitas	-00		a	
		and and	4	Seeking, One use only
enom cannon	36"	6	4	Assault 1, Blast

MELEE WEAPONS

Francis

Designers Note: Tyranid Mede acopons come as pairs. For game partyons, each pair is treated as a single Mede wardom. This mans that Tyranid models must fight with two pairs of any Tyranid Mede wardons to gain a domus Alleda it close conduct for fighting with two wardons. For example, al Hormagunit armodule with a single pair of trything talans done not gain a domus Attach, but a Ravener with two pairs of systems (allows, or a Censicaler with a pairs of randing clause and a pair of systems talons, does.

	User		
		- 3	Melee, Life Drain
	+1	2	Melee, Armourbane, Unwieldy
Contract of the	User		Melec, Swiftstrike
	User	3	Melee, Life Drain, Swiftstrike
(horses	User	5	Melce, Rending
and service and	User	6	Melec
	•	- User - User - User	- User - User 3 - User 5





WARHAMMER



THE HIVE MIND HUNGERS...

From the cold darkness of the intergalactic void comes a race of ravenous aliens known as the Tyranids, a numberless horde of super-predators governed only by the instincts to hunt, kill and feed. Each Tyranid is a living weapon, perfectly adapted to its designated function, but each creature is no more than a single cell in a vast gestalt entity controlled by the will of the monstrous Hive Mind. As the Tyranid hive fleets drift through space, they strip all life from the prey worlds in their path, leaving nothing but secured rock in their wake.

Inside you will find:

THE GREAT DEVOURER: The history of the Tyranids, from their first contact with the Imperium of Man to the latest invasion that threatens to consume the galaxy.

FORCES OF THE HIVE MIND: The warrior-organisms of the Tyranids, the weapons and biomorphs they use, and the monsters that have become herrific figures of legend to the galaxy's defenders.

COLOURS OF THE HIVE FLEETS: A stunning showcase of the Tyranid range of Citadel miniatures, featuring the colourations of the major hive fleets.

THE TYRANID SWARM: A comprehensive army list that allows you to form your Tyranid collection of Citadel miniatures into a powerful army on the battlefields of the Warhammer 40,000 universe.

